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Washington, D.C. 20549
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OF 1934
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OR
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ACT OF 1934
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Common Stock, $0.001 par value per share The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(NASDAQ Global Market)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Sewnti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4188ring the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant reagiired to file such reports), and (2) has bessjest to such filing requirements for the past@s. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant bsnitted electronically and posted on its corpokbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File regdito be submitted and posted
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.40thisf chapter) during the preceding 12 monthsd¢ostich shorter period that the registrant wasireduo submit and post such
files). Yes No O

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure of delindquidars pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-Két contained herein, and will not be containedh&best of registrant’'s knowledge,
in definitive proxy or information statements inporated by reference in Part Ill of this Form 1@kKany amendment to this Form 10-KIX]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlegge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting camp See the definitions of “large
accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “snegilfeporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the ExchaAgé (Check one):

Large accelerated file O Accelerated filel

Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantdbell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 22b-Yes O No

The aggregate market value of the common stockthelibn-affiliates of the registrant as of JuneZBM 2 was approximately $61.6 million (based ondbeing sales price of the
registrant’'s common stock on that date). For thpgses of this calculation, shares owned by officdirectors and 10% stockholders known to thesteggit have been deemed to be owned
by affiliates. This determination of affiliate statis not necessarily a conclusive determinatiomfieer purposes.

As of March 19, 2013, there were 31,151,075 shafréfse registrant’'s common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of our proxy statement for the 2013 AnrMakting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement§ eacorporated by reference in Part Il hereof. &ptavith respect to information
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements included in this report, other th@tements or characterizations of historical orremt fact, are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A oBtwirities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Secsriet”) and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended “Exchange Act”), and we intend that such forwaraking statements be subject to the safe harbors
created thereby. Any forward-looking statementtuhed herein are based on management’s beliefsaaadmptions and on information
currently available to management. We have attedhftédentify forward-looking statements by termstsas “anticipates,” “believes,”
“could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “shou Id,” “will,” “would”, “will likely
continue,” “will likely result” and variations ofhese words or similar expressions. These forwaoltiltg statements include, but are not
limited to, statements regarding future events,fature operating and financial results, financedpectations, expected growth and strategie:s
current business indicators, capital needs, finaggblans, capital deployment, liquidity, contradiigation, product offerings, customers,
acquisitions, competition and the status of ouilitées. Forward-looking statements, no matter wéaéiney occur in this document or in other
statements attributable to the Company involve knaad unknown risks, uncertainties and other factbat may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially déffiéfrom any future results, performances or achieents expressed or implied by
forward-looking statements. We discuss many of theseinsk®gater detail under the heading “Risk Factoiig’Part I, Item 1A of this report.
Given these uncertainties, you should not placaiarrdliance on these forward-looking statements. Sfwuld read this report and the
documents that we reference in this report and lideg as exhibits to the report completely andhwiite understanding that our actual future
results may be materially different from what wpemt. Also, forward-looking statements represemtmeanagement’s beliefs and assumptions
only as of the date of this report. Except as remliby law, we assume no obligation to update tfi@seard-looking statements publicly, or to
update the reasons actual results could differ miatg from those anticipated in these forward-ldmg statements, even if new information
becomes available in the future.

PART |

| TEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are one of the leading online sources for autmmaftermarket parts and repair information. ®@ision is that vehicle owners never
overpay for service and repair. Our mission iseédHe service and repair advocate for vehicle ogyrterincrease their confidence in the repair
process, and to provide the most affordable ogtiotheir service and repair needs.

We principally sell our products, identified asaktdkeeping units (“SKUs”), to individual consumesough our network of websites and
online marketplaces. Our user-friendly websitewjgl® customers with a comprehensive selection pfapmately 1.1 million SKUs with
detailed product descriptions and photographs. ¥ ldeveloped a proprietary product database thpsmur SKUs to product applications
based on vehicle makes, models and years.

Our online sales channel and relationships witlpkers enable us to eliminate several intermedsanehe traditional auto parts supply
chain and offer a broad selection of SKUs. Addiilby) as an online retailer, we believe greatemecuies of scale can be achieved online tha
in brick and mortar stores.

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1995 as aidigr of aftermarket auto parts and launched st Website in 2000. Since then, we
have continued to expand our online operationseasing the number of SKUs sold through our e-coraneeetwork, adding additional
websites, improving our internet marketing profiag, and commencing sales on online marketplaneSctober 2008, we acquired
AutoMD.com for the purpose of developing conterd aruser community to educate consumers on maimterend service of their vehicles.
The site provides auto information, with tools fagnosing car troubles, locating repair shopsdoid-yourself (“DIY”) repair guides.
Currently, AutoMD estimates auto repair costs t&enservicing your car less stressful. The repast calculator uses real-time shop repair
estimates from accredited repair shops in the U.S.

In August 2010, we acquired all of the issued amdtanding shares of Automotive Specialty Accessoaind Parts, Inc. and its wholly-
owned subsidiary Whitney Automotive Group, Incféreed to herein as “WAG"), at the time, the nat®leading catalog and internet direct
marketer of automotive aftermarket performancespantd accessories. This acquisition has expandegroduct line into all terrain vehicles,
recreational vehicles and motorcycles, as wellrasiged us deep product knowledge into niche sed¢grige Jeep, Volkswagen and trucks.
The expansion of our product line increases ouityld reach customers in the DIY automobile afidroad accessories market. Our flagship
websites are located @tvw.autopartswarehouse.camww.partstrain.com www.jcwhitney.comwww.stylintrucks.corand
www.AutoMD.conand our corporate website is locatedvaiw.usautoparts.net
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Our Products

We offer a broad selection of aftermarket autopafte frequently refine our product offering byrattucing new merchandise and
updating the existing product selection to offen@re complete and relevant product line and to xemaw-selling or obsolete SKUs. We
broadly classify our products into three categofiesly parts, engine parts, and performance padsacessories.

Body Parts The body parts category is primarily comprisegaits for the exterior of an automobile. Our partthis category are
typically replacement parts for original body pattat have been damaged as a result of a coll@ithrough general wear and tear. The
majority of these products are sold through oursiteb. In addition, we sell an extensive line ofrori products, including our own private-
label brand called Kool-Vue™, which are marketed sold as aftermarket replacement parts and asdegto existing parts.

Engine/Hard Parts The engine parts category is comprised of engimeponents and other mechanical and electricas pattich are
often referred to as hard parts. These parts serveplacement parts for existing engine partssa@denerally used by professionals and do-it
yourselfers for engine and mechanical maintenandeepair.

Performance Parts and Accessoriéd/e offer performance versions of many parts sokhch of the above categories. Performance
and accessories generally consist of parts thatreghthe performance of the automobile, upgradstiegifunctionality of a specific part or
improve the physical appearance or comfort of titeraobile.

Our Sales Channels
Our sales channels include the online channel lrmdffline channel.

Online Sales ChannelOur online sales channel consists of our e-coroeneinannel, online marketplaces and online aduegti©ur e-
commerce channel includes a network of e-commesdesites, supported by our call-center sales agéfasalso sell our products through
online marketplaces, including third-party auctsites and shopping portals, which provide us witteas to additional consumer segments.
The majority of our online sales are to individaahsumers. We sell online advertising and spongpsisitions on our e-commerce websites
to highlight vendor brands and offer complemenfaducts and services that benefit our custometse/ising is targeted to specific sections
of the websites and can also be targeted to speriéirs based on the vehicles they drive. Advedipartners primarily include part vendors,
national automotive aftermarket brands, and autéeatanufacturers.

Offline Sales ChannelWe sell and deliver to collision repair shopstighout Southern California and the state of Viagina our offline
sales channel. We also market our Kool-Vue™ praglnationwide to auto parts wholesale distributoig serve consumers by operating retail
outlet stores in Independence, Ohio and LaSalleois.

Our Fulfillment Operations

We fulfill customer orders using two primary metBod@) stock-and-ship, where we take physical dgjivof merchandise and store it in
one of our distribution centers until it is shipgeda customer, and (ii) drop-ship, where merchemd shipped directly to customers from our
suppliers. We believe that the flexibility of fulfing orders using two different fulfillment methsdllows us to offer a broader product
selection, helps optimize product inventory andagrdes our overall business profitability.

The selection of fulfilment methodology occurstat time of order submission. When a customer stsbami order, our fulfillment syste
performs a check on the ordered item to deternfiitésiin stock at any of our distribution centeFailfillment teams in our distribution centers
then process orders for in-stock products. Ordaradn-stocked products are sent to our suppligdspaocessed via drop-ship.

Stock-and-Ship FulfillmentOur stock-andhip products are sourced primarily from manufaatiand other suppliers located in Asia
in the U.S. and are stored in one of our distritoutienters in Carson, California; Chesapeake, NiaglLaSalle, lllinois; and Independence,
Ohio. All products received into our distributioenters are entered into our inventory managemestgiss, allowing us to closely monitor
inventory availability. We consider a number ofttas in determining which items to stock in ourtdizution centers, including which produ
can be purchased at a meaningful discount to déer@stes for similar items, which products havstaiically sold in high volumes, and wh
products may be out of stock when we attempt tidllfula drop-ship.
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Drop-Ship Fulfillment We have developed relationships with several-baSed automobile parts distributors that opetete bwn
distribution centers and will deliver products dithg to our customers. We internally developed@ppetary distributor selection system, Auto-
Vend™, which allows us to electronically select tiplé vendors for a given order. Auto-Vend™ wilteahpt to first direct an order to one of
our warehouses. If the product is not in stock,084end™ will process the order to the next appmtperivendor based on customer location,
contractual agreements, and service level history.

Suppliers

We source our products from foreign manufacturacsimporters located in Taiwan and China, and ftd/8. manufacturers and
distributors. We drop-ship orders for low demanodoarcts manufactured in the U.S. directly from oamnurfacturers and distributors. We
generally place large-volume orders with these Begpand, as a result, may receive volume dissontcertain ordered products. Our
domestic suppliers offer direct-to-customer shigpallowing us to save on fulfillment costs andeofé broader selection of products. We have
developed application programming interfaces withesal of these suppliers that allow us to eledtadly transmit orders and check inventory
availability. We are a significant customer for mari our drop-ship vendors and have long standiationships and contracts with many of
these suppliers. For the fiscal year ended Dece2the2012, two of our drop-ship vendors provided¥6 of our total product purchases.

Marketing

Our online marketing efforts are designed to attvégitors to our websites, convert visitors intarghasing customers and encourage
repeat purchases among our existing customer Wéseise a variety of online marketing methods t@aettvisitors, including paid search
advertising, search engine optimization, affiliptegrams, e-mail marketing and inclusion in onshepping engines. To convert visitors into
paying customers, we periodically run in-site préios for discounted purchases. We seek to creass-selling opportunities by displaying
complementary and related products available fler ttoughout the purchasing process. We utilizes# marketing technigues, including
targeted e-mails about specific vehicle promotidosncrease customer awareness of our products.

International Operations

In April 2007, we established offshore operatianghie Philippines. Our offshore operations allowaiaccess a workforce with the
necessary technical skills at a significantly lowest than comparably experienced U.S.-based pmiofeas. Our offshore operations are
responsible for a majority of our website developtneatalog management, and back office suppont.ofishore operations also house our
main call center. We had 945 employees in the piiiiles as of December 29, 2012. In January 2018ideff 163 employees in the
Philippines which reduced our workforce to 782ha Philippines (for additional details, refer‘idote 16-Subsequent Eventef the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements, includedaint R/, Iltem 15 of this report).

In addition to our operations in the Philippineg khave a Canadian subsidiary to facilitate salesioproducts in Canada; the subsidiary
has no distribution center or employees. We alg§o sérts directly to Canada and through a freightvarding partner throughout the world. In
2012, we shipped auto parts to over 160 differenntries.

Competition

The auto repair information and parts industryampetitive and highly fragmented, with productsritimited through multi-tiered and
overlapping channels. We compete with both onlime @ffline retailers who offer original equipmenanufacturer (“OEM”) and aftermarket
parts to either the DIY or do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) stomer segments. Current or potential competitutude the following:

e national auto parts retailers such as Advance Raits, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQue’Reilly Automotive and Pep Boy

» large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com dleissen eBay

« other online retailers and auto repair informatigbsites

* local independent retailers or niche auto partsless; anc

» wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors as&chKQ Corporation

We believe the principal competitive factors in auarket are helping customers easily find theitgpaducating consumers on the sel

and maintenance of their vehicles, maintainingappetary product catalog that maps individual péotrelevant vehicle applications, broad
product selection and availability, price, knowledble customer service, and rapid order fulfillmemd delivery. We believe we compete

favorably on the basis of these factors. Howev@nesof our competitors may be larger, have strobgamd recognition or may have access tc
greater financial, technical and marketing rescaimrehave been operating longer than we have.
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Government Regulation

We are subject to federal and state consumer gimtdaws, including laws protecting the privacyafstomer non-public information
and the handling of customer complaints and reguiatprohibiting unfair and deceptive trade praticThe growth and demand for online
commerce has and may continue to result in moirgggtnt consumer protection laws that impose adwificompliance burdens on online
companies. These laws may cover issues such aprisary, spyware and the tracking of consumenwas, marketing e-mails and
communications, other advertising and promotiomatfpces, money transfers, pricing, content andityuaf products and services, taxation,
electronic contracts and other communications afatination security. In addition, most states hpassed laws that prohibit or limit the us
aftermarket auto parts in collision repair work amdequire enhanced disclosure or vehicle ownasent before using aftermarket auto par
such repair work and additional legislation of tkiisd may be introduced in the future.

There is also great uncertainty over whether or bBristing laws governing issues such as propertyesship, sales and other taxes,
auctions, libel and personal privacy apply to thiednet and commercial online services. These ssswsy take years to resolve. For example,
tax authorities in a number of states, as well @srgressional advisory commission, are currereyemwing the appropriate tax treatment of
companies engaged in online commerce, and newtatategulations may subject us to additional states and income taxes. New legislatior
or regulation, the application of laws and reguwlasi from jurisdictions whose laws do not curremibply to our business or the application of
existing laws and regulations to the Internet amhmercial online services could result in signifitadditional taxes or regulatory restrictions
on our business. These taxes or restrictions duaNeé an adverse effect on our cash flows and sestitiperations. Furthermore, there is a
possibility that we may be subject to significanet or other payments for any past failures toggmwith these requirements.

Environmental

We are subject to environmental regulation asféca$ certain of the products we sell. For insta@aifornia currently only allows
catalytic converters approved by the state to bewithin the state and, during 2010 and early 2@i& Company met with the California Air
Resources Board (“CARB”) to discuss alleged salesatalytic converters into California by the Compgand third-party suppliers that are not
compliant with California regulations. CARB inforghéhe Company that penalties shall be assessedegénd to any non-compliant sales. Or
October 26, 2011, the Company and CARB enteredarsettiement agreement related to this inquinth@tit admitting any liability, the
Company agreed to pay a non-material cash persaibject to being offset by contributions from sooh¢he Company’s third-party suppliers,
in exchange for a release from CARB of the Compamy such third-party suppliers. There has beendination that other states may be
pursuing the enactment of similar regulations.ddition, if we expanded our product lines, we mayshbject to additional environmental
regulation.

Seasonality

We believe our business is subject to seasondlfitions. We have historically experienced higlaes of body parts in winter months
when inclement weather and hazardous road conditiguically result in more automobile collisionsidine parts and performance parts and
accessories have historically experienced highes $a the summer months when consumers have rinoegd undertake elective projects to
maintain and enhance the performance of their anitdles and the warmer weather during that timevigdacive for such projects. We expect
the historical seasonality trends to continue teeh@material impact on our financial condition aesults of operations in subsequent periods

Employees

As of December 29, 2012, we had 425 employeesittiited States and 945 employees in the Philiggimea total of 1,370 employe:
In January 2013, we laid off 13 employees in thétddhStates and 163 employees in the Philippingisaiag our workforce to a total of 1,194
employees (for additional details, refer‘idote 16-Subsequent Eventsf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement¢fyded in Part IV,
Item 15 of this report). None of our employeesramesented by a labor union, and we have neverexged a work stoppage.

Available Information

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportd=orm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and afmeats to those reports are
available free of charge on the Investor Relat&eion of our corporate website locategvatwv.usautoparts.nets soon as reasonably
practicable after such reports are electronicékfwith, or furnished to, the Securities and Exatpe Commission (“SEC”). The inclusion of
our website address in this report does not inclrdacorporate by reference into this report arfgimation on our website.
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| TEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to a number of risks whiehdiscussed below. Other risks are presentedviisee in this report and in our oth
filings with the SEC. You should consider carefthly following risks in addition to the other infioation contained in this report and our ott
filings with the SEC, including our subsequent rpon Forms 1-Q and 8-K, and any amendments thereto, beforedoerto buy, sell or
hold our common stock. If any of the following knaw unknown risks or uncertainties actually occuith material adverse effects on us, our
business, financial condition, results of operasi@md/or liquidity could be seriously harmed. lattevent, the market price for our common
stock will likely decline and you may lose all @ripof your investment.

Risks Related To Our Business

Purchasers of aftermarket auto parts may not chotseshop online, which would prevent us from acquig new customers who ai
necessary to the growth of our business.

The online market for aftermarket auto parts is sveloped than the online market for many othsimess and consumer products, anc
currently represents only a small part of the ovafsermarket auto parts market. Our successdefiend in part on our ability to attract new
customers and to convert customers who have Rsatlyripurchased auto parts through traditionalilretad wholesale operations. Specific
factors that could discourage or prevent prospeatisstomers from purchasing from us include:

e concerns about buying auto parts without -to-face interaction with sales personr

« the inability to physically handle, examine and game products

» delivery time associated with Internet orde

» concerns about the security of online transactémusthe privacy of personal informatic
» delayed shipments or shipments of incorrect or dgtgroducts

» increased shipping costs; a

» the inconvenience associated with returning or arging items purchased onlir

If the online market for auto parts does not gaitlespread acceptance, our sales may decline artisimess and financial results may
suffer.

We depend on search engines and other online sositceattract visitors to our websites, and if weeamable to attract these visitors and
convert those into customers in a cost-effectivermar, our business and results of operations wid harmed.

Our success depends on our ability to attract erdonsumers to our websites and convert them irgmmers in a cost-effective manner.
We are significantly dependent upon search engsiegping comparison sites and other online sodoresur website traffic. We are includ
in search results as a result of both paid se#@thds, where we purchase specific search teratshil result in the inclusion of our listing,
and algorithmic searches that depend upon thelsgaeccontent on our sites. We reduced our paittkdiatings in 2012 and are substantially
dependent on algorithmic listings to attract onlbo@sumers to our websites.

Algorithmic listings cannot be purchased and indteiee determined and displayed solely by a satrofidilas utilized by the search
engine. Search engines, shopping comparison sitestaer online sources have in the past, andcatitinue to revise their algorithms from
time to time in an attempt to optimize their seare$ults. For example, since 2011, Google hasgeteaehanges to Google’s search results
ranking algorithm aimed to lower the rank of certsites and return other sites near the top ofélaech results based upon the quality of the
particular site as determined by Google. Googlearattiitional updates throughout fiscal year 2012.dfferate a multiple website platform
that generally allows us to provide multiple searesults for a particular algorithmic search, hoare@oogle is now limiting our display results
to a single result from the algorithmic search. Wége negatively impacted by the changes in mettogyoior how Google displayed or
selected our different websites for customer seggshlts, which reduced our unique visitor courtt adversely affected our financial results.
We expect declines in our unique visitors and otaltnumber of orders to continue in the next twetvonths as we address the challenges w
are experiencing from Google’s changes in methagoltf other search engines, shopping comparises sir similar online sources on which
we rely for website traffic were to modify theirrggral methodology for how they display or seleatwabsites in a manner similar to the
changes made by Google, or if Google
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continues to make changes to Google’s search sesulking algorithms that cause those algorithnistevact with our platform in a manner
that continues to reduce our unique visitors, degrer consumers may click through to our webs#esl, our financial results could be further
adversely affected.

Similarly, if any free search engine or shoppingparison site on which we rely begins charging feesisting or placement, or if one
more of the search engines, shopping comparises aitd other online sources on which we rely foclpased listings, modifies or terminates
its relationship with us, our expenses could rge could lose customers and traffic to our webgitedd decrease.

We are in the process of implementing severalesjias to attempt to overcome these changes, imgutle consolidation of our multiple
websites to improve our ranking on the search tesuld pursuing opportunities in third-party onlinarketplaces, which may not be
successful. If these strategies are not successfubperating results and financial condition dooé materially and adversely affected.
Additionally, if search engines other than Googgih to limit our display results to a single regirlentirely eliminate our results from the
algorithmic search due to our multiple websitefplam, our website traffic could be further impaceestt our business would be materially
harmed.

In addition, our success in attracting visitors veoavert to customers will depend in part uponatility to identify and purchase
relevant search terms, provide relevant conterduwrsites, and effectively target our other margprograms such as e-mail campaigns and
affiliate programs. If we are unable to attraciteis to our websites and convert them to custonmeascost-effective manner, then our sales
may decline and our business and financial resudig be harmed.

During fiscal 2012, we experienced a downward treincour revenues and our net loss continued, and &pect the downward trend in ot
revenues and net loss to continue for at least tfext twelve months.

For fiscal year 2012, we experienced a decrea3edéb in net sales, as compared to the same peri2dlil, and also had continued net
loss during the same period. Overall, we expeadhimwnward trends in our revenues and net lossritnue for at least the next twelve
months. If these trends continued it could seveirapact our liquidity, as we may not be able toyide positive cash flows from operations in
order to meet our working capital requirements. M&y need to borrow additional funds from our créaliflity, which under certain
circumstances may not be available, sell assetsak equity or additional debt financing in thaifet There can be no assurance that we w
be able to raise such additional financing or ergagsuch asset sales on acceptable terms, dr Htaalr expected downward trend in reven
and net loss continues for longer than we expezdlse our strategies to return to positive salestrand profitability are not successful or
otherwise, and if we are not able to raise adeqaddéional financing or proceeds from asset s@le®ntinue to fund our ongoing operations,
we will need to defer, reduce or eliminate sigmfit planned expenditures, restructure or signiflganurtail our operations, sell some of our
assets, file for bankruptcy or cease operations.

Our operations are restricted by our credit facylitand our ability to borrow funds under our crediacility is subject to a borrowing base.

Our credit facility includes a number of restrigtieovenants. These covenants could impair our dingrand operational flexibility and
make it difficult for us to react to market condiis and satisfy our ongoing capital needs and wipated cash requirements. Specifically,
such covenants restrict our ability and, if apfieathe ability of our subsidiaries to, among ottiéngs:

* incur additional debt

* make certain investments and acquisitic

* enter into certain types of transactions with &ifés;

* use assets as security in other transact

» pay dividends on our capital stock or repurchasesquity interests
» sell certain assets or merge with or into other games;

e guarantee the debts of othe

* enter into new lines of busine:

e pay or amend our subordinated de

« form any joint ventures or subsidiary investme

In addition, our credit facility is subject to arbmving base derived from certain of our receivaplaventory, property and equipment. In
the event that components of the borrowing basadwersely affected for any reason, including aslvenarket conditions or downturns in
general economic conditions, we could be restrigtetle amount of funds we can borrow
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under the credit facility. Furthermore, in the eiviirat components of the borrowing base decreaadeawel below the amount of loans then-
outstanding under the credit facility, we couldrequired to immediately repay loans to the extéisuch shortfall. If any of these events were
to occur, it could severely impact our liquiditydacapital resources, limit our ability to operate business and could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oéation.

Furthermore, under certain circumstances, our cfadiity may require us to satisfy a financiavemant, which could limit our ability to
react to market conditions or satisfy extraordinzapital needs and could otherwise impact our difqpiand capital resources, restrict our
financing and have a material adverse effect orresults of operations.

Our ability to comply with the covenants and ottems of our debt obligations will depend on ouufe operating performance. If we
fail to comply with such covenants and terms, weilddoe required to obtain waivers from our lendermaintain compliance with our debt
obligations. In the future, if we are unable toadbtany necessary waivers and the debt is acceteratmaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition and future operating performance wouklile Additionally, our indebtedness could have amant consequences, including the
following:

« we will have to dedicate a portion of our cash flmmmaking payments on our indebtedness, therahycieg the availability of our
cash flow to fund working capital, capital expendits, acquisitions or other general corporate Beg;

« certain levels of indebtedness may make us lessctitte to potential acquirers or acquisition tasg

» certain levels of indebtedness may limit our fléiipto adjust to changing business and marketdiions, and make us more
vulnerable to downturns in general economic coadgias compared to competitors that may be lessdged; an

» asdescribed in more detail above, the documentsding for our indebtedness contain restrictiveartants that may limit our
financing and operational flexibility

Furthermore, our ability to satisfy our debt seevirbligations will depend, among other things, uffectuations in interest rates, our
future operating performance and ability to reficmmdebtedness when and if necessary. Thesedat#pend partly on economic, financial,
competitive and other factors beyond our controk M&y not be able to generate sufficient cash fsparations to meet our debt service
obligations as well as fund necessary capital ediperes and general operating expenses. In addifiare need to refinance our debt, or ob
additional debt financing or sell assets or eqtatgatisfy our debt service obligations, we mayb®able to do so on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all. If this were to occur, we may dde defer, reduce or eliminate significant planeggdenditures, restructure or significantly
curtail our operations, sell some of our assdts fdir bankruptcy or cease operations.

We may not be able to successfully acquire new besses or integrate acquisitions, which could cawse business to suffer.

We may not be able to successfully complete pakstiategic acquisitions if we cannot reach agesdron acceptable terms or for other
reasons. If we buy a company or a division of agany, we may experience difficulty integrating thampany’s or division’s personnel and
operations, which could negatively affect our ofiataresults. In addition:

» the key personnel of the acquired company may dewid to work for us
» customers of the acquired company may decide nmtitchase products from t
* we may experience business disruptions as a m@sintormation technology systems conversic

* we may experience additional financial and accogntihallenges and complexities in areas such gslasxing, treasury
management, and financial reportil

* we may be held liable for environmental, tax oreottisks and liabilities as a result of our acdigss, some of which we may not
have discovered during our due diligen

* we may intentionally assume the liabilities of tteempanies we acquire, which could materially aneeaskly affect our busines
» our ongoing business may be disrupted or recemgffigient management attentic

e we may not be able to realize the cost savingsh@rdinancial benefits or synergies we anticipatather in the amount or in the
time frame that we expect; a

e we may incur debt or issue equity securities tofpayny future acquisition, the issuance of whichild involve the imposition of
restrictive covenants or be dilutive to our exigtstockholders
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As part of our growth strategy, we acquired WAGAargust 12, 2010 and we expect that we will seletyipursue additional
acquisitions of businesses, technologies or sesviterder to expand our capabilities, enter newketa or increase our market share. In
conjunction with the acquisition of WAG, we recodde significant valuation allowance against ouredefd tax asset, and have incurred gre
than usual legal and accounting fees, as well asrgéand administrative expenses. During the Ifigear ended December 31, 2011, we
incurred acquisition and integration related co$t$7.4 million related to the WAG acquisition. Ing the fourth quarter of 2012 and 2011,
recorded an impairment charge on certain intangib$ets related to the WAG acquisition totaling@$8illion and $5.1 million, respectively.
Additionally, because the acquisition of WAG wasteck purchase, we may incur liability for actsemlprior to our acquisition that may
involve costly litigation. Integrating any newly@dred businesses’ websites, technologies or ssvglikely to be expensive and time
consuming. For example, our acquisition of All OFMrts, Inc., Partshin.com, Inc., and other aféliatompanies (collectively “Partshin”),
resulted in significant costs, including a mateiigbairment charge, a write-down of goodwill assted with the acquisition, and a number of
challenges, including retaining employees of thgured company, integrating our order processirgy@aedit processing, integrating our
product pricing strategy, and integrating the déeetiechnologies and differing e-commerce platfaamg accounting systems used by each
company. Our integration activities in connectiathvour acquisitions have also caused a substatitiatsion of our management’s attention.
If we are unable to successfully complete the irsgn of acquisitions, we may not realize the @ptted synergies from such acquisitions, we
may take impairment charges and write-downs assatigith such acquisitions, and our business asalteof operations could suffer.

If our goodwill or intangible assets become impaireve may be required to record a significant chargeearnings.

We review our goodwill and intangible assets fopainment when events or changes in circumstancksaite the carrying value may r
be recoverable. Goodwill is required to be evaldidde impairment at least annually. Factors thay i considered are changes in
circumstances indicating that the carrying valuewfgoodwill or intangible assets may not be recable include a decline in stock price and
market capitalization, decrease in future cashdglcand slower growth rates in our industry. We toayequired to record a significant charge
to earnings in our financial statements duringgéeod in which any impairment of our goodwill etangible assets is determined, resulting ir
an impact on our results of operations. For exanthleng the fourth quarter of 2012, we recordedhapairment charge on goodwill of
$18.9 million and $5.6 million on other intangitassets. During the fiscal year ended December@11,2ve incurred an impairment charge
intangible assets of $5.1 million.

If we are unable to manage the challenges assodatgth our international operations, the growth afur business could be limited and ol
business could suffer.

We maintain international business operations éRhilippines. This international operation inclsdievelopment and maintenance of
our websites, our main call center, and sales ac#l bffice support services. We also operate a @lanaubsidiary to facilitate sales in
Canada. We are subject to a number of risks anltbalgas that specifically relate to our internatibaperations. Our international operations
may not be successful if we are unable to meebarccome these challenges, which could limit thengin of our business and may have an
adverse effect on our business and operating seduiese risks and challenges include:

« the amount and timing of operating costs and cegipenditures relating to the maintenance andresipa of our business,
operations and infrastructui

» difficulties and costs of staffing and managingefgn operations, including any impairment to odatienship with employees
caused by a reduction in forc

» restrictions imposed by local labor practices awisl on our business and operatic

» exposure to different business practices and ktgaldards

e unexpected changes in regulatory requireme

» the imposition of government controls and restits;

» political, social and economic instability and tiek of war, terrorist activities or other interimatal incidents
» the failure of telecommunications and connectiuityastructure

» natural disasters and public health emergen

* potentially adverse tax consequent
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» the failure of local laws to provide a sufficierdgiee of protection against infringement of ouelliectual property; an
» fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates r@tative weakness in the U.S. doll

We are dependent upon relationships with supplierdraiwan, China and the United States for the vasajority of our products.

We acquire substantially all of our products froramafacturers and distributors located in Taiwarin€land the United States. Our top
ten suppliers represented 43.7% of our total propguchases during the fifty-two weeks ended Deaardh, 2012. We do not have any long-
term contracts or exclusive agreements with owifpr suppliers that would ensure our ability towagthe types and quantities of products
desire at acceptable prices and in a timely manneddition, our ability to acquire products framar suppliers in amounts and on terms
acceptable to us is dependent upon a number afréatttat could affect our suppliers and which agdnd our control. For example, financial
or operational difficulties that some of our suppdimay face could result in an increase in theafahe products we purchase from them. In
addition, the increasing consolidation among aatdspsuppliers may disrupt or end our relations¥ith some suppliers, result in product
shortages and/or lead to less competition and ecpently, higher prices. Furthermore, as part ofroutine business, suppliers extend crec
us in connection with our purchase of their produist the future, our suppliers may limit the amioofcredit they are willing to extend to us
connection with our purchase of their productany. If this were to occur, it could impair our libito acquire the types and quantities of
products that we desire from the applicable suppl@ acceptable terms, severely impact our litpid capital resources, limit our ability to
operate our business and could have a materiatsalegect on our financial condition and resuftsgeration.

In addition, because many of our suppliers areideitsf the United States, additional factors cantdrrupt our relationships or affect our
ability to acquire the necessary products on aatdpterms, including:

» political, social and economic instability and tiek of war or other international incidents in Agir abroad
» fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates iy increase our cost of produc

» tariffs and protectionist laws and business prastitat favor local business

» difficulties in complying with import and exportie, regulatory requirements and restrictions;

* natural disasters and public health emergen

Additionally, if we do not maintain our relationglsiwith our existing suppliers or develop relatlips with new suppliers on acceptable
commercial terms, we may not be able to continuzffer a broad selection of merchandise at comipetfirices and, as a result, we could lose
customers and our sales could decline.

We are dependent upon third parties for distributi@nd fulfillment operations with respect to many our products.

For a number of the products that we sell, we autsothe distribution and fulfillment operation aax@ dependent on our distributors to
manage inventory, process orders and distributeetpooducts to our customers in a timely mannartheofifty-two weeks ended
December 29, 2012, our product purchases from tap-ship suppliers represented 16.0% of our total pebdurchases. If we do not maint
our existing relationships with these suppliers andother distributors on acceptable commerciahse we will need to obtain other suppliers
and may not be able to continue to offer a brodetten of merchandise at competitive prices, amdsales may decrease.

In addition, because we outsource to distributararmber of these traditional retail functions rielgtto those products, we have limited
control over how and when orders are fulfilled. ¥so have limited control over the products thatdistributors purchase or keep in stock.
Our distributors may not accurately forecast thadpcts that will be in high demand or they maycdte popular products to other resellers,
resulting in the unavailability of certain produéts delivery to our customers. Any inability toferf a broad array of products at competitive
prices and any failure to deliver those productsuocustomers in a timely and accurate mannerdaayage our reputation and brand and
could cause us to lose customers.
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We depend on third-party delivery services to daligur products to our customers on a timely anche@stent basis, and any deterioration in
our relationship with any one of these third parier increases in the fees that they charge cousdrh our reputation and adversely affect
our business and financial condition.

We rely on third parties for the shipment of oungrcts and we cannot be sure that these relatipmghil continue on terms favorable to
us, or at all. Shipping costs have increased fiom to time, and may continue to increase, whialidcbarm our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations by increasimgamsts of doing business and resulting in redgreds margins. In addition, if our
relationships with these third parties are termg@dadr impaired, or if these third parties are uaabldeliver products for us, whether due to
labor shortage, slow down or stoppage, deteriggdiimancial or business condition, responses totist attacks or for any other reason, we
would be required to use alternative carrierslfierghipment of products to our customers. Changgingers could have a negative effect on
business and operating results due to reducedlitisitif order status and package tracking andyiela order processing and product delivery
and we may be unable to engage alternative caoieestimely basis, upon terms favorable to ustail.

If commodity prices such as fuel, plastic and steehtinue to increase, our margins may shrin

Our third party delivery services have increasesl furcharges from time to time, and such increasgatively impact our margins, as
we are generally unable to pass all of these ds#stly to consumers. Increasing prices in the ponent materials for the parts we sell may
impact the availability, the quality and the prafeour products, as suppliers search for altereatio existing materials and as they increase tt
prices they charge. We cannot ensure that we cawee all the increased costs through price in@gaand our suppliers may not continue to
provide the consistent quality of product as theyrsubstitute lower cost materials to maintainipgdevels, all of which may have a negative
impact on our business and results of operations.

If our fulfillment operations are interrupted for ay significant period of time or are not sufficiertb accommodate increased demand, «
sales would decline and our reputation could be haed.

Our success depends on our ability to succesgsktlgive and fulfill orders and to promptly delivarr products to our customers. The
majority of orders for our auto body parts produans filled from our inventory in our distributi@enters, where all our inventory managerr
packaging, labeling and product return processeparformed. Increased demand and other considiesatay require us to expand our
distribution centers or transfer our fulfillmenteyptions to larger facilities in the future.

Our distribution centers are susceptible to danmadeterruption from human error, fire, flood, pawess, telecommunications failures,
terrorist attacks, acts of war, break-ins, eartkgqaand similar events. We do not currently mambaick-up power systems at our fulfillment
centers. We do not presently have a formal disastavery plan and our business interruption insteanay be insufficient to compensate us
for losses that may occur in the event operatibsiafulfilment center are interrupted. Any inteptions in our fulfillment operations for any
significant period of time, including interruptionssulting from the expansion of our existing faieis or the transfer of operations to a new
facility, could damage our reputation and brand sulastantially harm our business and results ofatjpss and alternate arrangements may
increase the cost of fulfillment. In addition, ievdo not successfully expand our fulfillment capgs in response to increases in demand, we
may not be able to substantially increase our aless

We rely on bandwidth and data center providers asttler third parties to provide products to our costers, and any failure or interruption
in the services provided by these third parties lcodisrupt our business and cause us to lose custon

We rely on third-party vendors, including data egrand bandwidth providers. Any disruption in tlework access or co-location
services, which are the services that house anddardnternet access to our servers, provided bgehhird-party providers or any failure of
these third-party providers to handle current ghkr volumes of use could significantly harm ousibass. Any financial or other difficulties
our providers face may have negative effects orbasiess, the nature and extent of which we cammeatict. We exercise little control over
these third-party vendors, which increases ouresalpility to problems with the services they previtiVe also license technology and related
databases from third parties to facilitate elemehtsur e-commerce platform. We have experienceblexpect to continue to experience
interruptions and delays in service and availabftir these elements. Any errors, failures, intptians or delays experienced in connection
with these third-party technologies could negativeipact our relationship with our customers andessely affect our business. Our systems
also heavily depend on the availability of eledtyicwhich also comes from third-party providerfswk were to experience a major power
outage, we would have to rely on back-up generaldrese back-up generators may not operate proghedygh a major power outage, and
their fuel supply could also be inadequate durimgagor power outage. Information systems such &s imay be disrupted by even brief power
outages, or by the fluctuations in power resulfiagn switches to and from backup generators. Toidctdisrupt our business and cause us to
lose customers.
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We face intense competition and operate in an intyavith limited barriers to entry, and some of ogpmpetitors may have greater
resources than us and may be better positionedapitalize on the growing e-commerce auto parts metrk

The auto parts industry is competitive and highgmented, with products distributed through mtigtied and overlapping channels. '
compete with both online and offline retailers wifter original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) anfieamarket auto parts to either the DIY
or do-it-for-me customer segments. Current or ggaeoompetitors include the following:

* national auto parts retailers such as Advance Raits, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQue’Reilly Automotive and Pep Boy
» large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com aagf;

» other online retailers and auto repair informatigbsites

» local independent retailers or niche auto partmenietailers; an

» wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors saschKQ Corporation

Barriers to entry are low, and current and new catitgors can launch websites at a relatively lowt.ceany of our current and potential
competitors have longer operating histories, laoystomer bases, greater brand recognition andfisimtly greater financial, marketing,
technical, management and other resources tharoweod example, in the event that online markelammpanies such as Amazon or eBay,
who have larger customer bases, greater brandmgimogand significantly greater resources thandagfocus more of their resources on
competing in the aftermarket auto parts markefitld have a material adverse effect on our busiaed results of operations. In addition,
some of our competitors have used and may contmuse aggressive pricing tactics and devote sotislig more financial resources to
website and system development than we do. We egrpetoccompetition will further intensify in thetfure as Internet use and online commerc
continue to grow worldwide. Increased competitioaymesult in reduced sales, lower operating maygeduced profitability, loss of market
share and diminished brand recognition.

Additionally, we have experienced significant cotifpee pressure from our suppliers who are nowirsgltheir products directly to
customers. Since our suppliers have access to amlige at very low costs, they can sell producksvegr prices and maintain higher gross
margins on their product sales than we can. Oanfifal results have been negatively impacted ctisales from our suppliers to our current
and potential customers, and we expect our totallbrau of orders and average order value to contimdecline in the next 12 months due to
increased competition. Continued competition frarppdiers of ours that are capable of maintainirghlsales volumes and acquiring products
at lower prices than us will continue to negativietypact our business and results of operationfydimg through reduced sales, lower
operating margins, reduced profitability, loss adriket share and diminished brand recognition. Védarathe process of implementing several
strategies to attempt to overcome the challengested by our suppliers selling directly to our onstrs and potential customers, including by
lowering our prices by increasing foreign sourceatpicts and by improvements in our websites, whigly not be successful. If these
strategies are not successful, our operating seanll financial conditions could be materially addersely affected.

If we fail to offer a broad selection of products aompetitive prices to meet our custon” demands, our revenue could decline.

In order to expand our business, we must succégsfifiér, on a continuous basis, a broad seleatioauto parts that meet the needs of
our customers, including by being the first to nenkith new SKUs. Our auto parts are used by comssifior a variety of purposes, including
repair, performance, improved aesthetics and fanatity. In addition, to be successful, our prodaff¢rings must be broad and deep in scope
competitively priced, well-made, innovative andattive to a wide range of consumers. We canndligtreiith certainty that we will be
successful in offering products that meet all @stirequirements. If our product offerings faibédisfy our customers’ requirements or respon
to changes in customer preferences, our revenud dealine.

Challenges by OEMs to the validity of the aftermatkauto parts industry and claims of intellectuatqperty infringement could adversely
affect our business and the viability of the afteamket auto parts industry.

OEMs have attempted to use claims of intellectuaperty infringement against manufacturers anditistors of aftermarket products to
restrict or eliminate the sale of aftermarket piciduhat are the subject of the claims. The OEMe lmought such claims in federal court and
with the United States International Trade CommissiVe have received in the past, and we anticipetenay in the future receive,
communications alleging that certain products wkisinge the patents, copyrights, trademarks ttlade names or other intellectual property
rights of OEMs or other third parties. For instarafer approximately three and a half years afdiion and related costs and expenses, on
April 16, 2009, we entered into a settlement agesgnwith Ford Motor Company and Ford Global Tecbgas, LLC that ended the two legal
actions that were initiated by Ford against usteel@o claims of intellectual property infringemefbe United States Patent and Trademark
Office records indicate that OEMs are seeking and
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obtaining more design patents then they have ipésé To the extent that the OEMs are successfulimtellectual property infringement
claims, we could be restricted or prohibited fragtlisg certain aftermarket products which could dawn adverse effect on our business.
Infringement claims could also result in increasesits of doing business arising from increased kexqgenses, adverse judgments or
settlements or changes to our business practigegred to settle such claims or satisfy any judgimenitigation could result in interpretations
of the law that require us to change our busineastioes or otherwise increase our costs and harrbusiness. We do not maintain insurance
coverage to cover the types of claims that coulddserted. If a successful claim were brought agjais, it could expose us to significant
liability.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual propgrrights, our reputation and brand could be impail and we could lose custome

We regard our trademarks, trade secrets and siimikdtectual property such as our proprietary bankl order processing and fulfillment
code and process as important to our success. Werré¢rademark and copyright law, and trade sqmretection, and confidentiality and/or
license agreements with employees, customers,graramd others to protect our proprietary rights. 8&nnot be certain that we have taken
adequate steps to protect our proprietary riglsiseeally in countries where the laws may not poteir rights as fully as in the United States.
In addition, our proprietary rights may be infrimiger misappropriated, and we could be requiredcar significant expenses to preserve them
In the past we have filed litigation to protect @itellectual property rights. The outcome of sliitbation can be uncertain, and the cost of
prosecuting such litigation may have an adverseanpn our earnings. We have common law trademaskaiell as pending federal tradem
registrations for several marks and several regidtmarks. Even if we obtain approval of such pegdegistrations, the resulting registrations
may not adequately cover our intellectual propertprotect us against infringement by others. Eifectrademark, service mark, copyright,
patent and trade secret protection may not beablaiin every country in which our products and/iees may be made available online. We
also currently own or control a number of Interdemain names, includingww.usautoparts.netwww.autopartswarehouse.cam
www.partstrain.com www.jcwhitney.comwww.AutoMD.conandwww.stylintrucks.comand have invested time and money in the purcbg
domain names and other intellectual property, whigly be impaired if we cannot protect such intéliatproperty. We may be unable to
protect these domain names or acquire or maingévaint domain names in the United States anchier @ountries. If we are not able to
protect our trademarks, domain names or otheréatelal property, we may experience difficultiesarhieving and maintaining brand
recognition and customer loyalty.

If our product catalog database is stolen, misappriated or damaged, or if a competitor is able t@ate a substantially similar catalo
without infringing our rights, then we may lose aimportant competitive advantage.

We have invested significant resources and timmitidl and maintain our product catalog, which igntained in the form of an electro
database, which maps SKUs to relevant product egijiins based on vehicle makes, models and yeardélieve that our product catalog
provides us with an important competitive advantageoth driving traffic to our websites and cortugg that traffic to revenue by enabling
customers to quickly locate the products they meqWWe cannot assure you that we will be able ¢bgot our product catalog from
unauthorized copying or theft or that our prodwtatog will continue to operate adequately, withaoy technological challenges. In addition,
it is possible that a competitor could develop talog or database that is similar to or more commgnsive than ours, without infringing our
rights. In the event our product catalog is damaged stolen, copied or otherwise replicated tmpete with us, whether lawfully or not, we
may lose an important competitive advantage anduosiness could be harmed.

Our e-commerce system is dependent on open-sowfterare, which exposes us to uncertainty and potahliability.

We utilize open-source software such as Linux, AgadlySQL, PHP, Fedora and Perl throughout our preperties and supporting
infrastructure although we have created proprigbaograms. Open-source software is maintained agdaded by a general community of
software developers under various open-sourcedegnncluding the GNU General Public License (“GQPThese developers are under no
obligation to maintain, enhance or provide anydixe updates to this software in the future. Addiélly, under the terms of the GPL and othel
open-source licenses, we may be forced to releathe tpublic sourceede internally developed by us pursuant to swenies. Furthermore,
any of these developers contribute any code ofrstiteeany of the software that we use, we may Ipeged to claims and liability for
intellectual property infringement. A number of kwits are currently pending against third partiesr ¢the ownership rights to the various
components within some opasource software that we use. If the outcome ofett@ssuits is unfavorable, we may be held liabteritellectua
property infringement based on our use of thesa-Gpearce software components. We may also be faocedplement changes to the code-
base for this software or replace this softwarditernally developed or commercially licensedwafe.
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We face exposure to product liability lawsuits.

The automotive industry in general has been sulgegtiarge number of product liability claims doghe nature of personal injuries that
result from car accidents or malfunctions. As driltigtor of auto parts, including parts obtaineéi®eas, we could be held liable for the injury
or damage caused if the products we sell are defeat malfunction. While we carry insurance agapreduct liability claims, if the damages
in any given action were high or we were subjecntdtiple lawsuits, the damages and costs couléekthe limits of our insurance coverage.
If we were required to pay substantial damagesrasudt of these lawsuits, it may seriously harmlmusiness and financial condition. Even
defending against unsuccessful claims could casige imcur significant expenses and result in &dilon of management'’s attention. In
addition, even if the money damages themselvesdatidause substantial harm to our business, thaglano our reputation and the brands
offered on our websites could adversely affectfature reputation and our brand, and could resudt decline in our net sales and profitability.

We rely on key personnel and may need additionakpanel for the success and growth of our business.

Our business is largely dependent on the persdivatseand abilities of highly skilled executivechnical, managerial, merchandising,
marketing, and call center personnel. Competitmrstich personnel is intense, and we cannot agsurthat we will be successful in attract
and retaining such personnel. The loss of any kegyl@yee or our inability to attract or retain otlygralified employees could harm our
business and results of operations.

System failures, including failures due to naturdisasters or other catastrophic events, could preeccess to our websites, which col
reduce our net sales and harm our reputation.

Our sales would decline and we could lose existingotential customers if they are not able to as@r websites or if our websites,
transactions processing systems or network infrestre do not perform to our customers’ satisfactiny Internet network interruptions or
problems with our websites could:

e prevent customers from accessing our webs

» reduce our ability to fulfill orders or bill custars;
» reduce the number of products that we ¢

» cause customer dissatisfaction

» damage our brand and reputati

We have experienced brief computer system intdongtin the past, and we believe they will contitm@ccur from time to time in the
future. Our systems and operations are also vubteeta damage or interruption from a number of sesy including a natural disaster or other
catastrophic event such as an earthquake, typkot@ranic eruption, fire, flood, terrorist attaclkognaputer viruses, power loss,
telecommunications failure, physical and electrdmmeak-ins and other similar events. For example headquarters and the majority of our
infrastructure, including some of our servers,lacated in Southern California, a seismically agtiggion. We also maintain offshore and
outsourced operations in the Philippines, an drehas been subjected to a typhoon and a voleamgtion in the past. In addition, California
has in the past experienced power outages as lagéBmited electrical power supplies and dueaeaent fires in the southern part of the state.
Such outages, natural disasters and similar eveaysrecur in the future and could disrupt the ofi@naof our business. Our technology
infrastructure is also vulnerable to computer \é@gjgphysical or electronic break-ins and similaruptions. Although the critical portions of
our systems are redundant and backup copies argaims&id offsite, not all of our systems and dagafally redundant. We do not presently
have a formal disaster recovery plan in effect @ag not have sufficient insurance for losses thay occur from natural disasters or
catastrophic events. Any substantial disruptionwftechnology infrastructure could cause intelions or delays in our business and loss of
data or render us unable to accept and fulfill@mustr orders or operate our websites in a timelymagror at all.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
Our stock price has been and may continue to beatitd#, which may result in losses to our stockholge

The market prices of technology and e-commerce emiies generally have been extremely volatile anve hecently experienced sharp
share price and trading volume changes. The traaticg of our common stock is likely to be volatiied could fluctuate widely in response to,
among other things, the risk factors describedhism teport and other factors beyond our controhsagfluctuations in the operations or
valuations of companies perceived by investorsstoadmparable to us, our ability to meet analystpeetations, or conditions or trends in the
Internet or auto parts industries.

Since the completion of our initial public offeriing February 2007 through December 29, 2012, tidirig price of our common stock
has been volatile, ranging from a high of $12.61gtwre to a low per share of $1.00. We have adpereenced significant fluctuations in the
trading volume of our common stock. General ecorand political conditions
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unrelated to our performance may also adversescathe price of our common stock. In the pastoWaihg periods of volatility in the market
price of a public company’s securities, securitigss action litigation has often been initiatedeo the inherent uncertainties of litigation, we
cannot predict the ultimate outcome of any sudgditon if it were initiated. The initiation of arguch litigation or an unfavorable result could
have a material adverse effect on our financiabld@mn and results of operation.

Our executive officers and directors own a sign#iat percentage of our stock.

As of December 29, 2012, our executive officers dinelctors and entities that are affiliated witkrhbeneficially owned in the aggreg
approximately 45.1% of our outstanding shares afroon stock. This significant concentration of shammership may adversely affect the
trading price for our common stock because investften perceive disadvantages in owning stoclompanies with controlling stockholders.
Also, these stockholders, acting together, wilabé to significantly influence our management afidirs and matters requiring stockholder
approval including the election of our entire Boafdirectors and certain significant corporatd@tt such as mergers, consolidations or the
sale of substantially all of our assets. As a teshik concentration of ownership could delayedefr prevent others from initiating a potential
merger, takeover or other change in our contranef/these actions would benefit our other stotdéis and us.

Our future operating results may fluctuate and mégil to meet market expectations.

We expect that our revenue and operating resulktseritinue to fluctuate from quarter to quarteeda various factors, many of which
are beyond our control. If our quarterly revenueperating results fall below the expectationsnekstors or securities analysts, the price of
our common stock could significantly decline. Thetbrs that could cause our operating results mtirmee to fluctuate include, but are not
limited to:

» fluctuations in the demand for aftermarket autd9:
* price competition on the Internet or among offlie&ailers for auto part:

« our ability to attract visitors to our websites aimhvert those visitors into customers, includioghte extent based on our ability to
successfully work with different search enginedrive visitors to our website

« our ability to successfully sell our products thghuthirc-party online marketplace

e competition from companies that have longer opegatistories, larger customer bases, greater besudjnition, access to
merchandise at lower costs and significantly gre@sources than we do, like tr-party online market places and our suppli

« our ability to maintain and expand our supplier digdribution relationships without significant peiincreases or reduced service
levels;

e our ability to borrow funds under our credit fagjli
» the effects of seasonality on the demand for codycts;

» our ability to accurately forecast demand for owduicts, price our products at market rates andtaiai appropriate inventory
levels;

e our ability to build and maintain customer loyal

» our ability to successfully integrate our acqusis;

« infringement actions that could impact the viabibif the auto parts aftermarket or portions ther
» the success of our bre-building and marketing campaigr

* our ability to accurately project our future revespearnings, and results of operatic

* government regulations related to use of the Ietiefior commerce, including the application of exigttax regulations to Internet
commerce and changes in tax regulatis

» technical difficulties, system downtime or Interiedwnouts

» the amount and timing of operating costs and cegiiaenditures relating to expansion of our busineperations and
infrastructure; an

» the impact of adverse economic conditions on retdés, in genere
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If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting or comply witlsection 404 of the Sarban-Oxley Act o
2002, we may not be able to accurately report dnahcial results or prevent fraud, and our stockipe could decline.

While management has concluded that our internatols over financial reporting were effective december 29, 2012, we have in
the past, and could in the future, have a signitickficiency or material weakness in our contrrdinancial reporting or fail to comply with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.dffail to properly maintain an effective systenirgérnal control over financial reporting, it
could impact our ability to prevent fraud or toussour financial statements in a timely manner phasents fairly our financial condition and
results of operations. The existence of any suditidacies or weaknesses, even if cured, may &iad to the loss of investor confidence in the
reliability of our financial statements, could haoor business and negatively impact the tradingepof our common stock. Such deficiencies
or material weaknesses may also subject us to l@ygwestigations and other penalties.

Our charter documents could deter a takeover effavhich could inhibit your ability to receive an gaisition premium for your shares.
Provisions in our certificate of incorporation dmdaws could make it more difficult for a third pyato acquire us, even if doing so wol
be beneficial to our stockholders. Such provisimetude the following:

» our Board of Directors are authorized, without petockholder approval, to create and issue predestock which could be used to
implement an-takeover devices

» advance notice is required for director nomination®r proposals that can be acted upon at stddkhoneetings

« our Board of Directors is classified such thatabmembers of our board are elected at one tinmiglwmay make it more difficult
for a person who acquires control of a majoritypof outstanding voting stock to replace all or aamity of our directors

» stockholder action by written consent is prohibiéadept with regards to an action that has beeroapgd by the Boarc

» special meetings of the stockholders are permitdzk called only by the chairman of our Board @kbtors, our chief executive
officer or by a majority of our Board of Directol

» stockholders are not permitted to cumulate theiesdor the election of directors; a

» stockholders are permitted to amend certain prongsdf our bylaws only upon receiving at least 8% of the votes entitled to be
cast by holders of all outstanding shares thenledtio vote generally in the election of directarsting together as a single cla

We do not intend to pay dividends on our commonckto

We currently intend to retain any future earningd do not expect to pay any cash dividends on apital stock for the foreseeable
future.

General Market and Industry Risk

Economic conditions have had, and may continue tavie an adverse effect on the demand for aftermakeato parts and could adverse
affect our sales and operating results.

We sell aftermarket auto parts consisting of bauly @ngine parts used for repair and maintenanc&rpence parts used to enhance
performance or improve aesthetics and accessbtiae¢sicrease functionality or enhance a vehicle&dres. Demand for our products has bee
and may continue to be adversely affected by géeemnomic conditions. In declining economies, eoners often defer regular vehicle
maintenance and may forego purchases of nonedsesitiarmance and accessories products, whichesudtrin a decrease in demand for autc
parts in general. Consumers also defer purchasesvoi/ehicles, which immediately impacts perforneaparts and accessories, which are
generally purchased in the first six months of hiele’s lifespan. In addition, during economic ddwms some competitors may become more
aggressive in their pricing practices, which woadhVersely impact our gross margin and could carge Ifluctuations in our stock price.
Certain suppliers may exit the industry which mapact our ability to procure parts and may advgrsepact gross margin as the remaining
suppliers increase prices to take advantage ofddrdompetition.
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Vehicle miles driven, vehicle accident rates andumance companies’ willingness to accept a variefytypes of replacement parts in the
repair process have fluctuated and may decreaseictvisould result in a decline of our revenues anégatively affect our results of
operations.

We and our industry depend on the number of vehidles driven, vehicle accident rates and insuraeepanies’ willingness to accept
a variety of types of replacement parts in the irggacess. Decreased miles driven, caused ingyanigher gas prices, reduce the number of
accidents and corresponding demand for crash ertisteduce the wear and tear on vehicles withr@gponding reduction in demand for
vehicle repairs and replacement or hard partriEamers continue to drive less in the future, @salt of higher gas prices or otherwise, our
sales may decline and our business and finanaalteemay suffer.

The success of our business depends on the contirgrewth of the Internet as a retail marketplace @he related expansion of the
Internet infrastructure.

Our future success depends upon the continued ale$pread acceptance and adoption of the Intesn@tvahicle to purchase products.
If customers or manufacturers are unwilling to tieelnternet to conduct business and exchangenaftion, our business will fail. The
commercial acceptance and use of the Internet roagantinue to develop at historical rates, or maydevelop as quickly as we expect. The
growth of the Internet, and in turn the growth af business, may be inhibited by concerns ovempyiand security, including concerns
regarding “viruses” and “worms,” reliability issuagsing from outages or damage to Internet infuastire, delays in development or adoption
of new standards and protocols to handle the desmafiticreased Internet activity, decreased adaitigsiincreased government regulation,
and taxation of Internet activity. In addition, dursiness growth may be adversely affected if tierhet infrastructure does not keep pace wit
the growing Internet activity and is unable to supphe demands placed upon it, or if there is@delpy in the development of enabling
technologies and performance improvements.

We may be subject to liability for sales and othaxes and penalties, which could have an adverdeafon our business.

We currently collect sales or other similar taxaly@n the shipment of goods to the states of Galif, Kansas, Virginia, lllinois and
Ohio. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that vengbose only connection with customers in a stalyyisommon carrier or the U.S. mail ¢
free from state-imposed duties to collect salesumsdtaxes in that state. However, states couldtedepose additional income tax obligations
or sales tax collection obligations on out-of-staenpanies such as ours, which engage in or feilinline commerce, based on their
interpretation of existing laws, including the Seime Court ruling, or specific facts relating to fisales tax obligations are successfully
imposed upon us by a state or other jurisdictiomcauld be exposed to substantial tax liabilit@spgast sales and penalties and fines for fa
to collect sales taxes. We could also suffer deg@aales in that state or jurisdiction as thecéffe cost of purchasing goods from us increase
for those residing in that state or jurisdiction.

In addition, a number of states, as well as the Gd@gress, have been considering various inigatthat could limit or supersede the
Supreme Court’s apparent position regarding saldsuae taxes on Internet sales. If any of thesativies are enacted, we could be required t
collect sales and use taxes in additional statéanrevenue could be adversely affected. Furtbegnthe U.S. Congress has not yet extende
a moratorium, which was first imposed in 1998 bag Bince expired, on state and local governmehifityato impose new taxes on Internet
access and Internet transactions. The impositiostditg and local governments of various taxes Upt@nnet commerce could create
administrative burdens for us as well as substi@ntrapair the growth of e-commerce and adversélga our revenue and profitability. Since
our service is available over the Internet in nuldtistates, these jurisdictions may require usiadify to do business in these states. If we fz
qualify in a jurisdiction that requires us to dq & could face liabilities for taxes and penalties

Security threats to our IT infrastructure could exjse us to liability, and damage our reputation abdsiness

It is essential to our business strategy that echiology and network infrastructure remain seamabis perceived by our customers tc
secure. Despite security measures, however, amponetnfrastructure may be vulnerable to cyber&itsaby hackers and other security threat:
As a leading online source for automotive afterreaigarts and repair information, we may face cyditaeks that attempt to penetrate our
network security, including our data centers, toosage or otherwise disable our network of websites online marketplaces, misappropriate
our or our customers’ proprietary information, whimay include personally identifiable informati@m,cause interruptions of our internal
systems and services. If successful, any of thitseka could negatively affect our reputation, dgenaur network infrastructure and our abi
to sell our products, harm our relationship witlstomers that are affected and expose us to findradidity.

If we do not respond to technological change, ouelgites could become obsolete and our financialfesssand conditions could be advers
affected.

We maintain a network of websites which requirdsstantial development and maintenance efforts eaails significant technical and
business risks. To remain competitive, we mustinastto enhance and improve the responsivenessjduality and features of our websites.
The Internet and the e-commerce industry are ctexiaed by rapid technological change, the emergeific
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new industry standards and practices and changasstomer requirements and preferences. Theref@repay be required to license emerging
technologies, enhance our existing websites, dpvadav services and technology that address thedsirgly sophisticated and varied neec
our current and prospective customers, and addptimological advances and emerging industry agdlatory standards and practices in a
cost-effective and timely manner. Our ability tonan technologically competitive may require substd expenditures and lead time and our
failure to do so may harm our business and resfilbperations.

Existing or future government regulation could expe us to liabilities and costly changes in our bsss operations and could redu
customer demand for our products and services.

We are subject to federal and state consumer pgimtdaws and regulations, including laws protegtihe privacy of customer nguublic
information and regulations prohibiting unfair agheceptive trade practices, as well as laws andatguos governing businesses in general an
the Internet and e-commerce and certain envirorshéaws. Additional laws and regulations may bepdd with respect to the Internet, the
effect of which on e-commerce is uncertain. Thesesimay cover issues such as user privacy, spyavaréhe tracking of consumer activities,
marketing e-mails and communications, other adsiagiand promotional practices, money transfeisiny, content and quality of products
and services, taxation, electronic contracts ahdratommunications, intellectual property rightsd énformation security. Furthermore, it is
not clear how existing laws such as those goverisisiges such as property ownership, sales and t@atkes, trespass, data mining and
collection, and personal privacy apply to the In&trand esommerce. To the extent we expand into internatioraakets, we will be faced wi
complying with local laws and regulations, somevbich may be materially different than U.S. lawsl aegulations. Any such foreign law or
regulation, any new U.S. law or regulation, orititerpretation or application of existing laws aedulations to the Internet or other online
services or our business in general, may have arfabadverse effect on our business, prospecisnéial condition and results of operations
by, among other things, impeding the growth ofltiternet, subjecting us to fines, penalties, darmagether liabilities, requiring costly
changes in our business operations and practindgealucing customer demand for our products andces. We do not maintain insurance
coverage to cover the types of claims or liab#itiat could arise as a result of such regulation.

We may be affected by global climate change ordwal, regulatory, or market responses to such chang

The growing political and scientific sentimenthi&t global weather patterns are being influencethtrieased levels of greenhouse gase:
in the earth’s atmosphere. This growing sentimedtthe concern over climate change have led tsligie and regulatory initiatives aimed at
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. For exampleogeats that would impose mandatory requiremengreanhouse gas emissions contint
be considered by policy makers in the United Stdtaws enacted that directly or indirectly affear suppliers (through an increase in the cos
of production or their ability to produce satisfagt products) or our business (through an impaatuwminventory availability, cost of sales,
operations or demand for the products we sell)dcadiersely affect our business, financial condijtr@sults of operations and cash flows.
Significant increases in fuel economy requirementsew federal or state restrictions on emissidresabon dioxide that may be imposed on
vehicles and automobile fuels could adversely affieenand for vehicles, annual miles driven or thadlpcts we sell or lead to changes in
automotive technology. Compliance with any new orerstringent laws or regulations, or stricteriiptetations of existing laws, could require
additional expenditures by us or our suppliers. @ability to respond to changes in automotive tetbgy could adversely impact the demand
for our products and our business, financial caojtresults of operations or cash flows.

The United States government may substantially e&se border controls and impose restrictions onss-toorder commerce that may
substantially harm our busines:

We purchase a substantial portion of our products fforeign manufacturers and other suppliers whwee products internationally.
Restrictions on shipping goods into the United &&tdtom other countries pose a substantial riskutdousiness. Particularly since the terrorist
attacks on September 11, 2001, the United Stateerigment has substantially increased border slamei and controls. If the United States
were to impose further border controls and resbnst, impose quotas, tariffs or import duties, é&se the documentation requirements
applicable to cross border shipments or take atbéons that have the effect of restricting thevflof goods from other countries to the United
States, we may have greater difficulty acquiringiouentory in a timely manner, experience shippietays, or incur increased costs and
expenses, all of which would substantially harm lmusiness and results of operations.

| TEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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IT EM2. PROPERTIES

As of December 29, 2012, the square footage ofemsed and owned office and warehouse space waB08638nd 347,000, respectively.
Our corporate headquarters and primary distributEmters are located in Carson, California and LlaS3d#inois, respectively, in
approximately 437,000 square feet of office andelwvause space. We have a 159,000 square feet digtnilzenter in Chesapeake, Virginia. In
January 2013, our lease expired on our 61,000 edeat of warehouse space in Independence, Ohiwvarade currently on a month-to-month
lease. We lease approximately 43,000 square feaffioé space in the Philippines.

In September 2011, we entered into a subleaseragrédor the leasing of approximately 25,000 sqdieet of commercial office space
located in Carson, California. The sublease enaldett consolidate our corporate office space fitoree buildings into one, and will allowed
us to consolidate our California fulfillment opecais into one warehouse, which reduced our montdny expense and improved warehouse
operating efficiencies. For additional informati@yarding our obligations under property leases;Nete 11-Commitments and
Contingencies’of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementfded in Part IV, Item 15 of this report.

IT EM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information set forth under the captiobégal Matters’ in Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Finan&8&dtements, included in
Part IV, Item 15 of this report, is incorporateddie by reference. For an additional discussiopearfain risks associated with legal
proceedings, see the section entitled “Risk Fattordem 1A of this report.

| TEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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P ART Il
| TEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information

Our common stock is being trading on the NASDAQMaldMarket under the symbol “PRTS.” The table betmts forth the high and
low sales prices of our common stock for the peviodicated:

High Low

2012:

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $5.4C $3.4¢

Quarter ended June 30, 2C 4.4% 2.8z

Quarter ended September 29, 2 4.617 2.85

Quarter ended December 29, 2( 3.61 1.71
2011:

Quarter ended April 2, 201 9.8t 6.7

Quarter ended July 2, 20. 8.5t 6.62

Quarter ended October 1, 20 7.8t 4.31

Quarter ended December 31, 2( 6.0C 3.6¢

On March 19, 2013, the last reported sale priceuofcommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Market wa281per share.

Holders
As of March 19, 2013, there were approximately 4,A0lders of record of our common stock.

Stock Performance Graph

The material in this section is not “soliciting neaital,” is not deemed “filed"with the SEC, and shall not be deemed to be incatpd by
reference into any of our filings under the SedesitAct of 1933, as amended, or the Securities&hgd Act of 1934, as amended.

The following graph shows an annual comparisoreftbtal cumulative returns of an investment of(sitOcash on December 31, 2007,
in (i) our common stock, (i) the Morgan Stanleychiaology Index, (iii) the S&P 500 Retail Index afid NASDAQ Composite Index, in each
case through December 29, 2012. The comparisahg igraph are required by the SEC and are notdetkto forecast or be indicative of the
possible future performance of our common stocle gifaph assumes that all dividends have been stgéto date, we have not declared
dividends).
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Dividend Policy

No dividends were paid during the fifty-two weeksled December 29, 2012. We currently intend tarretay future earnings to finance
the growth and development of our business, andamgot anticipate that we will declare or pay aagtcdividends on our common stock in
the foreseeable future. In April 2012, the Compamytain of its wholly-owned domestic subsidiadesl JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. entered
into a Credit Agreement that provides for a reuadvcommitment in an aggregate principal amountpotfou$40 million subject to a borrowing
base derived from certain of our receivables, itmgnand property and equipment. The Credit Agregmequires us to obtain a prior written
consent from JPMorgan Chase Bank when we determipay any dividends on or make any distributiothwespect to our common stock.
See'Liquidity and Capital Resourcesin Item 7 of Part Il included in this report forrfher information on the covenants under the secure
credit facility. Any future determination to paystaedividends will be subject to the above restittias well as restrictions under any other
existing indebtedness, at the discretion of ourrBad Directors and will be dependent upon ourfiicial condition, results of operations,
capital requirements, and other factors the Boamir@ctors deems relevant.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
We did not repurchase any of our outstanding ecagturities during the most recent quarter covbyettis report.
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| TEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial information asaofd for the dates and periods indicated have beegwved from our audited consolidated
financial statements. The information set fortholaels not necessarily indicative of results of feteperations, and should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Asédyof Financial Condition and Results of Operatidn Part Il, Iltem 7 of this report and
our consolidated financial statements and relatgdsnincluded elsewhere in this report (in thousasgcept per share data).

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks Year Ended
Ended Ended Ended Ended December 31
December 2¢ December 31 January 1, January 2,
2011 2010 2008
2012 2011 (“fiscal year (“fiscal yeai (“calendar
(“fiscal year (“fiscal year year
20127 1) 2011") @ 2010") @ 2009 2008")
Consolidated Statements of Operations Date
Net sales $ 304,01 $ 327,07. $262,27 $176,28¢ $ 153,42
Cost of sale: 212,37¢ 220,07. 172,66¢ 112,41! 100,86
Gross profit 91,63¢ 107,00( 89,60¢ 63,87 52,55¢
Operating expense
Marketing 51,41¢ 55,78t 38,751 23,41¢ 22,96
General and administrati 19,857 31,96! 28,62¢ 19,64( 18,23¢
Fulfillment 22,26 19,16¢ 14,94¢ 11,437 9,11¢
Technology 6,27¢ 7,27¢ 5,90z 4,467 3,64
Amortization of intangible asse 1,18¢ 3,67: 2,80¢ 661 4,95¢
Impairment loss on goodwi 18,85/ — — — 4,43(
Impairment loss on property and equipm 1,96( — — — —
Impairment loss on intangible ass 5,618 5,13¢ — — 18,93¢
Total operating expens 127,42¢ 122,99! 91,03 59,62« 82,28
(Loss) income from operatiol (35,790 (15,995 (1,429 4,24¢ (29,729
Other (expense) income, r (1,125 (659) (280) 191 1,00(
(Loss) income before income tax (36,915 (16,649 (1,709¢) 4,44( (28,729
Income tax (benefit) provisic (937) (1,512 12,21¢ 3,122 (11,827)
Net (loss) incom $ (35979 $ (15,13) $(13,92¢ $ 1,317 $ (16,90¢)
Basic net (loss) income per shi $ (11 $ (050 $ (046 $ 0.04 $ (0.59)
Diluted net (loss) income per sh $ (11 $ (050 $ (046 $ 0.04 $ (0.59)
Shares used in computation of basic net (loss)iacper shar 30,81¢ 30,54¢ 30,26¢ 29,85 29,84’
Shares used in computation of diluted net (loss)nime per shar 30,81¢ 30,54¢ 30,26¢ 30,80¢ 29,84’

@ Fiscal year 2012 included restructuring costs o6 $fillion related to severance charges incurregltdueduction in workforce from the

closure of our call center in La Salle, Illina

Fiscal year 2011 included acquisition and integratiosts of $7.4 million related to our WAG acafinsi.

During fiscal year 2010, the net sales of $39.1ioniland the net loss of $6.0 million of WAG sintbe acquisition date of August 12,
2010 were included in the consolidated statemenpefations. We recognized $3.1 million of acgigsitand integration related costs in
fiscal year 2010. Also, the recognition of $13.8liom valuation allowance for deferred income tasets was included in fiscal year
2010. The total valuation allowance recorded dutireggyear was $18.3 million, of which $4.7 milliams recorded as a reduction to the
value of the acquired deferred tax assets of WA®Bned as part of the purchase accounting for W

@
®
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December 2¢ December 31 December 31
January 1, January 2,
2012 2011 2011 2010 2008

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢
Cash and cash equivale $ 1,03( $ 10,33t $ 17,59 $ 26,25! $ 3247
Working capital® (4,027%) 8,66¢ 19,17¢ 42,04¢ 36,01:
Total asset® 88,87" 142,21¢ 153,53 104,61- 90,43(
Revolving loan payabl 16,22: — — — —
Current portion of lon-term debt — 6,25( 6,12¢ — —
Long-term debt, net of current portic — 11,66: 18,06( — —
Stockholder' equity 27,64« 60,92« 72,80« 82,68: 77,52

@ As of December 31, 2011, January 1, 2011 and Ja@y&010, excluded $2.1 million, $4.1 million a4.3 million, respectively, of
investments which were reclassified to long-terra thuilliquidity in the market. Additionally, caléiar year 2008 excluded $6.5 million
of the same investmen

@ As of December 29, 2012, December 31, 2011 andadpriy 2011, included a deferred income tax asalemtion allowance of $36.9
million, $22.8 million and $18.3 million, respeatly, that is netted against the total ass

| TEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Cautionary Statement

You should read the following discussion and arialiysconjunction with our consolidated financigdtements and the related notes
thereto contained in Part IV, Item 15 of this rép@ertain statements in this report, includindesteents regarding our business strategies,
operations, financial condition, and prospectsfaneard-looking statements. Use of the words “aptites,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,”
“expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,“predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,” “would”, “will likely continue,” “will likely result”

and similar expressions that contemplate futur@esvaay identify forward-looking statements.

The information contained in this section is nabaplete description of our business or the rigisoaiated with an investment in our
common stock. We urge you to carefully review aadsider the various disclosures made by us inréipiert and in our other reports filed with
the SEC, which are available on the SEC’s websitdtp://www.sec.gov. The section entitled “Riskcias” set forth in Part I, Item 1A of this
report, and similar discussions in our other SHi@d$, describe some of the important factors,sriskd uncertainties that may affect our
business, results of operations and financial dmrdand could cause actual results to differ nialigrfrom those expressed or implied by th
or any other forward-looking statements made bgruzn our behalf. You are cautioned not to placguarreliance on these forward-looking
statements, which are based on current expectaimhseflect management’s opinions only as of tite thereof. We do not assume any
obligation to revise or update forward-looking staents. Finally, our historic results should noviesved as indicative of future performance.

Overview

We are one of the largest online providers of afteket auto parts, including body parts, enginéspand performance parts and
accessories. Our user-friendly websites providéotoers with a broad selection of SKUs, with dethipeoduct descriptions and photographs.
Our proprietary product database maps our SKUsddyzt applications based on vehicle makes, matalsyears. We principally sell our
products to individual consumers through our neknafrwebsites and online marketplaces. Our flagslepsites are located at
www.autopartswarehouse.cqgmvww.partstrain.comwww.jcwhitney.comwww.stylintrucks.comwww.AutoMD.conand our corporate
website is located atww.usautoparts.netWe believe our strategy of disintermediatingtifaglitional auto parts supply chain and selling
products directly to customers over the Internietwed us to more efficiently deliver products to @ustomers while generating higher margins

Our History. We were formed in Delaware in 1995 as a distdbof aftermarket auto parts and launched our fedbsite in 2000. We
rapidly expanded our online operations, increatiieghumber of SKUs sold through our e-commerce odtvwadding additional websites,
improving our Internet marketing proficiency androoencing sales in online marketplaces. AdditionatyAugust 2010, through our
acquisition of WAG, we expanded our product-lined ancreased our customer reach in the DIY autolaalrid off-road accessories market.
As a result, our business has grown since 200®&rgéng net sales of $304.0 million for fiscal yeaded December 29, 2012.

International Operationsln April 2007, we established offshore operatianghie Philippines. Our offshore operations allowiaiaccess
workforce with the necessary technical skills atgmificantly lower cost than comparably experiehteS.-based professionals. Our offshore
operations are responsible for a majority of oubsite development, catalog management, and back
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office support. Our offshore operations also hausemain call center. We had 945 employees in thigpines as of December 29, 2012. In
January 2013, we laid off 163 employees in theifiles which reduced our workforce to 782 in thdippines (for additional details, refer
“Note 16-Subsequent Eventsf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemént¢fyded in Part IV, Item 15 of this report). Indition to our
operations in the Philippines, we have a Canadiasidiary to facilitate sales of our products im@da; the subsidiary has no distribution
center or employees. We also ship parts directiyanada and through a freight forwarding partnesughout the world. In 2012, we shipped
auto parts to over 160 different countries. Weedaithat the cost advantages of our offshore dpesaprovide us with the ability to grow our
business in a cost-effective manner.

AcquisitionsFrom time to time, we may acquire certain busingssebsites, domain names, or other assets. In 2@8ompleted the
acquisition of the assets of a small website apddlated domain names which further expanded ahdreed our product offering and our
ability to reach more customers. In the first geladf 2010, we completed two additional website doshain name asset acquisitions, which
increased our net sales and internet traffic. Igust 2010, Go Fido, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiafrpurs, completed the purchase of all of
the outstanding capital stock of Automotive Spegidlccessories and Parts, Inc. and its wholly-owsglsidiary Whitney Automotive Group,
Inc. (referred to herein as “WAG”). WAG’s Midwestdility expanded our distribution network and therainandise WAG offers extended our
go-to market product-lines into all terrain vehg;leecreational vehicles and motorcycles, as vegiravides us with deep product knowledge
into niche segments like Jeep, Volkswagen and &utkis expansion of our product line increasedomstomer reach in the DIY automobile
and off-road accessories market. Related to the Vaéduisition, the Company has incurred acquisiéiod integration related costs of $7.4
million and $3.1 million for the fiscal year 2010ch2010, respectively. No significant integratiarsis were incurred subsequent to
December 31, 2011. For additional information, ‘déate 5 — Business Combinatiorsf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
included in Part IV, Item 15 of this report. We maysue additional acquisition opportunities in fileire to increase our share of the
aftermarket auto parts market or expand our prodifetings.

To understand revenue generation through our nktefog-commerce websites, we monitor several keyrtmss metrics, including the
following:

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 20112
Unique Visitors (millions} 153.¢ 165.¢ 114.2
Total Number of Orders (thousant 2,42 2,71 1,78¢
Average Order Valu $ 114: $ 121.¢ $ 116.¢
Revenue Captut 83.% 81.%% 83.2%

Visitors do not include traffic from media propexi(e.g. AutoMD)
Fiscal year 2010 excluded metrics from WAG (acqlireAugust 2010)

Unique Visitors:A unique visitor to a particular website representser with a distinct IP address that visits gaaticular website. We
define the total number of unique visitors in aggivmonth as the sum of unique visitors to eachuofaebsites during that month. We measure
unique visitors to understand the volume of tratffi@ur websites and to track the effectivenesmuofonline marketing efforts. The number of
unique visitors has historically varied based esmumber of factors, including our marketing actedtiand seasonality. We believe an increa
unique visitors to our websites will result in aicriease in the number of orders. We seek to inerdesnumber of unique visitors to our
websites by attracting repeat customers and impgosearch engine marketing and other internet niagkactivities. During fiscal year 2012,
our unique visitors decreased by 7.1%. We expedirds in our unique visitors to continue in thettsvelve months as we address the
challenges we are experiencing from changes seagihes have made to the formulas, or algorithha,they use to optimize their search
results, as described in further detail under “—dtxiwe Summary” below.

Total Number of OrdersiVe monitor the total number of orders as an indicaf future revenue trends. During fiscal year2Qbtal
number of orders was down by 10.7% due to the dser& unique visitors combined with overall insecompetition. We expect the
downward trend in the total number of orders toticare over the next twelve months due to contindeclines in unique visitors and increasec
competition. We recognize revenue associated withrder when the products have been deliveredstens with our revenue recognition

policy.

Average Order ValueAverage order value represents our net sales ¢acagorders basis for a given period of time didithy the total
number of orders recorded during the same perididngf. During fiscal year 2012, our average orddug decreased by 6.2%. We expect this
trend to continue in the next twelve months prifyatiie to increased competition, as describediithén detail under Executive Summaty
below. We seek to increase the average order eal@emeans of increasing net sales. Average oali@es/vary depending upon a number of
factors, including the components of our produétririg, the order volume in certain online salearstels, macr@conomic conditions, and t
competition online.
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Revenue CapturdRevenue capture is the amount of actual dollaesmed after taking into consideration returns, itreakd declines and
product fulfilment. During fiscal year 2012, owevenue capture increased by 2.2% to 83.9% compau@tl 7% in fiscal year 2011. The
increase in revenue capture was due to lower reteradit card declines and product fulfillmenfigtal year 2012 compared to fiscal year
2011. We expect our revenue capture level to stiapame in the next twelve months as we continirapicove our customers’ purchase
experience.

Executive Summary

For fiscal year 2012, the Company generated nes gdl$304.0 million, compared with $327.1 millifam fiscal year 2011, representini
decrease of 7.0%. Net loss for fiscal year 2012 $@&80 million, or $1.17 per share. This compaoes het loss of $15.1 million, or $0.50 per
share, for fiscal year 2011. We generated AdjusR'DA (EBITDA plus current year’s share-based cemgation expense, impairment
losses, loss on debt extinguishment, legal cofterto intellectual property rights, and restauictg costs) of $9.4 million in fiscal year 2012
compared to $16.3 million in fiscal year 2011. Astpd EBITDA is presented because such measuredshysrating agencies, securities
analysts, investors and other parties in evaludatiegCompany. It should not be considered, howeasean alternative to operating income, as
an indicator of the Company’s operating performances an alternative to cash flows, as measunbe Company’s overall liquidity, as
presented in the Company’s consolidated finantséments. Further, the Adjusted EBITDA measurevshimr the Company may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures used bgotompanies. Refer to the table presented beloveémnciliation of net loss to Adjusted
EBITDA.

Total revenues decreased compared to the sama per2011 due to our decreased online sales. Qimeogales, which include our e-
commerce, online marketplace sales channels amkeadvertising, contributed 91.8% of total revesjuand our offline sales, which consist of
our Kool-Vue™ and wholesale operations, contribi@e2%o of total revenues. Our online sales decrehgé&?8.8 million, or 9.3%, to
$279.1 million compared to $307.9 million in fisgedar 2011. Our offline sales performed well thriooigt the year.

Like most e-commerce retailers, our success depamdsir ability to attract online consumers to wabsites and convert them into
customers in a cogtffective manner. Historically, marketing througtasch engines provided the most efficient oppotyuioi reach millions o
on-line auto part buyers. We are included in seegshlts through paid search listings, where welmse specific search terms that will result
in the inclusion of our listing, and algorithmicasehes that depend upon the searchable contentramebsites. In fiscal year 2012, we
decreased the amount we spent on paid searclgfisas we have determined that it does not genamaiéficient amount of revenues to justify
the expense. Algorithmic listings cannot be pureldasnd instead are determined and displayed sojedyset of formulas utilized by the sea
engine. We have had a history of success with earch engine marketing techniques, which gave ifi@rent websites preferred positions in
search results. But search engines, like Googkeseaeheir algorithms from time to time in an atfErto optimize their search results. Since
2011, Google has released changes to Google’shsezaults ranking algorithm aimed to lower the rahkertain sites and return other sites
near the top of the search results based uporuléygof the particular site as determined by QeoGoogle made additional updates
throughout fiscal year 2012. We were negativelyaotpd by the changes in methodology for how Godiglelayed or selected our different
websites for customer search results. This redooednique visitor count which adversely affected financial results for fiscal year 2012.
Our unique visitor count decreased by 11.7 millimn7.1%, for fiscal year 2012 to 153.9 million gueé visitors compared to 165.6 million
unique visitors in fiscal year 2011. We believewsare affected by these search engine algorithmgegeadue to the use of our product catalog
across multiple websites. To address this issuareeonsolidating to a significantly smaller numbgwebsites to ensure unique catalog
content. As we are significantly dependent upomcteangines for our website traffic, if we are uleaio attract unique visitors, our business
and results of operations will be harmed.

Barriers to entry in the automotive aftermarketusidy are low, and current and new competitorslaanch websites at a relatively low
cost. We experienced significant competitive pres$wom certain of our suppliers as they are nolingetheir products online. Since our
suppliers have access to merchandise at very It cihey were able to sell products at lower graned maintain higher gross margins, thus
our financial results were negatively impactedtuy increased level of competition. Total ordersfiggal year 2012 went down by 10.7% to
2.4 million compared to 2.7 million for fiscal ye2011 and our average order value went down by, $7.6.2%, for fiscal year 2012 to $114.3
compared to $121.8 in fiscal year 2011 as a reduticreased pricing competition. Our current anteptial customers may decide to purchase
directly from our suppliers. Continuing increasednpetition from our suppliers that have accesgaduymrcts at lower prices than us could re
in reduced sales, lower operating margins, redpceefitability, loss of market share and diminishwdnd recognition. In addition, some of our
competitors have used and may continue to use sgjgeepricing tactics. We expect that competitioh fwrther intensify in the future as
Internet use and online commerce continue to growdwide. We are taking a number of steps during2® attempt to reduce the selling
prices of our products while increasing marginsichlare discussed below.
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Total expenses increased compared to the samelper&®11. Our expenses primarily consist of dimgts associated with procuring
parts from suppliers and delivering products ta@mers, which include direct product costs, outlibfraight and shipping costs, warehouse
supplies and warranty costs, advertising expemggseciation and amortization expense and persaosét. Our personnel costs, which
consist of compensation, benefits and payroll eelafixes, and are primarily a function of our headt, decreased in fiscal year 2012
compared to fiscal year 2011. Our employees agtiaeof fiscal year 2012 decreased to 1,370 compargé21 at the end of fiscal year 2011.
Our employees in the Philippines decreased to 9#tteaend of fiscal year 2012 compared to 1,0G6a@end of fiscal year 2011. In addition,
our headcount decreased in 2012 due to the clofunar call center operations in La Salle, lllindis January 2013, as part of the Company’s
initiatives to reduce labor costs and improve ofegeefficiencies in response to the challengahémarketplace and general market
conditions, we reduced our workforce to a total d94 employees (for additional details, refetNote 16-Subsequent Eventef the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Rartem 15 of this report). If the downward tremmdour revenues and net loss continue
longer than twelve months from the end of fiscalry2012, we may be required to further reduce @i costs. Total expenses increased
during the fiscal year 2012 compared to the samieg@ 2011 primarily due to impairment chargesareled on goodwill and property and
equipment of $18.9 million and $1.9 million, restreely, during the fourth quarter of 2012, resuitimom adverse events related to the
Company’s overall financial performance and highepreciation and amortization expense of $2.5 onillielated to software deployments.
These increases were partially offset by the dserearestructuring costs of $6.7 million, loweredit costs resulting from the reduced reve
in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 201d lawer amortization of intangible assets due ttaie acquired intangible assets that were
fully amortized.

Overall, we expect the downward trend in our rewesnand net loss to continue in the next twelve mmoptimarily due to the factors
mentioned above. This trend could severely impactiquidity as we may not be able to provide pesitash flows from operations in orde
meet our working capital requirements. We may rtedzbrrow additional funds from our credit faciliyhich under certain circumstances r
not be available, sell assets or seek equity oitiaddl debt financing in the future. Refer‘taquidity and Capital Resourcessection below
for additional details. There can be no assuramaewe would be able to raise such additional fivamor engage in such asset sales on
acceptable terms, or at all. If our expected downdvireend in revenues and net loss continues fagdothan we expect because our strategi
return to positive sales growth and profitabilitg ot successful or otherwise, and if we are bt t raise adequate additional financing or
proceeds from asset sales to continue to fund ngmiag operations, we will need to defer, reducelioninate significant planned expenditu
restructure or significantly curtail our operatiarssell some of our assets.

Our strategies to return to positive sales growith grofitability are to attempt to accomplish tledldwing in 2013:

* Return to positive e-commerce growth by consolidatiur websites to ensure unique catalog contehpeaviding better content on our
websites thereby improving our ranking on the deagsults. In addition, we intend to build mobilebled websites to take advantage o
shifting consumer behaviors. We expect this todase unique visitors to our website and help us gnr revenues

« Improve the website purchase experience for ouoowers by (1) helping our customers find the poéy want to buy by reducing faili
searches and increasing user purchase confidetycgelling more highly customized accessories iyngaing with manufacturers to
build custom shopping experiences; (3) increasmigrosize across our sites through improved recamlaiéon engines; and
(4) completing the roll out of high quality imagasd videos with emphasis on accessory product liesexpect this to increase the
conversion rate of our visitors to customers, totahber of orders and average order value, andibate to our revenue growt

» Become one of the lowest priced options in the eta&/e will lower our prices by increasing foreigmurced products as they provide
more low-cost products. We expect this to imprdwedonversion rate for our visitors to our webgit®w our revenues and improve our
margins.

» Increase product selection by being the first tokaawith new SKUs. We will seek to add new catégmand expand our existing
specialty categories. We expect this to increasedtal number of orders and contribute to our mereegrowth

» Be the consumer advocate for auto repair througiloMD.com. We will continue to devote resources tt@MD.com and its system
development. We expect this to improve our bramdgaition and contribute to our revenue grov

As we redesign our approach to attracting custotheosigh search engines, we hope to offset mutheofevenue loss by pursuing
revenue opportunities in third-party online markates, a number of which are growing in exces086 per year. Auto parts buyers are
finding third-party online marketplaces to be ayvattractive environment, for many reasons, thefeap being: (1) the security of their
personal information; (2) the ability to easily quamne product offerings from multiple sellers; (@rsparency (consumers can leave positive c
negative feedback about their experience); anta{#yrable pricing. Successful selling in thesedfgarty online marketplaces depends on
product innovation, and strong relationships withiers, both of which we believe to be our casepetencies.
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There are various macro-economic factors thatéutly affect our business, including the impacthaf recession, continued high
unemployment, and other challenging economic camdit These factors decrease the overall disciatyospending of our customers and we
believe it becomes more likely that consumers kéktp their current vehicles longer, thus will nesglacement parts as a result of general
and tear, and perform repair and maintenance iardodkeep those vehicles well maintained. At e time, higher gas prices are negatively
impacting the industry as consumers drive lessraddce the wear and tear on their vehicles. Gikemature of these factors, and the volal
of the overall economic environment, we cannot jgtedhether or for how long these trends will coni, nor can we predict to what degree
these trends will impact us in the future.

The table below reconciles net loss to AdjustedTEB for the periods presented (in thousands):

Fifty -Two Fifty -Two
Weeks Ende Weeks Endet .
Fifty -Two
December 2¢ December 31 Weeks Ende
January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Consolidated
Net loss $ (35,979 $ (15,13) $ (13,92¢)
Interest expense, n 774 96: 371
Income tax provision (benefi (937) (1,512 12,21¢
Amortization of intangible: 1,18¢ 3,67: 2,80¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 15,20¢ 12,69¢ 9,46¢
EBITDA (19,749 682 10,93:
Impairment loss on goodwi 18,85« — —
Impairment loss on property and equipm 1,96( — —
Impairment loss on intangible ass 5,61 5,13¢ —
Sharebased compensatic 1,67 2,607 2,742
Loss on debt extinguishme 36( — —
Legal costs related to intellectual property ric 67 462 2,28¢
Charge for change in revenue recognit — — 411
Restructuring cosi® 64( 7,37¢ 3,12¢
Adjusted EBITDA $  9,41¢ $ 16,26¢ $ 19,49

@ We incurred restructuring costs in the third quaofe2012 related to the Company’s initiatives éduce labor costs and improve

operating efficiencies in response to the challengehe marketplace and general market conditidfesclosed our call center in La Se
lllinois and reduced our workforce resulting in seance charges of approximately $640,000 recomethrketing expense, fulfillment
expense and technology expense of $396,000, $228,8)$16,000, respectively. For fiscal year 20id 2010, related to our WAG
acquisition, the Company incurred acquisition artdgration related costs of $7.4 million and $3illiom, respectively, which were
recorded in general and administrative exper

Basis of Presentation

Net SalesOnline and offline sales represent two differetésahannels for our products. We generate onktasaes primarily through
the sale of auto parts to individual consumersughoour network of e-commerce websites and onliagkatplaces, including online
advertising. E-commerce sales are derived frormetwork of websites, which we own and operate. Eroerce and online marketplace sales
also include inbound telephone sales through diiceater that supports these sales channels. ©nlarketplaces consist primarily of sales of
our products on online auction websites, where allelsrough auctions as well as through storefréima$ we maintain on third-party owned
websites. We sell advertising and sponsorship ipasiton our e-commerce websites to highlight vertands and offer complementary
products and services that benefit our customeatsefising is targeted to specific sections ofwhabsites and can also be targeted to specific
users based on the vehicles they drive. Advertipantners primarily include part vendors, naticenxaiomotive aftermarket brands and
automobile manufacturers. Our offline sales changylesents our distribution of products directicbmmercial customers by selling auto
parts to collision repair shops located in South@alifornia and Virginia. Our offline sales chanaddo includes the distribution of our Kool-
Vue™ mirror line to auto parts distributors natiode: We also serve consumers by operating retdigtostores in Independence, Ohio and
LaSalle, lllinois.
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Cost of SalesCost of sales consists of the direct costs assatiaith procuring parts from suppliers and delirgrproducts to custome!
These costs include product costs, outbound frgigtitshipping costs, warehouse supplies and wgrcasts, partially offset by purchase
discounts and cooperative advertising. Depreciatimhamortization expenses are excluded from dastles and included in marketing,
general and administrative and fulfillment expersgsoted below.

Marketing Expenséviarketing expense consists of online advertisirgnsp internet commerce facilitator fees and otleeetising costs,
as well as payroll and related expenses associateeur marketing catalog, customer service anesspersonnel. These costs are generally
variable and are typically a function of net saMarketing expense also includes depreciation amoktization expense and share-based
compensation expense.

General and Administrative Expen&eneral and administrative expense consists ptiynafradministrative payroll and related expen
payment processing fees, legal and professions] femortization of software and other administeatioests. General and administrative
expense also includes depreciation and amortizatipense and share-based compensation expense.

Fulfilment Expense Fulfillment expense consists primarily of payratid related costs associated with our warehoupéogees and our
purchasing group, facilities rent, building mairdene, depreciation and other costs associatedmwigmtory management and our wholesale
operations. Fulfillment expense also includes shased compensation expense.

Technology Expens&echnology expense consists primarily of payrotl eglated expenses of our information technologgqenel, the
cost of hosting our servers, communications expeand Internet connectivity costs, computer suppattsoftware development. Technology
expense also includes share-based compensationsexpe

Amortization of Intangible Asset#&\mortization of intangibles consists of the anmation expense associated with our definite-lived
intangible assets.

Impairment Loss Impairment loss recorded as a result of impaitntesting performed for goodwill and indefinitedid intangible assets
in accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles — Goodwilll @ther, and long-lived assets, including intalggéssets subject to amortization, in
accordance with ASC 360 Property, Plant and Equippme

Other Income, NeOther income, net consists of miscellaneous incomexpense such as gains/losses from dispositiass#ts, and
interest income comprised primarily of interestam® on investments.

Interest Expenselnterest expense consists primarily of interegie@se on our outstanding loan balances, defeimadding cost
amortization and capital lease interest.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected stateméwiperations data for the periods indicated, exggedsas a percentage of net sales:

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 69.¢ 67.2 65.€
Gross profit 30.1 32.7 34.2
Operating expense
Marketing 16.¢ 17.1 14.¢
General and administrati\ 6.5 9.8 10.€
Fulfillment 72 5.8 5.7
Technology 2.1 2.2 2.3
Amortization of intangible asse 0.4 1.1 1.1
Impairment loss on goodwi 6.2 — —
Impairment loss on property and
equipmen 0.€ — —
Impairment loss on intangible ass 1.€ 1.€ —
Total operating expens: 41.¢ 37.€ 34.7
Loss from operation (11.9) (4.9 (0.5
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December 2¢ December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Other income (expense
Other income, ne — 0.1 —
Interest expens (0.2 (0.3 (0.2
Loss on debt extinguishme (0.7 — —
Total other expens (0.9 (0.2 0.7)
Loss before income tax (22.7) (5.7 (0.7)
Income tax (benefit) provisic 0.9 (0.9 4.7
Net loss (11.9% (4.6% (5.9%
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 29, 2012 Compareith¢oFifty-Two Weeks Ended December 31, 2011
Net Sales and Gross Marg
Fifty -Two Weeks Ended
December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Net sales $ 304,01 $ 327,07. $(23,059) (7.0%
Cost of sale: 212,37! 220,07: (7,699 (3.5%
Gross profi $ 91,63¢ $ 107,00( $(15,367) (14.9%
Gross margir 30.1% 32.1% (2.6)%

Net sales decreased $23.1 million, or 7.0%, faaliyear 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. Ousalets consisted of online sales,
representing 91.8% of the total for fiscal year2(dompared to 94.1% in fiscal year 2011), andrwdfsales, representing 8.2% of the total for
fiscal year 2012 (compared to 5.9% in fiscal ye@tD). The net sales decrease was due to a de€iB&3@ million, or 9.3%, in online sales,
partially offset by a $5.7 million, or 29.8%, inase in offline sales. Online sales decreased pitinthre to a 7.1% reduction in unigue visitors
and a decline in average order value by 6.2%,alroffset by an increase of 2.2% in revenue cagptlihe decrease in unique visitors was du
to the negative impact from customer traffic losaes result of changes search engines have méue atgorithms that they use to optimize
their search results. Also, our revenues were haggimpacted by the increased competition as iilesd in further detail under “Executive
Summary” above. Our offline sales, which consisbwf Kool-Vue™ and wholesale operations, continteeshow solid growth.

Gross profit decreased $15.4 million, or 14.4%fjd0al year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. &roargin rate decreased 2.6% to
30.1% in fiscal year 2012 compared to 32.7% irdligear 2011. Gross margin decreased in fiscal @52 compared to fiscal year 2011 due
to reduced margins from both online and offlineesalGross margin was unfavorably impacted by irer@@ompetition for fiscal year 2012 as
certain of our suppliers are now selling directyconsumers online and an increase in inventoriewiowns of $1.0 million recorded in the
fourth quarter of 2012.

Marketing Expens

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expens $ 51,41¢ $ 55,78t $(4,369) (7.9)%
Percent of net sal¢ 16.% 17.1% (0.2%

Total marketing expense decreased $4.4 millioW,. &8s, for fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal y2@t1. Online advertising expense,
which includes catalog costs, was $21.1 million7 @%, of online sales compared to $28.5 millian9.@%, of online sales for the prior year.
Marketing expense, excluding online advertisings %a0.3 million, or 10.0%, of net sales compare$i2@.3 million, or 8.4%, of net sales for
the prior year. Online advertising expense decrkdse to reduced catalog advertising costs of 88/lfn, and because our more substantial
non-catalog online adverting expenses (includisgng and placement fees paid to commercial antisemgine websites) decreased by $3.9
million. Marketing expenses, excluding online adiséng, increased primarily due to higher deprésiaind amortization expense related to
software deployments of $2.4 million.
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General and Administrative Expense

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expel $ 19,85 $ 31,96 $(12,109) (37.9%
Percent of net sal¢ 6.5% 9.8€% (3-9%

General and administrative expense decreased $1ilfidn, or 37.9%, for fiscal year 2012 comparediszal year 2011. The decrease
was primarily due to the acquisition and integnatielated costs of $7.4 million for fiscal year 20&lated to our WAG acquisition, which w
all recorded in general and administrative expecsmpared to none in fiscal year 2012. Additionadlgpreciation and amortization expense

decreased by $2.4 million compared to the prior ge to certain assets that were fully deprecjatad merchant fees decreased by $1.4
million due to lower online sales compared to therpyear.

Fulfillment Expens:

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expenst $ 22,26 $ 19,16« $ 3,101 16.2%
Percent of net sale 7.2% 5.% 1.4%

Fulfillment expense increased $3.1 million, or 26,Zor fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal yearR0lhe increase was primarily due to
higher depreciation and amortization expense froftware deployments of $2.7 million.

Technology Expense

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Technology expens $ 6,27« $ 7,27¢ $(1,000) (13.9)%
Percent of net sal¢ 2.1% 2.2% (0.)%

Technology expense decreased $1.0 million, or 13f@Bdiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 200echnology expense as a

percentage of net sales remained consistent cothpathe prior year. The decrease was primarilytduewer telephone expenses of $0.7
million in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal y@ar 1.

Amortization of Intangible Asse

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangible asse $ 1,18¢ $ 3,67 $(2,489) (67.6%
Percent of net sale 0.4% 1.1% (0.7%

Amortization of intangibles decreased by $2.5 wiillior 67.6%, for fiscal year 2012 compared todligear 2011. The decrease was
primarily due to certain acquired intangible assie#s were fully amortized.
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Impairment Loss on Goodw

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on goodwi $ 18,85¢ $ — $18,85¢ N/M
Percent of net sale 6.2% — % 6.2%

Impairment loss on goodwill consists of a non-ciasbairment charge during the fourth quarter of 26&2he excess of the carrying
value over the implied fair value of goodwill inetlamount of $18.9 million. See further detaifiMote 1- Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Nature of Operatic” , “Note 3 — Fair Value Measurementsihd“Note 6- Goodwill and Intangible Assetsf the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements included in Rartem 15 of this report and und&Critical Accounting Policies and Estimatesection
below.

Impairment Loss on Property and Equipm

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on property and equipm $ 1,96( $ = $1,96( N/M
Percent of net sale 0.€% — % 0.€%

Impairment loss on property and equipment consisésnon-cash impairment charge during the fouddrtgr of 2012 for the excess of
the carrying value over the fair value of buildisugd internally developed website and software agreknt cost of $1.0 million and
$0.9 million, respectively. See further detail'ote 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policzasl Nature of Operations™Note 3 —Fair
Value Measurementsind“Note 4- Property and Equipmentf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerasided in Part 1V, Item 15 «
this report and undéCritical Accounting Policies and Estimatesection below.

Impairment Loss on Intangible Ass

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on intangible ass $ 5,618 $ 5,13¢ $ 47¢ 9.2%
Percent of net sale 1.€% 1.6% 0.2%

Impairment loss on intangibles consists of a figegr 2012 and 2011 non-cash impairment chargeeteta certain intangible assets in
the amount of $5.6 million and $5.1 million. Seetfier detail inl- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies aradu¥e of Operations’,
“Note 3 — Fair Value Measurementsihd“Note 6- Goodwill and Intangible Assetgf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdisidec
in Part IV, Item 15 of this report and und@ritical Accounting Policies and Estimatesection below.

Total Other Expense, Net

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other expense, n $ 1,12¢ $ 654 $ 471 72.(%
Percent of net sale 0.2% 0.2% 0.1%

Total other expense, net increased $471,000, 684 Xor fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal yeat20rhe increase was primarily due
to the loss on debt extinguishment of $360,00béngecond quarter of 2012 (refer to additionalrimfation in “Note 7 — Borrowingsof the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, incuddart 1V, Item 15 of this repori
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Income Tax Beneti

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Income tax benefi $ 937 $ 1,51 $ (575 (38.0%
Percent of net sale 0.2% 0.5% (0.2%

For fiscal year 2012 and 2011, the effective ta® far the Company was 2.5% and 9.1% respectivdig. Company’s effective tax rate
for fiscal year 2012 differs from the U.S. fedestdtutory rate primarily as a result of the recogddf an increase of $14.1 million valuation
allowance primarily against the increase in the Gany’s NOL's generated as a result of the pre-das bf $36.9 million. The Company’s
effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 differs from tbeS. federal statutory rate primarily as a restithe recording of an increase of $5.7 million of
valuation allowance against the Company’s NOL'segated as a result of pre-tax loss of $16.6 million

Income tax provision (benefit) differs from the amothat would result from applying the federalstary rate as follows (in thousands):

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011

Income tax at U.S. federal statutory rate $ (12,55) $ (5,66))
Sharebased compensatic 38 21
State income tax, net of federal tax ef (2,52¢) (1,629
Tax exempt interes — 3
Foreign tax (27) (10¢)
Other 51 14C
Change in valuation allowan 14,08( 5,72¢
Effective income tax benet $ (937) $ (1,519

In 2012, the effective income tax benefit stemsarily from the reversal of the net deferred incdeeliability resulting from the write
down of goodwill and other intangible assets, draitnpact of the Philippine tax holiday, partiaiiffset by the accrual of withholding taxes
related to potential repatriation of earnings ia Bhilippines (see below). The Company’s Philipgaeholiday was effective through
September 2012. The Company is in the processpiyiag for a one-year extension. Although managene&pects the extension to be
approved based on its discussion with the foreaging authority, the Philippines tax liability hbsen computed assuming no tax holiday on
the post expiration earnings. The impact of thishaliday decreased foreign taxes by $72,000, D™and $182,000 for the fiscal year 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Prior to 2012, the Company treated earnings ofdhsign subsidiaries as permanently invested ihjthiésdiction. As a result, no
additional income tax withholding was provided ba possible future repatriation of these earninghé parent company in prior years.
During fiscal year 2012, based on current year atpeg and future cash flow needs the Company dddiut it could no longer represent that
these funds would be indefinitely reinvested infibreign jurisdictions but that such funds may lkeded for general corporate purposes. As &
result the Company has recorded future withholdixgs which would be due if the funds are requicele repatriated. The Company intends
to continue to pursue all reasonable means toaserés investment in the foreign jurisdictionsladated by future growth in general business
activities or as allowed by the foreign jurisdictsoto avoid incurring the income tax withholdingperse.

As of December 29, 2012, the Company had no méateriacognized tax benefits, interest or penatidsted to federal and state income
tax matters.
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Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 31, 2011 Compareith¢oFifty-Two Weeks Ended January 1, 2011
Net Sales and Gross Marg

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec
December 31

January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Net sales $ 327,07. $262,27 $64,79¢ 24.71%
Cost of sale: 220,07: 172,66¢ 47,40¢ 27.5%
Gross profi $ 107,00( $ 89,60¢ $17,39: 19.4%
Gross margir 32.71% 34.2% (1.5%

Consolidated net sales increased $64.8 millio24o71%, for fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal y2@t0. Excluding $83.4 million of
sales from WAG, the USAP net sales for fiscal 21 were $243.7 million, an increase of 9.2% diseal year 2010 net sales, due to
increases of $19.5 million, or 9.4%, in online sadad $1.0 million, or 6.2%, in offline sales, whitonsist of our Kool-Vue™ and wholesale
operations.

The USAP increase in online sales is primarily ttua $15.6 million, or 9.0%, increase in e-commesales, which resulted from an
increase of 211,007, or 11.8%, in total placed k&den increase of 10.2 million, or 8.9%, in unigisdtors, partially offset by a decrease of
$2.49, or 2.1%, in average order value from figear 2010 to fiscal year 2011. The increases &l fiaced orders and the unique visitors
resulted from increased marketing spend drivindnéigpaid traffic and better content on our websilidgng more organic traffic. The increa
were also attributed to more effective pricing tbetatalog data and a better customer experiéhaeaverage order value declined due to
increased pricing competition and increased sdl&sa@r cost direct sourced products.

Consolidated gross profit increased 19.4% fromafigear 2010 to fiscal year 2011. Consolidated gyroargin declined 1.5% to 32.7%
compared to fiscal year 2010. Excluding the graséitdfrom WAG, USAP gross profit was $80.4 millipan increase of 6.1%, and USAP
gross margin was 33.0% for fiscal year 2011 cong&re34.0% for fiscal year 2010. USAP gross mavgas unfavorably impacted by a shift
from body to engine parts and increased freightesps.

Marketing Expens

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended
December 31

January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expens $ 55,78 $38,75] $17,02¢ 43.9%
Percent of net sale 17.1% 14.€% 2.2%

Marketing expense increased $17.0 million, or 43.8%fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2@cluding $20.7 million of
marketing expense from WAG, the USAP marketing espancreased $4.9 million, or 16.4%, from fisaeéuy2010, primarily due to higher
amortization costs related to software deploymantsan increase in advertising spend which resuitaiyher listing and placement fees paid
to commercial and search engine websites such ag €®ogle and MSN.

General and Administrative Expense

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 31 January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expel $ 31,96 $28,62¢ $ 3,33 11.6%
Percent of net sal¢ 9.8€% 10.€% (1.)%

General and administrative expense increased $lli8mor 11.6%, for fiscal year 2011 compared istél year 2010. Excluding $12.9
million and $22.7 million from WAG for fiscal ye@011 and 2010, respectively, the USAP general dnurastrative expense decreased $3.6
million primarily due to lower legal expense angbriiation and amortization.
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Fulfillment Expens:

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 31 January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expenst $ 19,16¢ $14,94¢ $4,21¢ 28.2%
Percent of net sale 5.% 5.7% 0.2%

Fulfillment expense increased $4.2 million, or 28,2or fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year@®xcluding $3.9 million of
fulfillment expense from WAG, the USAP fulfillmeekpense increased $2.0 million due to an increassaiehouse labor expense in
connection with the WAG integration and higher dsjation and amortization from software deployments

Technology Expense

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 31 January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Technology expens $ 7,27« $ 5,902 $1,37:2 23.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 2.2% 2.2% (0.)%

Technology expense increased $1.4 million, or 23 ¥iscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2@luding $2.3 million of
technology expense from WAG, the USAP technologyeese increased $0.4 million, however, as a peagernif net sales, fiscal year 2011
remained consistent with fiscal year 2010.

Amortization of Intangible Asse

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 31 January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangible: $ 3,67 $ 2,80« $ 86¢ 31.(%
Percent of net sal¢ 1.1% 1.1% — %

Amortization of intangibles increased by $0.9 roiflj or 31.0%, in fiscal year 2011, primarily dueatbull year of amortization expense
the amount of $3.2 million related to the intangibksets acquired in connection with our acqursifoWAG in August 2010.

Impairment Loss on Intangible Ass

We recognized an impairment charge on intangitdetagelated to certain WAG trade names in the atafu$5.1 million. See further
detail in“Note 6- Goodwill and Intangible Assetgif the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdsided in Part 1V, Iltem 15 of this report
and undefCritical Accounting Policies and Estimatesection below.

Other Expense, Net

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 31 January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other expense, n $ (659 $ (280 $ (379 (133.0%
Percent of net sale (0.2% (0.1)% (0.1)%

Other expense, net increased $0.4 million, or 183f6r fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year@Qkimarily due to the interest of
$1.1 million paid in connection with the Compangtedit facility executed in August 2010.
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Income Tax (Benefit) Provisic

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 31 January 1,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Income tax (benefit) provisic $ (1,519 $12,21¢ $(13,73() (112.9%
Percent of net sal¢ (0.5% 4.7% (5.2%

For fiscal year 2010 and 2011, the effective tag far the Company was (715.3)% and 9.1%, respagtiThe Company’s effective tax
rate is significantly higher in fiscal year 201@ththe U.S. federal statutory rate primarily dugh®recognition of a full valuation allowance
against the Company’s net deferred tax assets6$illion. Prior to the acquisition of WAG, the@pany concluded that it was more likely
than not that we would realize the deferred tartss all jurisdictions. However, with the acqtimi of WAG, based largely on the weight of
the combined cumulative threear adjusted loss position, it was determinedithaas more likely than not that the Company waoudd realiz
its net deferred tax assets. Therefore, a valuatfiowance balance of $18.3 million was recordedfatanuary 1, 2011, of which $4.7 million
was recorded against the acquired deferred taxsasS@/AG as of August 12, 2010. In fiscal 201 1aalditional valuation allowance of $5.7
million was recorded to offset the increase inNl@L's , resulting from the Company'’s losses in dis2011. The valuation allowance balance
was $22.8 million at December 31, 2011. The Comjseeijective tax rate for fiscal year 2011 différam the U.S. federal statutory rate
primarily as a result of the recording of the $&iflion valuation allowance.

Income tax (benefit) provision differs from the amothat would result from applying the federalstary rate as follows (in thousands):

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 31 January 1,
2011 2011

Income tax at U.S. federal statutory rate $ (5,66 $ (58))
Sharebased compensatic 21 (93
State income tax, net of federal tax ef (1,629 (759)
Tax exempt interes 3 (8)
Foreign tax (10¢) (210
Non deductible acquisition cos — 25¢
Other 14C 1
Change in valuation allowan 5,72¢ 13,61(
Effective tax provision (benefi $ (1,519 $12,21¢

The Company’s effective tax rate was impacted lopime taxes incurred in foreign and state jurisditti With respect to the income of
its foreign subsidiaries, the Company takes thdéipaghat the earnings of the foreign subsidiades permanently invested in that jurisdiction.
Additionally, the foreign subsidiaries are currgritl a cumulative deficit earning and profits pmsitfor tax purposes. As a result, no additiona
income taxes have been provided on the possib&riafion of these earnings to the parent compé@hg.favorable impact of foreign taxes v
due in large part to a tax holiday in the Philiggnwhich was effective through September 2011ofAke date of filing our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31120ve were in the process of applying for a orer gxtension, which was subsequently
approved and was effective through September 28itf2ough management expected the extension to peapd based on its discussion with
the foreign taxing authority, the Philippines takerwas applied to the earnings after the expmaifche initial tax holiday. The impact of this
tax holiday decreased foreign taxes by $136,00828D0 and $144,000 for fiscal years 2009, 2010281d.,, respectively. The benefit of the
tax holiday on net income (loss) per share (diluteals immaterial for the related years.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had no materracognized tax benefits, interest or penaltidsted to federal and state income
tax matters.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity

During the fifty-two weeks ended December 29, 2@42 funded our operations with cash and cash elpuntsagenerated from
operations, proceeds from sale of investments andredit facility. We had cash and cash equivaleft$1.0 million as of December 29, 20
representing a $9.3 million decrease from $10.8anibf cash and cash equivalents as of Decembe2@ll. The decrease in cash and cash
equivalents was primarily due to payments on actsopayable, capital expenditures, payments onalebnegative cash flows from other
working capital sources, partially offset by
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proceeds from revolving loan payable and net pde&®m sales of our investments. Based on oueatioperating plan, we believe that our
existing cash and cash equivalents, investmengs, ft@vs from operations and debt financing willshgficient to finance our operational cash
needs through at least the next twelve months,igeedy however, that we may decide to augment osin laws from operations and debt
financing with sales of our equity or selected &sea terms that we determine to be satisfactonstd-or example, we are in discussions
regarding possible multiple equity offerings that @expect to close in the near term and from whielewpect to receive $6 million to $9
million of gross proceeds. There can be no assardrmwvever, that we will be able to close any sgoftering in the near term or for those
gross proceeds or at all.

As of December 29, 2012, we had $110,000 in skont-investments, comprised of mutual funds (refénvestment details inNote 2 —
Investmen” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeént¢tided in Part IV, Item 15 of this report). Ouprl 2012 credit facility
provides for a revolving commitment of up to $40limn subject to a borrowing base derived from aierof our receivables, inventory and
property and equipment (see “Debt and Availabler®eing Resources” below).

In May 2011, we filed a shelf registration statet@vering the offer and sale of up to $200 millafrcommon stock with the SEC. The
shelf registration was declared effective by th&€SB August 10, 2011. The terms of any offeringamulr shelf registration statement will be
determined at the time of the offering and disalbigea prospectus supplement filed with the SEC.

Working Capital

As of December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011wotking capital was $(4.0) million and $8.7 milliorespectively. The negative
working capital as of December 29, 2012 is prinyatile result of the current classification of ow6$® million revolving loan payable
compared to our $6.3 million current portion ofdeterm debt as of December 31, 2011. We expedetie of our working capital to be the
same until we significantly reduce or eliminate cewolving loan payable. Our credit facility cortsisf a five-year revolving loan with
available funds of up to $40 million subject toarhowing base derived from certain of our receieabinventory and property and equipment
(see further discussion in “Debt and Available Baring Resources” below). Our revolving loan doesrequire principal payments, however
is classified as current due to certain U.S. GAARuirements (see “Debt and Available Borrowing Rieses” below for further details). The
historical seasonality in our business during tearycan cause cash and cash equivalents, invearidrgccounts payable to fluctuate, resulting
in changes in our working capital.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the key cash floviring from our consolidated statements of cashdléov fiscal year 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively (in thousands):

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,

2012 2011 2011
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi $ (400 $ 10,37¢ $ (1,709
Net cash used in investing activiti (7,179 (11,529 (31,049
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (1,736 (6,200 23,88:
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 9 (149 21¢€
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva $ (9,309 $ (7,260 $ (8,656

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities is primadbmprised of net income (loss), adjusted for noshGactivities such as depreciation anc
amortization expense, amortization of intangibleets impairment losses and share-based compeansapense. These non-cash adjustment:
represent charges reflected in net income (loss) therefore, to the extent that non-cash itemsease or decrease our operating results, ther
will be no corresponding impact on our cash flolst loss adjusted for non-cash adjustments to tipgractivities was $8.2 million (adjusted
for non-cash charges primarily consisting of impent losses of $26.4 million and depreciation andriization expense of $15.2 million) for
the period ended December 29, 2012, compared 6orfliflion (adjusted for non-cash charges primaciysisting of impairment losses of $5.1
million and depreciation and amortization experfsgl@.7 million) for the period ended December3111. After excluding the effects of the
non-cash charges, the primary changes in cash flelaing to operating activities resulted from ges in operating assets and liabilities.
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. Inventory decreased to $42.7 million at December2D2 from $52.2 million at December 31, 2011ultsg in a decrease in
operating assets and reflecting a cash inflow d $8llion for the fifty-two weeks ended Decemb®&r, 2012. We expect the level
of our inventory to continue to decrease over e twelve months due to lower revenues over theesaeriod

. Accounts payable and accrued expenses decrea$88.®million at December 29, 2012 compared to $&llion at
December 31, 2011 resulting in a decrease in dpgrkdbilities and reflecting a cash outflow of4s@ million for the fifty-two
weeks ended December 29, 2012. Accounts payabla@mded expenses decreased primarily due to threak® in accounts
payable of $13.3 million. Accounts payable couletfuate in future periods due to the amount ofreuenues and the related
purchases and the timing of our payme

. Other current liabilities decreased to $4.7 millatrDecember 29, 2012 compared to $7.7 millionetdinber 31, 2011, resulting in
a decrease in operating liabilities and reflecéntash outflow of $3.0 million for the fifty-two vw&s ended December 29, 2012.
Other current liabilities decreased due to the es®s in sales return, warranty and gift cardliiesi.

Investing Activitie:

For the fifty-two weeks ended December 29, 2012@ecember 31, 2011, net cash used in investingites was primarily the result of
increases in property and equipment ($10.2 miliod $14.3 million, respectively), partially offfeam net proceeds received from the sales c
our investments ($3.2 million and $2.6 million,pestively). We expect our capital expendituresdordase over the next twelve months as w
attempt to reduce expenditures in an effort tasgatur operational cash needs during the sameqgberi

Financing Activities

For the fiftytwo weeks ended December 29, 2012, net cash udwdnting activities was primarily the result afypnents made on de
totaling $28.4 million, which included the payoffaur previous term loan balance of $17.9 milliod@ayments on our new revolving loan of
$10.5 million, partially offset by the proceedsered from our revolving loan of $26.7 million (skether discussion in Debt and Available
Borrowing Resource” below). For the fifty-two weeks ended Decembey 3111, net cash used in financing activities wasgrily the result
of payments made on debt of $6.1 million.

Debt and Available Borrowing Resourc

Total debt (primarily comprised of a revolving lopayable of $16.2 million, discussed further belove)s $16.4 million as of
December 29, 2012, compared to $18.0 million eBexfember 31, 2011. The decrease was due to nepagtnents we made to our revolving
loan payable during 2012 which were required ireotd maintain a borrowing base sufficient to allimwcontinued borrowing under our loan
(see further discussion below).

On April 26, 2012, the Company, certain of its wiralwned domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan Chasé,BN.A., as sole lender and
administrative agent entered into a Credit Agreer(the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreemenbyides for a revolving commitment in
an aggregate principal amount of up to $40,000(€@9“Credit Facility”), which is subject to a bowing base derived from certain
receivables, inventory and property and equipmiEme. Credit Facility matures on April 26, 2017. TBempany used the proceeds of the loan:
borrowed on the closing date to repay in full itsypous credit facility with Silicon Valley Banknlconnection with the payoff of our previous
credit facility, the Company recorded a loss ont@etinguishment of $360,000 which was comprised pfepayment fee in the amount of
$166,000, accelerated deferred financing costsdratnount of $185,000 and other direct expensaterkto the previous debt. At
December 29, 2012, our outstanding revolving loalafce was $16.2 million. The customary eventsefdult under the Credit Facility inclu
certain subjective acceleration clauses. Managehwntletermined the likelihood of such accelerasanore than remote, considering the
recurring losses experienced by the Company, thexef current classification of our revolving Igaayable was required as of December 29,
2012.

Loans drawn under the Credit Facility bear interasthe Company’s option, at a per annum ratelgquether (a) LIBOR plus an
applicable margin of 1.50%, or (b) an “alternateebeate” minus an applicable margin of 0.50%. Esmiicable margin as set forth in the prior
sentence is subject to increase or decrease by(2b annum based upon the Company’s fixed chargerage ratio. At December 29, 2012,
the Company’s LIBOR based interest rate was 1.7@%$(5.0 million principal) and the Company’s Prib@sed rate was 2.75% (on $1.2
million principal). A commitment fee, based upordraawvn availability under the Credit Facility beayimterest at a rate of 0.20% per annur
payable monthly. Under the terms of the Credit &gnent, cash receipts are deposited into a lockuhbich are at the Company’s discretion
unless the “cash dominion period” is in effect,idgrwhich cash receipts will be used to reduce art®awing under the Credit Agreement.
The cash dominion period is triggered in an evémiedault or if excess availability is less than®®,000 at any time, as defined, and will
continue until, during the preceding 60
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consecutive days, no event of default existed andss availability has been greater than $7,000e0@0 times. The Company’s excess
availability was $10.8 million at December 29, 2@24.8 million that was available above the adsminion trigger of $6 million. On

March 12, 2013, we entered into a first amendmetite previously entered credit agreement in A2012 (“Amended Credit Agreement”).
The Amended Credit Agreement includes an amendtoehte definition of covenant testing trigger perio commence on any day that exces
availability is less than $4 million solely duritige period March 1, 2013 through and including ApS, 2013 and continuing until excess
availability has been greater than or equal to #lom solely during the period of March 1, 2013ahgh and including April 15, 2013 at all
times for 45 consecutive calendar days. As of tite tereof, the cash dominion period has not beefféct; accordingly no principal
payments are currently due. By amendment to thdiCAgreement, the Company, subject to the satigfaof certain conditions, also has the
right to request increases to the revolving comrmitts up to and above $60,000,000. The Companwt& bas not requested such increases.
As of December 29, 2012, the Company was in compéiavith all covenants under the Credit Agreement.

Our credit facility is subject to a borrowing baterxived from certain of our receivables, inventang property and equipment. In the
event that components of the borrowing base areradly affected for any reason, including adveraeket conditions or downturns in general
economic conditions, we could be restricted inghmunt of funds we can borrow under the creditifgciFurthermore, in the event that
components of the borrowing base decrease to Ablel@v the amount of loans then-outstanding urtidercredit facility, we could be required
to immediately repay loans to the extent of suartdll. If we became unable to borrow under thedirfacility, or are required to immediatt
repay loans under the credit facility, our liquydéind capital resources and ability to operatebosiness could be severely impacted, which
would have a material adverse effect on our fir@re@ndition and results of operations. In thosengés, we may need to sell our assets or see
equity or additional debt financing. There can beassurance in those circumstances that we woudthleeto raise such additional financing or
engage in such asset sales on acceptable terasalorlf we are not able to raise adequate aattkiti financing or proceeds from asset sales to
continue to fund our operations as planned in tlkas@mstances, we will need to defer, reduce iamiphte significant planned expenditures,
restructure or significantly curtail our operatiarssell some of our assets.

Our credit facility requires us to satisfy certéimancial covenants. These financial covenantstasts could limit our ability to react to
market conditions or satisfy extraordinary capite¢ds and could otherwise restrict our financimdy@verations. Under the Credit Agreement,
the Company is not required to maintain a minimiad charge coverage ratio, unless excess avdtiaisiless than $6,000,000, whereby a
ratio of 1.0 to 1.0 will be required. If our excessilability is reduced to less than $6 milliore will not comply with the minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio. If we are unable to satisfyfinancial covenants and tests at any time, &g as a result cease being able to borrow
under the credit facility or are required to imnagdly repay loans under the credit facility, oquidity and capital resources and ability to
operate our business could be severely impactedhwiould have a material adverse effect on owarfaial condition and results of operatic
In those events, we may need to sell our assetsed equity or additional debt financing or attetophodify our existing Credit Agreement.
There can be no assurance that we would be abdést such additional financing or engage in sissetsales on acceptable terms, or at all.

See additional information itNote 7 — Borrowings”of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdisided in Part IV, Item 15 of
this report.

Funding Requiremen

Based on our current operating plan, we believedhaexisting cash, cash equivalents, investmeatsh flows from operations and
available debt financing will be sufficient to fim@e our operational cash needs through at leastetktetwelve months, provided, however, that
we may decide to augment our cash flows from oersitand debt financing with sales of our equitgelected assets on terms that we
determine to be satisfactory to us. For exampleamgean discussions regarding possible multiplatgapiferings that we expect to close in the
near term and from which we expect to receive $ianito $9 million of gross proceeds. There cambeassurance, however, that we will be
able to close any equity offering in the near temfor those gross proceeds or at all. As discuabede, our Credit Facility provides a less
restrictive asset-based funding limit, which givassmproved liquidity options at a lower cost opital. Our future capital requirements may,
however, vary materially from those now plannea@umticipated. Changes in our operating plans, lahen anticipated net sales, increased
expenses, continued or worsened economic condjtamsening operating performance by us, or otkents, including those described in
“Risk Factors” included in Part I, Item 1A may feras to sell our existing assets and seek additit@i# or equity financing in the future. We
may need to issue common stock under our shetragjpn, discussed above. There can be no assuttasicwe would be able to raise such
additional financing or engage in such asset salescceptable terms, or at all. If we are not &blaise adequate additional financing or
proceeds from asset sales, we will need to defduae or eliminate significant planned expenditurestructure or significantly curtail our
operations, sell some of our assets.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth our contractual cabligations and commercial commitments as of Démr9, 2012:

Paymen' Due By Period (in thousands

Less thar More than
Contractual Obligations: Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Principal payments on deft $16,22: $ — $ — $16,22: $ —
Interest payments on lo-term debi® 1,29 30C 60C 397 —
Operating lease obligatior® 4,34¢ 1,39¢ 2,251 69C —
Capital lease obligatior® 14¢ 75 45 29 —

@ Amounts represent the expected principal cash patsmelating to our debt and do not include any\falue adjustments or discounts
and premiums. Our outstanding debt is comprisetref/olving loan which currently has no principayment requirements, and matures
in April 2017. See additional information“ Liquidity and Capital Resource Debt and Available Borrowing Resourc” above.

@ Amounts represent the expected interest cash pagmalating to our revolving loan balance at Decenft9, 2012. The interest rates at

December 29, 2012 were used to calculate the esghéature interest paymen

Commitments under operating leases relate primariur leases on our principal facility in Cars@alifornia, our distribution centers

Chesapeake, Virginia and Independence, Ohio, andadlucenter in the Philippines. Total operatirgde commitments include payme

due to a related party for one of our facilitieades in the amount of $156,0

@ Commitments under capital leases relate to equiptease agreements and include intel

®

Seasonality

We believe our business is subject to seasondlfitions. We have historically experienced higlades of body parts in winter months
when inclement weather and hazardous road conditiguically result in more automobile collisionsidine parts and performance parts and
accessories have historically experienced highes $a the summer months when consumers have rinoegd undertake elective projects to
maintain and enhance the performance of their apitdles and the warmer weather during that timeisdacive for such projects. We expect
the historical seasonality trends to continue teetematerial impact on our financial condition aesults of operations during the reporting
periods in any given year.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a material impact upon oweraping results, and we do not expect it to hawd sun impact in the near future. We
cannot assure you that our business will not bectdtl by inflation in the future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See “Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polieied Nature of Operationsdf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part IV, Item 15 of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have beguapee in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United Stat
The preparation of our financial statements reguireto make estimates and assumptions that #ffeceported amounts of assets, liabilities,
net sales, costs and expenses, as well as thesiiselof contingent assets and liabilities andratilated disclosures. On an ongoing basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including, but not limitedthose related to revenue recognition, uncabeeteceivables, inventory reserve, intangible
and other long-lived assets and contingencies. &ge bur estimates on historical experience andadous other assumptions that we believe
to be reasonable under the circumstances, theseguhich form the basis for making judgmentsighzarrying values of our assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atheurces. Actual results could differ from thostmates, and we include any revisions to our
estimates in our results for the period in whiah dletual amounts become known.
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We believe the critical accounting policies desedibelow affect the more significant judgments astiimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements. Accordingigse are the policies we believe are the mastairto aid in fully understanding and
evaluating our historical consolidated financiahdiion and results of operations:

Revenue Recognitioe recognize revenue from product sales and shipeivenues, net of promotional discounts and return
allowances , when the following four revenue redtigm criteria are met: persuasive evidence of margement exists, both title and risk of
loss or damage have transferred, , the selling si€ixed or determinable, and collectability éasonably assured. The Company retains the
risk of loss or damage during transit, therefoegenue from product sales is recognized at theelglidate to customer. . Return allowances,
which reduce product revenue by the Company’s éstighate of expected product returns, are estimsiey historical experience.

Revenue from sales of advertising is recorded wiggformance requirements of the related advertigingram agreement are met.

We evaluate the criteria of ASC 605-R8venue Recognition Principal Agent Consideratiardetermining whether it is appropriate to
record the gross amount of product sales and cetatsts or the net amount earned as commissiomer@ly, when the Company is the
primary party obligated in a transaction, the Conypia subject to inventory risk, has latitude itedishing prices and selecting suppliers, or
has several but not all of these indicators, regeauecorded at gross.

We evaluated the criteria of Accounting Standarddification (“ASC”) Topic 605-45 Revenue Recognition - Principal Agent
Considerationg"ASC 605-45"), in determining whether it is apprigte to record the gross amount of product saldsrelated costs or the net
amount earned as commissions. Generally, when evtharprimary party obligated in a transaction,safgject to inventory risk, have latitude
in establishing prices and selecting suppliersamelseveral but not all of these indicators, reeeauecorded at gross.

Payments received prior to the delivery of goodsustomers are recorded as deferred revenue.

We periodically provide incentive offers to our tarsers to encourage purchases. Such offers incluidtent discount offers, such as
percentage discounts off of current purchases et similar offers. Current discount offers, wtaamtepted by our customers, are treated as
reduction to the purchase price of the relatedstation.

Sales discounts are recorded in the period in wihielrelated sale is recognized. Sales return alhoes are estimated based on historice
amounts and are recorded upon recognizing theetkatles. Credits are issued to customers fomedysroducts.

Fair Value MeasurementsVe account for fair value measurements in accomavith ASC Topic 82Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures(*ASC 820"), which defines fair value, providesrarhework for measuring fair value and providesdiselosure requirements for
fair value measurements. ASC 820 also establisiie®e-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizé® inputs used in measuring fair value.
These tiers include: Level 1 - defined as obsessaiputs such as quoted prices in active marketeel2 - defined as inputs other than quotec
prices in active markets that are either directlindirectly observable; and Level 3 - defined ashservable inputs in which little or no market
data exists, therefore requiring an entity to depéls own assumptions.

Inventory.Inventory consists of finished goods availablegafe. We purchase inventory from suppliers bothekiivally and
internationally, primarily in Taiwan and China. Welieve that our products are generally availatdenfmore than one supplier, and we
maintain multiple sources for many of our produbtsth internationally and domestically. We offdsraad line of auto parts for automobiles
from model years 1965 to 2012. Because of the woatl demand for our products, we primarily purchaseucts in bulk quantities to take
advantage of quantity discounts and to ensure tovgrvailability.

Inventory is accounted for using the first-in fieit (“FIFO”) method and valued at the lower of tosmarket value. During this
valuation, we are required to make judgments abrpécted disposition of inventory, generally, thglowsales, returns to product vendors, or
liquidations of obsolete or scrap products, anceetgr recoverable values of each disposition cagdggsed on currently-available
information. If actual market conditions are leagdrable than those anticipated by managementtiawiali write-down of the value of our
inventory may be required.

Website and Software Development Cdsts.capitalize certain costs associated with softvdaveloped for internal use according to
ASC Topic 350-40intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use t8aifre (“ASC 350-40"), and ASC Topic
350-50-Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Website DevelephCostg“ASC 350-50").Under these provisions, we capitalize costs astemt
with website development and software developedhternal use when both the preliminary projectigiesnd testing stage are completed ant
management has authorized further funding for tgpt, which it deems probable of completion amtye
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used for the function intended. Capitalized casttuide amounts directly related to website develapnand software development such as
payroll and payroll-related costs for employees atmdirectly associated with, and who devote tioy¢he internal-use software project.
Capitalization of these costs ceases when thegirisjsubstantially complete and ready for itsricled use. These amounts are amortized on
straight-line basis over two to three years onesstiftware is placed into service.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibl&¥e acquire tangible and intangible assets in thmabcourse of business. We evaluate the
recoverability of the carrying amount of these ldwgd assets whenever events or changes in cirteunoss indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable in accordanceA&it Topic 360Property, Plant, and Equipme(itASC 360”"). Management assesses
potential impairments whenever events or changeséaomstances indicate that the carrying valuarofsset may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss will result when the carrying vakieeeds the undiscounted cash flows estimatezbstdtifrom the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. Impairment losses wiltdmognized in operating results to the extentttiatcarrying value exceeds the discounted
future cash flows estimated to result from the arsg eventual disposition of the asset. We contipuele judgment when applying these
impairment rules to determine the timing of the &nment tests, undiscounted cash flows used tsagsgairments, and the fair value of a
potentially impaired asset. The reasonablenessrgudgments could significantly affect the cargywalue of our long-lived assets. For fiscal
year 2012, we recorded impairment charges on piyped equipment and intangibles subject to amatron of $1.9 million and $1.7 millior
respectively. Any further reduction in the fair walof long-lived assets will result in additionaigairment charges. We did not recognize any
impairment losses on long-lived assets and intdegikubject to amortization for fiscal year 2014 2010.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible¥/e account for goodwill under the guidance sehfartASC Topic 350intangibles —
Goodwill and Othe*ASC 350"), which specifies that goodwill and irfoéte-lived intangibles should not be amortizede Wave historically
evaluated goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles impairment on an annual basis or more freguehévents or circumstances occur that
would indicate a reduction in fair value. Our annogairment testing date is October 31. In additiwe identified two reporting units, Base
USAP, which is the core auto parts business, artdMD, an online automotive repair source, (refet fegment Datain “Note 1- Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies and Nature ofe@ations” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemertsided in Part IV, Item 15 of
this report.) in accordance with ASC 286gment ReportingWe identified AutoMD as a reporting unit for poges of the goodwill
impairment testing and no impairment charge wasrdsd related to this reporting unit. The resuttthe impairment testing discussed below
refer solely to Base USAP. The goodwill impairmesst is a two-step impairment test. The first stempares the fair value of each reporting
unit with its carrying amount including goodwill. &\&stimate the fair value of the reporting unitdehsn the income approach, which utilizes
discounted future cash flows. Assumptions crittoahe fair value estimates under the discounteti iaw model include discount rates, cash
flow projections, projected long-term growth raéesl the determination of terminal values. The niaak@roach was used as a test of
reasonableness to corroborate the income appréaemarket approach utilized market multiples eested capital from publicly traded
companies in similar lines of business. The mankeitiples from invested capital include revenuetaltassets, book equity plus debt and
EBITDA.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company tifexdl adverse events related to the Company’salvBnancial performance,
including the accelerating downward trend in thenpany’s revenues and negative cash flows from ¢ipesa and a sustained decline in the
Company’s share price, that would more likely thabreduce the fair value of our reporting unitdveits carrying amount. The excess of
carrying value over fair value for our reportingtuas of October 31, 2012, the annual testing dede, approximately $21.8 million. If the
carrying amount exceeds estimated fair value, thersecond step of the impairment test is perfortnedeasure the amount of any impairn
loss by comparing the implied fair value of theasimg unit to its carrying value and impairmerdgdes will be recognized in operating results.
Therefore, the Company performed the second stdpeajoodwill impairment test to measure the amafiitnpairment loss. The second step
compares the implied fair value of goodwill witretbarrying amount of goodwill. The implied fair ualof goodwill is determined in the same
manner as the amount of goodwill recognized insirtass combination. The excess of the fair valuee refporting unit over the amounts
assigned to its assets and liabilities is the iethfair value of goodwill.

Based on our analysis, we recognized impairmestdasgoodwill of $18.9 million for the fourth quartof 2012. No impairment loss on
goodwill was recognized for fiscal year 2011 and@CFor indefinite lived intangible assets, we reed an impairment loss on certain trade
name intangible assets totaling $3.9 million and $Billion in the fourth quarter of 2012 and 20idspectively, and as further described in
“Note 6- Goodwill and Intangible Assetgf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsided in Part 1V, Iltem 15 of this report. The
Company did not recognize any impairment loss iswafl year 2010.

Income TaxesThe Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC Topic 740ncome Taxe§'ASC 740"). Under ASC 740,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfi@aethe future tax consequences attributable tgptaary differences between the financial
statement carrying amount of existing assets atuilities and their respective tax bases. Defetagdssets
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and liabilities are measured using enacted tas mtpected to apply to taxable income in the yimanghich those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. When apptepaavaluation reserve is established to redufsrréel tax assets, which include tax credits
and loss carry forwards, to the amount that is niikedy than not to be realized. The ability to liea deferred tax assets depends on the ability
to generate sufficient taxable income within thenydaack or carryforward periods provided for in th& law for each applicable tax
jurisdiction. We consider the following possiblaustes of taxable income when assessing the rdalizat our deferred tax asse

» Future reversals of existing taxable temporaryedéifices

» Future taxable income exclusive of reversing terapodifferences and carryforwarc
» Taxable income in prior carryback years; i

* Tax-planning strategie:

The assessment regarding whether a valuation atlosvis required or should be adjusted also corsidenong other matters, the nature,
frequency and severity of recent losses of the @oetbUSAP and WAG operations, forecasts of futurdifability, the duration of statutory
carryforward periods, our experience with tax htttes expiring unused and tax planning alternativesiaking such judgments, significant
weight is given to evidence that can be objectivesified.

Concluding that a valuation allowance is not reegiiis difficult when there is significant negat@dence that is objective and
verifiable, such as cumulative losses in recentsy@&e utilized a three-year analysis of actualltssas the primary measure of cumulative
losses in recent years. However, because a substamtion of those cumulative losses relate tpamment of intangible assets and goodwill,
those three-year cumulative results are adjustethéeffect of these items. In addition, the n@ad medium-term financial outlook is
considered when assessing the need for a valuatmmance.

The valuation of deferred tax assets requires judrand assessment of the future tax consequehegerds that have been recorded in
the financial statements or in the tax returns, @ndfuture profitability represents our best estienof those future events. Changes in our
current estimates, due to unanticipated eventsharwise, could have a material effect on our foiaihcondition and results of operations.
With the acquisition of WAG in 2010, based largetythe weight of the combined cumulative three-yeusted loss position, it was
determined that it was not more likely than not the Company would realize its net deferred taetssas of January 1, 2011. Therefore, a
valuation allowance of $18.3 million was recordecdaJanuary 1, 2011, of which $4.7 million wasoreled in relation to WAG in connection
with our acquisition in August 2010. Based on thme determination, an additional valuation alloveaat£$5.7 million was recorded as of
December 31, 2011, resulting in a valuation alloveaibalance of $22.8 million as of December 31, 2@Klof December 29, 2012, the
valuation allowance was $36.9 million, after redngdan additional valuation allowance of $14.1 roillin fiscal year 2012.

If, in the future, we generate taxable income anstained basis in jurisdictions where we haverdambfull valuation allowances, our
conclusion regarding the need for full valuatiolowhnces in these tax jurisdictions could changsulting in the reversal of some or all of the
valuation allowances. If our operations generatatite income prior to reaching profitability onwstined basis, we would reverse a portic
the valuation allowance related to the correspandialized tax benefit for that period, without kgang our conclusions on the need for a full
valuation allowance against the remaining net defetax assets.

As of December 29, 2012, federal and state netatipgrioss (“NOL”) carryforwards were $39.2 milli@amd $53.9 million, respectively.
Federal NOL carryforwards of $2.7 million were aitgd in the acquisition of WAG which are subjectiternal Revenue Code section 382
and limited to an annual usage limitation of $188,0Additionally, the tax benefit of $0.7 milliorf the federal and state NOL carryforwards
which was created by the exercise of stock optwitide credited to additional paid-in-capital oneeognized. Federal NOL carryforwards
expire in 2029, while state NOL carryforwards bemirexpire in 2016. The state NOL carryforwardsiexm the respective tax years as
follows (in thousands):

2016- 2022 $38,85:¢
2023- 2031 15,08
$53,93¢

We utilize a two-step approach to recognizing am@saring uncertain tax positions. The first stefp isvaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of availalevidence indicates it is more likely than natttthe position will be sustained on audit,
including resolution of related appeals or litigatiprocesses. The second step is to measure thenefit as the largest amount which is more
than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimatetleetent. We consider many factors when evaluatiyestimating our tax positions and tax
benefits, which may require periodic adjustmentsahich may not accurately forecast actual outcorAeof December 29, 2012, we had no
material unrecognized tax benefits, interest oafiess related to federal and state income taxersati’he Company’s policy is to record
interest and penalties as income tax expense.
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We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as veeiheome tax of foreign and state tax jurisdictiddaring fiscal 2010, the Company v
audited by the Internal Revenue Service for the gaded December 31, 2008. The audit was conclaitacho change. The tax years 2008-
2011 remain open to examination by the major tajimnigdictions to which the Company is subject,eptcthe Internal Revenue Service for
which the tax years 2009-2011 remain open. The @Gomppoes not anticipate a significant change tatheunt of unrecognized tax benefits
within the next twelve months.

Share-Based Compensatidlie account for share-based compensation in acooedaith ASC Topic 718€ompensation — Stock
Compensatioif*‘ASC 718”). ASC 718 requires that all share-basedhpensation to employees, including grants of eygd stock options, be
recognized in our financial statements based an ithgpective grant date fair values. Under thasidard, the fair value of each share-based
payment award is estimated on the date of grangyusi option pricing model that meets certain nesments. We currently use the Black-
Scholes option pricing model to estimate the faiue of our share-based payment awards. The Blabki&s valuation models require
extensive use of accounting judgment and finaregtimates, including estimates of the expected articipants will retain their vested stock
options before exercising them, the estimated Wigyavf our common stock price over the expectedrt and the number of options that will be
forfeited prior to the completion of their vestirgguirements. Application of alternative assumggioauld produce significantly different
estimates of the fair value of share-based compiensand, consequently, the related amount of shased compensation expense recognize:
in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensiveaiipas could have been significantly differentrthihe amounts recorded.

Prior to January 1, 2012, the Company estimatealtiitf using the historical volatilities of similgublic entities. Due to the limited
period of time our equity shares had been pubtigged, we did not have sufficient historical manece data to provide a reasonable basis
upon which to estimate volatility. As of January20,12, the Company has incorporated its own histbriolatility into the grant-date fair value
calculations. The Comparg/historical volatility was not materially differethan the estimates applied to past award faurevablculations. Tt
expected term of an award is based on combinirtgrigal exercise data with expected weighted timestanding. Expected weighted time
outstanding is calculated by assuming the settléwfesutstanding awards is at the midpoint betwienremaining weighted average vesting
date and the expiration date. Prior to Januar®122the expected life of an award was estimatedjube “simplified” method as provided in
ASC 718. Under this method, the expected life exjtied arithmetic average of the vesting term apdtiginal contractual term of the award.
The Company used the simplified method as it dichawe sufficient historical exercise data to pdeva reasonable basis upon which to
estimate an expected term. The risk-free intesgstassumption is based on observed interestappgepriate for the expected life of awards.
The dividend yield assumption is based on the Caryipaxpectation of paying no dividends. Forfeitiage estimated at the time of grant anc
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifedbrfeitures significantly differ from those ssates. The Company considers many factors
when estimating expected forfeitures, including Epee class, economic environment, and historigpégence.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issn@schange for the receipt of services from nompleyee directors in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718. The Company accsdat equity instruments issued in exchange fordoeipt of goods or services from of
than employees in accordance with ASC 50%=§0Qity-Based Payments to Non-Employ@sssts are measured at the estimated fair market
value of the consideration received or the estithfa@ value of the equity instruments issued, Wbicer is more reliably measurable. The v
of equity instruments issued for consideration othan employee services is determined on theegarlia performance commitment or
completion of performance by the provider of goodservices. Equity instruments awarded to non-eygas are periodically re-measured as
the underlying awards vest unless the instrumeetfudly vested, immediately exercisable and norfiefitable on the date of grant.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Market RiskMarket risk represents the risk of loss that magént our financial position, results of operationgash flows due to
adverse changes in financial commodity market praoed rates. We are exposed to market risk priynarihe area of changes in U.S. interest
rates and conditions in the credit markets. We h#s@ some exposure related to foreign currencpuations. Under our current policies, we
do not use interest rate derivative instrumenteanage exposure to interest rate changes. We dwmetany derivative financial instruments.
We attempt to increase the safety and preservafionr invested principal funds by limiting defatikk, market risk and reinvestment risk. We
mitigate default risk by investing in investmenade securities and mutual funds that hold debtritixsu
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Interest Rate RislOur investment securities generally consist of mltunds. As of December 29, 2012, our investmesgti®e comprise
of $110,000 of investments in mutual funds thatnarily hold debt securities. During the second tprasf 2012, the Company fully redeemed
its remaining auction rate preferred securitiesR#S”) investments. During the various ARPS holdiegods, the Company earned the statec
rate of interest and incurred no realized lossefe((ito investment details inNote 2 — Investments&ind “Note 3 — Fair Value Measurements”
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemémttided in Part 1V, Item 15 of this report).

As of December 29, 2012, we had a balance of $héln outstanding under a revolving loan under oredit facility. The interest rate
on this loan is computed based on a LIBOR and Pli@e rate, adjusted by features specified in oanlagreement. At our debt level as of
December 29, 2012, a 100 basis point increasdeneist rates would not materially affect our eagsiand cash flows. If, however, we are
unable to meet the covenants in our loan agreementyould be required to renegotiate the termgedit under the loan agreement, including
the interest rate. There can be no assuranceriiaeaegotiated terms of credit would not mateyiafipact our earnings. At December 29,
2012, our LIBOR based interest rate was 1.75% peu@ (on $15.0 million principal) and our Prime éadsate was 2.75% per annum (on §
million principal). Refer to additional discussionitem 7, under the captionliquidity and Capital ResourcesBebt and Available Borrowin
Resource” and in “Note 7 — Borrowings'of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeantfyded in Part IV, Item 15 of this report.

Foreign Currency RiskOur purchases of auto parts from our Asian supphee denominated in U.S. dollars; however, a ohamthe
foreign currency exchange rates could impact oodpet costs over time. Our financial reporting eaay is the U.S. dollar and changes in
exchange rates significantly affect our reportesiits and consolidated trends. For example, itit& dollar weakens year-over-year relative
to currencies in our international locations, oomsolidated gross profit and operating expensddihigher than if currencies had remained
constant. Likewise, if the U.S. dollar strengthgear-overyear relative to currencies in our internationablions, our consolidated gross pr
and operating expenses will be lower than if cwiehhad remained constant. Our operating expamsks Philippines are generally paid in
Philippine Pesos, and as the exchange rate fleduatadversely or favorably impacts our operategylts. In light of the above, a fluctuation
of 10% in the Peso/U.S. dollar exchange rate whalte approximately a $1.4 million impact on ourlippine operating expenses for the fifty-
two weeks ended December 29, 2012. Our Canadiasiteetales are denominated in Canadian dollarseheryfluctuations in exchange rates
from these operations are only expected to hava@nal impact on our operating results due to giatively small number of sales generated
in Canada. We believe it is important to evaluateaperating results and growth rates before atedt e effect of currency changes.

I TEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A

The financial statements required by this ItemeBsat forth in Part IV, Item 15 of this report sareé hereby incorporated into this Item 8
by reference.

| TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

43



Table of Contents

| TEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresydesi to provide reasonable assurance that infoomagiquired to be disclosed in
reports filed with the SEC under the Securitieshexmge Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Astfecorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the specified time periods, #rad such information is accumulated and commueécto management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure. Our management, with
the participation of our Chief Executive Officerda@hief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiges of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 29, 2012 pursuant to Balel5 and 15d5 of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluatlteen GEO and CFO ha
concluded that, as of such date, our disclosurér@isrand procedures were effective to meet thedaivjes for which they were designed and
operated at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934rasnded). We assessed the effectiveness of ean@hicontrol over financial reporting as
of December 29, 2012, based on the “Internal Cortrdntegrated Framework” issued by the Committe8monsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the “COSO framework”). Thisessment was conducted utilizing our documentatigrolicies and procedures, risk
control matrices, gap analysis, key process walltthhs and management’s knowledge of and interaetith its controls and testing of our
key controls.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projection of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periadsubject to the risk that controls may becomednadte because of changes in conditions, ol
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finaraieporting, such that there is
reasonable possibility that a material misstateroéotir annual or interim financial statements wit be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Based on such assessment and criteria, srapaghas concluded that the internal controls fimancial reporting were effective, and
were operating at the reasonable assurance lee¢iRecember 29, 2012. Our independent registendtigpaccounting firm, Deloitte &
Touche LLP, has included an attestation reportwnrdernal controls over financial reporting, whiis included below.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig fia internal control over financial reportingarder to improve its overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatiblesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant. As required by
Rule 13a-15(d), the Company’s management, inclutlingChief Executive Officer and the Chief Finah@#icer, also conducted an
evaluation of the Company'’s internal control ovagahcial reporting to determine whether any chargesirred during the quarter ended
December 29, 2012 that have materially affectedrereasonably likely to materially affect, then@any’s internal control over financial
reporting. Based on that evaluation, there has heesuch change during the period covered by #pert.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
Carson, California

We have audited the internal control over finanglorting of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc and sdiasies (the “Company”) as of
December 29, 2012 based on criteria establishédennal Control — Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camizamanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financi
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reportingelided in the accompanyiidanagement’s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReportitOur responsibility is to express an opinion on@wnpany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pmrs performing similar functions, and effected g tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide realasturance regarding the reliability of financ@dorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comgisaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thaktasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of treetsof the company; (2) provide reasonable assertduat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stateisiin accordance with generally accepted acomyiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amedtdirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlen@iral statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltconover financial reporting, including the posti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventatktected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fin&l reporting as of December 29,
2012, based on the criteria establishethtarnal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and foly#s ended December 29, 2012 of the Company ancepart dated March 25, 2013
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarstetements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Los Angeles, CA
March 25, 2013
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| TEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART IlI

IT EM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

(a) Identification of DirectorsThe information under the caption “Election of Riters,” appearing in the Proxy Statement (“Proxy
Statement”), is hereby incorporated by referente Froxy Statement will be filed with the SEC withi20 days from the end of fiscal year
2012.

(b) Identification of Executive Officers and Certaigi@ficant Employees he information under the caption “Executive Congaion
and Other Information—Executive Officers,” appegrin the Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporatecefigrence. The Proxy Statement will
be filed with the SEC within 120 days from the eridiscal year 2012.

(c) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Pué information under the caption “Section 16(ah&eial Ownership Reporting
Compliance,” appearing in the Proxy Statementeighy incorporated by reference. The Proxy Statémiirbe filed with the SEC within 120
days from the end of fiscal year 2012.

(d) Code of Ethics The information under the caption “Corporate Goaace — Code of Ethics and Business Conduct,”appein the
Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated by refexeibe Proxy Statement will be filed with the SE{thim 120 days from the end of fiscal
year 2012

(e) Board CommitteesThe information under the caption “Corporate Gaaace — Board Committees and Meetings,” appeanirige
Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated by refexeibe Proxy Statement will be filed with the SE{thim 120 days from the end of fiscal
year 2012

| TEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information under the caption “Executive Cormgagion and Other Information”, appearing in thexgrStatement, is incorporated
herein by reference. The Proxy Statement will klfivith the SEC within 120 days from the end e€éil year 2012.

IT EM12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information under the captions “Equity CompéeiesaPlans” and “Ownership of Securities by Certaneficial Owners and
Management,appearing in the Proxy Statement, is incorporatzdih by reference. The Proxy Statement will bedfivith the SEC within 12
days from the end of fiscal year 2012.

IT EM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information under the captions “Corporate Gonaace — Director Independence” and “Certain Retatigps and Related
Transactions,appearing in the Proxy Statement, is incorporatgdih by reference. The Proxy Statement will bedfilvith the SEC within 12
days from the end of fiscal year 2012.

| TEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information under the caption “Fees Paid tepehdent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” apipgain the Proxy Statement, is
incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Stat¢mél be filed with the SEC within 120 days frattme end of fiscal year 2012.
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P ART IV

IT EM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statementd.he following financial statements of U.S. Auto BaYetwork, Inc. are included in a separate seaifdhis
Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on the pagisenced below:

Page
Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent regjiet! public accounting firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 29,&@d Pecember 31, 20: F-2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Operdiioreach of the three years in the period endezkBer 29, 201 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeehDecember 29, 20: F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheoftiree years in the period ended December 22, F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-6

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

All schedules have been omitted because they dnequoired or the required information is includeaur consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto.
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(3) Exhibits.
The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated by reference to the location indicated below

Exhibit
No.

2.1*

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1*
10.1+*
10.2+*
10.3+*
10.4+*
10.5+*
10.8+*
10.9+*

10.10*
10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*
10.27+

10.291*
10.32+°
10.33+

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Acquisition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by and regnd.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Partsbin,,lon.the one hand, and
The Partsbin.com, Inc., All OEM Parts, Inc., PoWest, Inc., Auto Parts Web Solutions, Inc., Web C3alutions, Inc.,
Everything Internet, LLC, Richard E. Pine, LowellMann, Brian Tinari and Todd Daugherty, on theeothanc

Stock Purchase Agreement executed August 2, 20bbgihe Acquisition Sub, WAG, Riverside and theeotstockholders of
WAG (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5THe Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witile Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 4, 20

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatfwor of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. as filediwihe Delaware Secretary
of State on February 14, 2007 (incorporated byreefee to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annual Report on Fo@rKLfiled with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 2, 2!

Amended and Restated Bylaws of U.S. Auto Parts Netwnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit &2he Annual Report ¢
Form 1(-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarApril 2, 2007’

Specimen common stock certifice

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity Incent®ian

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the U.S. ARgots Network, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Pl

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under th&UAuto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentiRlan.

Form of Acceleration Addendum to Stock Option Agneait under the U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 20Q6ify Incentive Plar
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Plan famchs of agreemen

Offer Letter of Employment dated May 19, 2006 by &etween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richira

Non-Competition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by andragr).S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richard Pireyell Mann,
Brian Tinari and Todd Daugher

Shareholde s Release dated May 19, 2006 by and between U18.Parts Network, Inc. and Richard P

Commercial Lease Agreement dated January 1, 20@hdpetween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and@litbe Enterprises,
LLC, amended effective February 1, 2(

Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leasésress dated October 1, 2006 by and between U.®. Rarts Network,
Inc. and Margay 2003, LLC, amended effective Fetyria2010

Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leasésress dated July 12, 2004 by and between U.S. Ratts Network, Inc.
and Isadore Socransky, amended effective Febry&91D

Lease dated November 30, 2004 by and between UWit8. Parts Network, Inc. and William Co:

Catalog License and Parts Purchase Agreement Naegimber 20, 2006 by and between U.S. Auto Partedi&, Inc. and
WORLDPAC, Inc.

Services Agreement dated October 3, 2006 by anddeet U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Efficienbiitrer, Inc.
Offer Letter of Employment dated January 1, 200&bg between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Haukhavar

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers adtectors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit3B0to the Annual Report
on Form 1K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMarch 15, 201C
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Exhibit
No.

10.35*
10.36

10.37

10.38

10.394

10.40+

10.414

10.424

10.43

10.444

10.45

10.46

10.474

10.484

10.49

10.50+

Description
Deeds of Assignment and Declarations of Trust eteec8eptember 2006 regarding MBS Tek Corporatiockstransfe:

Purchase Agreement, dated April 20, 2007, by anongn.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., Access Worldw@Emmunications, Inc.
and their respective Philippine affiliates (incomed by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quart&dport on Form 10-Q filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May A87%

Lease Agreements, dated August 8, 2007, by and gu@8 Tek Corporation and Roshan Commercial Congofporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly ReporfForm 10-Q filed with the Securities and Excha@genmission on August 14,
2007)

Form of Suppliers’ Agreement entered into betwee®. BAuto Parts Network, Inc. and certain of its Uh&sed suppliers and
primary drop-ship vendors (incorporated by refeestacExhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on For@aQ filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 1@y

Employment Agreement dated September 18, 2012 betWeS. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Shane Evasg@ficorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Current ReporForm 8K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarSeptember 2
2012)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2l®)7 between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. anch8Havangelist
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission
on October 17, 2001

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2l)7 (performance grant) between U.S. Auto Paetsviirk, Inc. and
Shane Evangelist (incorporated by reference tol#ix89.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filedwihe Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 17, 2(

2007 New Employee Incentive Plan (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 99.5 to the Current Report om#8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Octoberda7).

Lease Agreement, dated October 11, 2007, by aneebetMBS Tek Corporation and Averon Holding Corpiora(incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Répor Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exag©ommission on
November 14, 2007

Employment Agreement, dated September 18, 201®gaetthe Company and Aaron Coleman (incorporategfeyence to
Exhibit 10.44 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarSeptember 20, 201

Support Continuity Agreement, dated April 28, 2008tween the Company and Alexander Adegan (incatpdry reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMay 2, 2008

Consulting Agreement, dated April 28, 2008, amdrg@ompany, uParts.com, Inc. and Alexander Adeiganrporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current ReporFormm ¢-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMay 2, 2008

Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated April 2808, between the Company and Alexander Adegaprfiecated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporFomm ¢-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarApril 28, 2008

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated May 130y and between the Company and Shane Evan(etistporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporfFomm ¢-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMay 15, 2008

Stipulation of settlement in the matter entitledré U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. Securities latign, Case No.
CV 07-2030-GW (JC) (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-@dilwith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 6, 2!

Separation Agreement and Release of Claims, datedber 9, 2008, between the Company and Micha&tGlane
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission
on December 9, 200!
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Exhibit
No.

10.51

10.52+

10.53+

10.54+

10.55

10.56

10.58

10.61

10.63+

10.64

10.65

10.67

10.68+

10.73+

10.74+

Description

Consulting Agreement, dated December 9, 2008, letwlee Company and Michael J. McClane (incorporbtereference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarDecember 9, 200:i

Employment Agreement, dated March 29, 2010 betvileetCompany and Theodore Sanders (incorporatedfbgence to Exhibit
10.53 to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 12, 2010

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated Februdy2D09, between the Company and Theodore Saridessorated by
reference to Exhibit 10.63 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchanger@ussion on February 17,
2009)

Nonr-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (performance gastated February 16, 2009, between the Compadyrhrodore Sanders
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to@herent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secustand Exchange Commission
on February 17, 200¢

Commercial Lease Agreement dated December 16, Bp@8d between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. andléysindian River,
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.66He Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Seties and Exchange
Commission on March 26, 200

Contract of lease dated January 7, 2010 by anddesii.S. Autoparts Network Philippines Corporatiod Robinsons Land
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit5b to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed wikietSecurities and Exchange
Commission on March 15, 201

Guarantee executed August 2, 2010 by the Compangrfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to thenfGany’s Current Report
on Form i-K filed with Securities and Exchange Commissionfargust 4, 2010

Agreement of Sublease dated September 22, 201adpetween the Company and Timec Company Inc.dfparated by
reference to Exhibit 10.61 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form 10-Q filed with the SecuritiescBange and Commission on
November 9, 2011

2011 Base Salaries and Target Bonuses of certhaeis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@the Current Report on
Form &K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarDecember 16, 201

Sublease dated December 4, 2007 by and betweeretaykVerks, Inc. and J.C. Whitney & Co. (incorgerhby reference to
Exhibit 10.64 to the Annual Report on Forn-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMarch 17, 2011

Second Amendment To Lease Agreement dated Febtu2808 by and between JCM Management LLC andrB@lbncepts
Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10®&%he Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Seties and Exchange
Commission on March 17, 201

Buyout Agreement dated October 11, 2011 by betwleCompany, Whitney Automotive Group Inc., andddigery
Communications, LLC. (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.67 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Novembed By, ):

U.S. Auto Parts Network Inc. Director Payment EtattPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 80t@the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiomNovember 9, 201:

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement datetdaB, 2012 between the Company and Theodore iRle8a
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.62 to @herent Report on Form 8-k filed with the Secustend Exchange Commission
on January 4, 201.

Employment Agreement dated January 3, 2012 betéiee@ompany and David G. Robson. (incorporatecebgrence to Exhibit
10.63 to the Current Report on Forr-k filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiordanuary 4, 201:
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Exhibit
No.

10.75+

10.77

10.78

16.1

21.1
23.1
311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.INS*

101.SCH¢*
101.CAL*
101.DEF*
101.LAB*
101.PRE*

Description

Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement dated JanuaB032 between the Company and David G. Robson.rfiocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.64 to the Current ReporEorm 8-k filed with the Securities and Exchangen@assion on January 4,
2012)

Credit Agreement, dated April 26, 2012, by and eetwU.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., certain of itsolly-owned domestic
subsidiaries and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. (iraratpd by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the CurReport on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiompril 30, 2012)

First Amended Credit Agreement, effective as of éhat2, 2013, by and between U.S. Auto Parts Netwark, certain of its
wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan Chase, BaAk

June 21, 2010 Letter from E&Y to the SEC (incorpedaherein by reference to the Company’s CurrepbReon Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on June 23, 201

Subsidiaries of U.S. Auto Parts Network, |
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Certification of the Principal Executive Officerqred by Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the S¢iesrExchange Act of 1934,
as amende

Certification of the Principal Financial Officerqeired by Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the S¢iesrExchange Act of 1934,
as amende

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer regedt by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted purso&edtion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer reged by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursogedtion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurt
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of thene number from the registration statement on Fawinof U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
(File No. 33:-138379) initially filed with the Securities and Ewxage Commission on November 2, 2006, as ame
+ Indicates a management contract or compensatonygolarrangemer

—+

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. has been grantedidential treatment with respect to certain porsi@f this exhibit (indicated by asterisks),
which have been separately filed with the Secwritied Exchange Commissic
Furnished herewith. In accordance with Rule 406Redulation S-T, the information in these exhisitall not be deemed to be “filed” for

purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchangef1934, as amended, or otherwise subject bilitaunder that section, and shall not
be incorporated by reference into any registrasiatement or other document filed under the Seesrict of 1933, as amended, except as
expressly set forth by specific reference in suilatgf
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgesil, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 25, 201 U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.

By: /s/ Shane Evangelist
Shane Evangeli
Chief Executive Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned officers and directors of W80 Parts Network, Inc., do hereby constitute apdoint Shane Evangelist and David
Robson, and each of them, our true and lawful radtys-in-fact and agents, each with full power dfsditution and resubstitution, for him and
in his name, place and stead, in any and all cpacio sign any and all amendments to this repod to file the same, with exhibits thereto,
and other documents in connection therewith, withS$ecurities and Exchange Commission, granting seitl attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing requisiteecessary to be done in and about the
premises, as fully to all intents and purposeseasight or could do in person, hereby, ratifyingl @onfirming all that each of said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, or his substitute or subsstuteay lawfully do or cause to be done by virtueebe

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report on Form 10-K has bs&gned below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capecaind on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ Shane Evangelist Chief Executive Officer and Directi
Shane Evangeli (principal executive officer March 25, 201!
/s/ David Robson Chief Financial Office
David Robsor (principal financial and accounting office March 25, 201
/s/ Robert J. Majteles
Robert J. Majtele Chairman of the Boar March 25, 201
/s/ Joshua L. Berman
Joshua L. Berma Director March 25, 201!
/sl Fredric W. Harman
Fredric W. Harmal Director March 25, 201:
/s/ Sol Khazani
Sol Khazan Director March 25, 201:
/s Warren B. Phelps IlI
Warren B. Phelps II Director March 25, 201:
/s/ Ellen F. Siminoff
Ellen F. Siminoft Director March 25, 201:
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent regjistl public accounting firr

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 29,&td Pecember 31, 20:

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Operdiioreach of the three years in the period endexkBer 29, 201
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeehDecember 29, 20:
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheoftiree years in the period ended December 22,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
Carson, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. andididrges (the “Company”) as of
December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and thedetonsolidated statements of comprehensive tiesastockholdersquity, and cas
flows for each of the three years in the periodeehDecember 29, 2012. These financial statemeathamresponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion the financial statements based on our sudit

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenewnielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of U.S. Auto Parts
Network, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 2922and December 31, 2011 and the results of dipeirations and their cash flows for ei
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@®, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of
America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 29, 2012, based on the criterabkstted innternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission and our report dateccha5, 2013 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internaiteol over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Los Angeles, CA
March 25, 2013
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Par Value)

ASSETS

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $221 %8B at December 29, 2012 and December 31

2011, respectivel
Inventory
Deferred income taxe
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Intangible assets, n
Goodwill
Investment:
Other norcurrent asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Revolving loan payabl

Current portion of lon-term debt

Current portion of capital leases paya

Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Capital leases payable, net of current por
Deferred income taxe
Other nor-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000 share®an¢hl; 31,128 and 30,626 shares issued and
outstanding at December 29, 2012 and December031, 2espectivel

Additional paic-in-capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaédstents.

F-2

December 2¢

December 31

2012 2011
$ 1,03 $ 10,33
11¢ 1,12t
7,431 7,92:
42,727 52,24
39 44€
4,17¢ 3,54
55,51 75,62
28,55¢ 34,62
3,22 9,98
— 18,85
— 2,10
1,57¢ 1,02¢
$ 88,87 $ 142,21
$ 28,02 $ 41,30
10,48t 11,56
16,22: —
— 6,25(
70 13E
4,73¢ 7,70;
59,54( 66,95t
— 11,62
70 37
314 1,59¢
1,30¢ 1,07¢
61,23 81,29:
31 31
159,78 157,14(
384 327
(132,557 (96,579
27,64 60,92
$ 88,87 $ 142,21
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE OPERATIONS

Net sales
Cost of sale(1)
Gross profit
Operating expense
Marketing
General and administrati
Fulfillment
Technology
Amortization of intangible asse
Impairment loss on goodwi
Impairment loss on property and equipm
Impairment loss on intangible ass
Total operating expens
Loss from operation
Other income (expense
Other income, ne
Interest expens
Loss on debt extinguishme
Total other expense, n
Loss before income tax
Income tax (benefit) provisia
Net loss
Other comprehensive income, net of t
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Unrealized gains on investmel
Total other comprehensive incot
Comprehensive los

Basic and diluted net loss per sh

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Shares used in computation of basic and dilutedbsstper shar

(€3]

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢

December 31

January 1,
2012 2011 2011
$ 304,01° $ 327,07. $262,27°
212,37¢ 220,07: 172,66¢
91,63¢ 107,00( 89,60¢
51,41¢ 55,78¢ 38,75
19,85 31,96 28,62¢
22,26 19,16¢ 14,94¢
6,27¢ 7,27¢ 5,90:
1,18¢ 3,67¢ 2,80¢
18,85¢ — —
1,96( — —
5,61: 5,13¢ —
127,42¢ 122,99! 91,03
(35,790) (15,99Y) (1,426
20 364 191
(785) (1,018 (471
(360) — —
(1,125 (654) (280)
(36,915 (16,649 (1,709
(937) (1,517) 12,21¢
(35,979 (15,13)) (13,926
31 22 15C
26 56 15
57 78 16E
$ (3592) $ (15,059  $(13,76)
$ (@19 $ (050 $ (0.4¢
30,81¢ 30,54¢ 30,26¢

described ir* Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Katf Operation” below.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.

F-3
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U.S AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In Thousands)

Balance, January 2, 201!

Net loss

Issuance of shares in connection with stock option
exercise:

Sharebased compensatic

Unrealized gain on investments, net of

Effect of changes in foreign currenc

Balance, January 1, 201

Net loss

Issuance of shares in connection with stock option
exercise:

Issuance of stock awar

Shar+-based compensatic

Unrealized gain on investments, net of

Effect of changes in foreign currenc

Balance, December 31, 201

Net loss

Issuance of shares in connection with stock option
exercises

Issuance of stock awar

Sharebased compensatic

Unrealized gain on investments, net of

Effect of changes in foreign currenc

Balance, December 29, 201

Accumulated

Common Stock Other Total

Additional Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’
Paid-in-

Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
29,89 $ 30 $150,08: $ 84 $ (67,51) $ 82,68
— — — — (13,926 (13,926
328 — 99¢ — — 99¢
212 — 2,87¢ — — 2,87¢
— — — 15 — 15
— — — 15C — 15C
30,42¢ $ 30 $15396: $ 24¢  $ (81,43) $ 72,80
— — — — (15,13)) (15,13))
137 1 358 — — 354
6C — — — —
— — 2,82¢ — — 2,82¢
— — — 56 — 56
— — — 22 — 22
30,62¢ $ 31 $157,14( $ 327 $ (96,579 $ 60,92¢
- - - - (35,97%) (35,97¢)
48¢ — 63€ — — 63€
13 — 53 — — 58
— — 1,952 — — 1,952
— — — 31 — 31
— — — 26 — 25
31,12¢ $ 31 $159,78: $ 384 $(132,55) $ 27,64«

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Operating activities
Net loss $ (35,979 $ (15,13 $ (13,92¢)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (irgeprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortization expel 15,20¢ 12,69¢ 9,46¢
Amortization of intangible asse 1,18¢ 3,67:¢ 2,80
Deferred income taxe (875) (1,539) 12,57:
Shar-based compensation expel 1,678 2,607 2,74:
Stock awards issued for r-employee director servic 53 — —
Impairment loss on goodwi 18,85« — —
Impairment loss on property and equipm 1,96( — —
Impairment loss on intangible ass 5,61: 5,13¢ —
Amortization of deferred financing cos 94 147 50
Loss on debt extinguishme 36C — —
Loss (gain) from disposition of ass 14 (12) (5)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 491 (2,587) 91¢
Inventory 9,52( (4,145 (17,129
Other current asse (61€) 734 (910
Other no-current asset (287) — (229)
Accounts payable and accrued expel (14,919 6,21¢ (68€)
Other current liabilitie: (2,969 2,20z 1,81z
Other noK-current liabilities 203 37¢ 70C
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi (400 10,37¢ (1,709
Investing activities
Additions to property and equipme (10,15% (14,309 (12,06¢)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipr 14 — —
Cash paid for intangible (34) (74) (1,019
Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash acqu — — (27,500
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities argsiments 3,171 2,60( 29,64:
Purchases of marketable securities and investr (8) (572) (19,540
Changes in restricted ca — 31¢ (319
Purchases of compa-owned life insuranc (16€) (281) (250
Proceeds from purchase price adjustn — 787 —
Net cash used in investing activit (7,179 (11,529 (31,049
Financing activities
Proceeds from revolving loan paya 26,73: — —
Payments made on revolving loan pay: (20,509 — —
Proceeds from lor-term debr — — 25,00(
Payments made on lo-term debr (17,875 (6,125 (1,000
Payment of debt extinguishment cc (175) — —
Payments of debt financing co: (407) (74) (467)
Payments on capital leas (137) (1449 77)
Proceeds from exercise of stock optis 63€ 384 95€
Other — (14)) (529)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (1,73¢6) (6,100 23,88:
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 9 (14) 21¢
Net change in cash and cash equival (9,30%) (7,260) (8,65¢€)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 10,33¢ 17,59¢ 26,25
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 1,03( $ 10,33¢ $ 17,59
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash investing and financing activitit
Accrued asset purchas $ 1,80z $ 1,28¢ $ 1,691
Property acquired under capital lei 104 49 37C
Estimated purchase price adjustm — — 994
Unrealized gain on investmer 26 60 15
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the period for income ta $ — $ 9 $ 131
Cash paid during the period for inter 49t 1,09¢ 127

See accompanying notes to consolidated financéstents.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policieand Nature of Operations

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. (including its subaites) is a distributor of aftermarket auto pasl accessories and was established in
1995. The Company entered the e-commerce sectaubghing its first website in 2000 and currentlyides the majority of its revenues from
online sales channels. The Company sells its ptedadndividual consumers through a network of sieds and online marketplaces. Our
flagship websites are locatedvatyw.autopartswarehouse.cqmvww.partstrain.comwww.jcwhitney.comwww.stylintrucks.com
www.AutoMD.conand our corporate website is locatedvaitw.usautoparts.netReferences to the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “ougfer to
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and its consolidaalsidiaries.

The Company’s products consist of body parts, engarts, performance parts and accessories. Thegdaots category is primarily
comprised of parts for the exterior of an automamb®ur parts in this category are typically rephaeat parts for original body parts that have
been damaged as a result of a collision or thragyegteral wear and tear. The majority of these prmdare sold through our websites. In
addition, we sell an extensive line of mirror prothy including our own private-label brand calleddkVue™, which are marketed and sold as
aftermarket replacement parts and as upgradesdtingxparts. The engine parts category is comg@rigeengine components and other
mechanical and electrical parts, which are oftéerred to as hard parts. These parts serve asegpént parts for existing engine parts and ar
generally used by professionals and dgeitiselfers for engine and mechanical maintenandeepair. We offer performance versions of nr
parts sold in each of the above categories. Pedioce parts and accessories generally consist &f fhat enhance the performance of the
automobile, upgrade existing functionality of adfie part or improve the physical appearance onfmot of the automobile.

The Company is a Delaware C corporation and is dueatered in Carson, California. The Company assdmployees located in
Kansas, Virginia, Tennessee, Texas, Wyoming, litimmd Ohio, as well as in the Philippines.

Fiscal Year
The Company'’s fiscal year is based on a 52/53 Viisell year ending on the Saturday closest to Déesral.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include ti@ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsi€l$. Intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

Basis of Presentation

During fiscal year 2012, the Company incurred alogs of $36.0 million and revenues declined to430nillion from $327.1 million
after incurring a net loss of $15.1 million in fgear 2011. Overall, we expect the downward tiaralr revenues and net loss to continue in
the next twelve months. This trend could sevenlyact our liquidity as we may not be able to previdsitive cash flows from operations in
order to meet our working capital requirements. M&y need to borrow additional funds from our créaliflity, which under certain
circumstances may not be available, sell our agsetsek equity or additional debt financing in thieire. There can be no assurance that we
would be able to raise such additional financingmgage in such asset sales on acceptable terausalkarlf our expected downward trend in
revenues and net loss continues for longer thaexpect because our strategies to return to positiles growth and profitability are not
successful or otherwise, and if we are not ablaise adequate additional financing or proceeds fisset sales to continue to fund our ong
operations, we will need to defer, reduce or elatérsignificant planned expenditures, restructurggnificantly curtail our operations or sell
some of our assets.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make estand assumptions that af
the reported amounts of assets and liabilitiesdisitlosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Significant estimates made byagement include, but are not limited
to, those related to revenue recognition, uncableeteceivables, the valuation of investmentsyatibn of inventory, valuation of deferred tax
assets and liabilities, valuation of intangibleetssncluding goodwill and other long-lived asse¢soverability of software development costs,
contingencies and share-based compensation exffaigesults from estimated grant date fair vahred vesting of issued equity awards.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

The net change in the Company’s book overdraftésgnted as an operating activity in the cons@uiatatement of cash flows. The
book overdraft represents a credit balance in gany’s general ledger but the Company has aipe&iank account balance.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all money market funds and-$&rm investments purchased with original méiesiof ninety days or less to be
cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivaleotauats receivable and accounts payable approxifa@tealue at December 29, 2012
and December 31, 2011 due to their short-term nti@sirMarketable securities and investments aneéechat fair value, as discussed below.
Based on the borrowing rates currently availabldnéoCompany for bank loans with similar terms amdrage maturities, the fair value of our
revolving loan payable, classified as current ligbin our consolidated balance sheet, approxis#tecarrying amount because the interest
rate is variable. If the Company’s revolving loaayable (seéNote 7 — Borrowings”) had been measured at fair value at December 22, &
would be categorized in Level 2 of the fair valuerarchy, as the estimated value would be basdateguoted market prices for the same or
similar issues or on the current rates availabéoCompany for debt of the same or similar tedvesordingly, financial instruments that are
not measured at fair value include accounts rebyaccounts payable and debt. Refer kote 3 — Fair Value Measuremeritior additional
fair value information.

Accounts Receivable and Concentration of CreditIRis

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowanceldobtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful asde is determined primarily on the
basis of past collection experience and general@o@ conditions. The Company determines termscanditions for its customers primarily
based on the volume purchased by the customenroasicreditworthiness and past transaction history.

F-7



Table of Contents

Concentrations of credit risk are limited to thetoumer base to which the Company’s products ack $tle Company does not believe
significant concentrations of credit risk exist.

Marketable Securities and Investments

Marketable securities and investments were congpi$elosed-end funds primarily invested in mutiuedds and auction rate preferred
securities (“ARPS”). As of December 29, 2012, thmrpany’s investments were primarily comprised oselddend mutual funds. Mutual fun
are classified as short-term investments avail&ditesale and recorded at fair market value, basedumted prices of identical assets that are
trading in active markets as of the end of thequkfor which the values are determined. The ComisaiRPS were fully redeemed at par
value during the second quarter of 2012 (furthecdbed in Note 3 under the captiofihancial Assets Valued on a Recurring BdisThe
underlying investments in ARPS were tax-exempt ripal bonds with maturities of thirty or more yedmr which the interest rates are reset
through a “Dutch auction” every seven days. In agance with Accounting Standards Codification (“A$Topic 320Investments — Debt and
Equity Securitie:and based on the Company’s ability to market aidrsese instruments, the Company classified it$2SRas available-fosale
and carried them at fair value.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

All of the Company’s marketable securities and staeents are subject to a periodic impairment revigve Company recognizes an
impairment charge when a decline in the fair valfigs investments below the cost basis is judgekt other-than-temporary. The Company
considers various factors in determining whetheetmgnize an impairment charge, including the tlerd time and extent to which the fair
value has been less than the Company’s cost llasifinancial condition and near-term prospecthefinvestee, and the Compamintent anc
ability to hold the investment for a period of timefficient to allow for any anticipated recovenythe market value. No other-than-temporary
impairment charges were recorded on any investnuemisg fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Inventory

Inventories consist of finished goods availabledale and are stated at the lower of cost or maskee, determined using the first-in
first-out (“FIFO”") method. The Company purchaseseimory from suppliers both domestically and ingimnally, and routinely enters into
supply agreements with U.S. — based supplierstamitimary dropship vendors. The Company believes that its pradaiet generally availak
from more than one supplier and seeks to maintaitipie sources for its products, both internatignand domestically. The Company
primarily purchases products in bulk quantitiesalce advantage of quantity discounts and to erisuestory availability. Inventory is report
at the lower of cost or market, adjusted for sloaving, obsolete or scrap product. Inventory at Dawer 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011
$42.7 million and $52.2 million, respectively, whimcluded items in-transit to our warehouseshamamount of $6.4 million and $9.6 million,
respectively.

Website and Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs associatddweébsite and software developed for internalasmrding to ASC 350-50
Intangibles— Goodwill and Other — Website Development CastsASC 350-4Mntangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use t8@fre,
when both the preliminary project design and tessitage are completed and management has authtuileer funding for the project, which
it deems probable of completion and to be usethi®function intended. Capitalized costs includ@ants directly related to website and
software development such as payroll and payrtdited costs for employees who are directly assediaith, and who devote time to, the
internal-use software project. Capitalization aftsgosts ceases when the project is substantiathplete and ready for its intended use. Thes
amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis tveto three years once the software is placarisatvice. The Company capitalized website
and software development costs of $9.1 million $h8.3 million during fiscal year 2012 and 2011 petively. At December 29, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, our internally developed welasitk software costs amounted to $42.1 million &®&iZmillion, respectively, and the
related accumulated amortization and impairmentuartedl to $30.2 million and $18.3 million, respeetiv During the fourth quarter of 2012,
we recorded an impairment loss of $0.9 million (selw for details of impairment charge). The Compdid not recognize any impairment
loss on website and software development costiisical year 2011 and 2010. Refer tblbte 3 — Fair Value Measuremetritand “ Note 4 —
Property and Equipment, N” for further details.
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Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles Subject to Ampaiion

The Company accounts for the impairment and disiposbf long-lived assets, including intangible®get to amortization, in
accordance with ASC 3@@roperty, Plant and EquipmefitASC 360”) . Management assesses potential impairments wheeaegets or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carnydige of an asset or asset group may not be reaolee An impairment loss will result when
the carrying value exceeds the undiscounted caglsféstimated to result from the use and evenispbdition of the asset or asset group.
Impairment losses will be recognized in operatiegutts to the extent that the carrying value exsdleel discounted future cash flows estimi
to result from the use and eventual dispositiothefasset or asset group. The Company continusdlg judgment when applying these
impairment rules to determine the timing of the ainment tests, undiscounted cash flows used teassgairments, and the fair value of a
potentially impaired asset or asset group. Theore#seness of our judgments could significantlgetfthe carrying value of our long-lived
assets. Based on its analysis, the Company recjaiz impairment loss on property and equipmeni@adgible assets subject to
amortization of $1.9 million and $1.7 million, resgively, for fiscal year 2012. Future impairmesgdes could result if the fair value of the
Company’s long lived assets continues to declife Company did not recognize any impairment loskog-lived assets and intangibles
subject to amortization for fiscal year 2011 and@Refer to ‘Note 3 — Fair Value Measurements” Note 4 — Property and Equipment, Net”
and “Note 6 — Goodwill and Intangible Assefst further detalils.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibles

The Company accounts for goodwill and indefiniteed intangible assets in accordance with ASCI&&hgibles — Goodwill and Other
(“ASC 350”). Under ASC 350, goodwill and intangitaiesets with indefinite lives are not amortizeddmattested for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or circumstances occat would indicate a reduction in fair value. In #@idth, we identified two reporting units, Bz
USAP, which is the core auto parts business, artdMD, an online automotive repair source, (refet 8egment Databelow) in accordance
with ASC 280Segment ReportingWe identified AutoMD as a reporting unit for poges of the goodwill impairment testing and no
impairment charge was recorded related to thisrtiygpunit. The results of the impairment testingedssed below refer solely to Base USAP.
The goodwill impairment test is a twatep impairment test. The first step comparesdheséilue of each reporting unit with its carryiagiount
including goodwill. The Company estimates the failue of the reporting unit based on the incomeaggh, which utilizes discounted future
cash flows. Assumptions critical to the fair vaksimates under the discounted cash flow modaldectiscount rates (13.0% was used in
fiscal year 2012), cash flow projections, projedtmty-term growth rates and the determination ohieral values. The market approach is use
as a test of reasonableness to corroborate themmepproach. The market approach utilizes markédiptas of invested capital from publicly
traded companies in similar lines of business. Mlaeket multiples from invested capital include mwes, total assets, book equity plus debt
and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciatidraanortization (“EBITDA”").

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company tifexd adverse events related to the Company’sallBnancial performance,
including the continued downward trend in the Comypsrevenues and negative cash flows from operatiand a sustained decline in the
Company’s share price, that would more likely thabreduce the fair value of our reporting unitibetheir carrying amounts. The excess of
carrying value over fair value for our reportingtuas of October 31, 2012, the annual testing dades, approximately $21.8 million. If the
carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair vahex the second step of the impairment test is pegd to measure the amount of any
impairment loss and the impairment losses willd@gnized in operating results. Therefore, the Gomperformed the second step of the
goodwill impairment test to measure the amountrgddirment loss. The second step compares the idfalievalue of goodwill with the
carrying amount of goodwill. The implied fair valoégoodwill is determined in the same manner asatimount of goodwill recognized in a
business combination. The excess of the fair vafigereporting unit over the amounts assignedstassets and liabilities is the implied fair
value of goodwill. Based on its analysis, the Comypacognized an impairment loss on goodwill of $1@illion, which represented the
carrying value of its goodwill as of October 31120No impairment loss on goodwill was recognizedfiscal year 2011 and 2010. For
indefinite lived intangible assets, the Companiia¢d the royalty savings method to determine #ievfalue of the trade name intangible assef
using discounted rate of 15.0% and 18.5% for figeal 2012 and 2011, respectively, and royalty o 1% and 1.0%, respectively for fiscal
year 2012 and 2011, respectively. During the fogrtarter of 2012 and 2011, we recorded an impaithoss on indefinite lived intangib
assets totaling $3.9 million and $5.1 milliohhe Company did not recognize any impairment lgsmdefinite lived intangible assets for fiscal
year 2010. Refer t‘Note 3- Fair Value Measurementsind “Note 6 — Goodwill and Intangible Assefst additional details.

Deferred Catalog Expenses

Deferred catalog expenses consist of third-parcticosts including primarily creative design, @agprinting, postage and mailing costs
for all Company direct response catalogs. Suchsanst capitalized as deferred catalog expenseararamortized over their expected future
benefit period. Each catalog is fully amortizedhiitnine months. Deferred catalog expenses araded in other current assets and amounte
to $0.7 million and $0.7 million at December 2912@Gnd December 31, 2011, respectively.
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Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are being amortized ovetife of the loan using the straight-line mettaadt is not significantly different from
effective interest method.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product saléskipping revenues, net of promotional discoant$return allowances, when 1
following four revenue recognition criteria are m@trsuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, thigt and risk of loss or damage have
transferred, delivery has occurred, the sellingeis fixed or determinable, and collectabilityéasonably assured. The Company retains the
risk of loss or damage during transit, therefoegenue from product sales is recognized at theetglidate to customer, not upon shipment.
Return allowances, which reduce product revenutadyCompany’s best estimate of expected produgtnetare estimated using historical
experience.

Revenue from sales of advertising is recorded wiggformance requirements of the related advertisingram agreement are met. For
fiscal year ended 2012, 2011 and 2010, the adirggtisvenue represented approximately 1%, 2% andfl8ar total revenue, respectively.

The Company evaluates the criteria of ASC 6093Ré5enue Recognition Principal Agent Consideratiardetermining whether it is
appropriate to record the gross amount of prodaiessand related costs or the net amount earneahamissions. Generally, when the
Company is the primary party obligated in a tratieagcthe Company is subject to inventory risk, le#ude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not alhe$e indicators, revenue is recorded at gross.

Payments received prior to the delivery of goodsustomers are recorded as deferred revenue.

The Company periodically provides incentive offersts customers to encourage purchases. Suclsaffeude current discount offers,
such as percentage discounts off current purclaasksther similar offers. Current discount offeveen accepted by the Compasigustomer:
are treated as a reduction to the purchase pritteeaklated transaction.

Sales discounts are recorded in the period in wiiehrelated sale is recognized. Sales return athoes are estimated based on historice
amounts and are recorded upon recognizing theetktatles. Credits are issued to customers fomedysroducts. Credits for returned product:
amounted to $30.4 million, $30.1 million, and $2Miflion for fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, regpely.

No customer accounted for more than 10% of the Gmyig net sales.

The following table provides an analysis of theerge for sales returns and the reserve for doubtfabunts (in thousands):

Balance a Charged tc
Balance a
Beginning Revenue,
Cost or End of
of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 29, 2(
Reserve for sales retur $ 1,72¢ $ 30,05¢ $(30,42() $ 1,36¢
Reserve for doubtful accour 18z 247 (209) 221
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 31, 2(
Reserve for sales retur $ 1,31¢ $ 30,527 $(30,117) $ 1,72¢
Reserve for doubtful accour 37z 87 (27€) 182
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended January 1, 2(
Reserve for sales retur $ 957 $ 26,03¢ $(25,67%) $ 1,31¢
Reserve for doubtful accour 13t 38C (143) 372

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of the direct costs assatiaith procuring parts from suppliers and delingrproducts to customers. These costs
include direct product costs, outbound freight ahighping costs, warehouse supplies and warrantg,qoartially offset
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by purchase discounts and cooperative advertigiol freight and shipping expense included in afstales for fiscal year 2012, 2011 and
2010 was $39.7 million, $41.1 million, and $31.6liom, respectively. Depreciation and amortizatexpenses are excluded from cost of sales
and included in marketing, general and administeagind fulfillment expenses as noted below.

Warranty Costs

The Company or the vendors supplying its produasige the Company’s customers limited warrantiesertain products that range
from 30 days to lifetime. In most cases, the Comgfgavendors are the party primarily responsiblevf@arranty claims. Standard product
warranties sold separately by the Company are dedoas deferred revenue and recognized ratablytioedife of the warranty, ranging from
one to five years. The Company also offers extengmdanties that are imbedded in the price of $etkprivate label products we sell. The
product brands that include the extended warramwgmage are offered at three different serviceléeya) a five year unlimited product
replacement, (b) a five year one-time product egieent, and (c) a three year one-time product ceplent. Warranty costs relating to
merchandise sold under warranty not covered by mesnare estimated and recorded as warranty oldiggtit the time of sale based on each
product’s historical return rate and historical k@aty cost. During the second quarter of 2012 Qbmpany updated its estimate of warranty
obligations which resulted in a reduction to watydrabilities of $232,000. The standard and exeghdarranty obligations are recorded as
warranty liabilities and included in other currdiabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.therfiscal year 2012 and 2011, the activity in
our aggregate warranty liabilities was as followstfiousands):

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011
Warranty liabilities, beginning of period $ 384 $ 154
Adjustments to preexisting warranty liabiliti (232 —
Additions to warranty liabilitie: 24¢ 352
Reductions to warranty liabilitie (119 (122
Warranty liabilities, end of peria $ 282 $ 384

Marketing Expense

Marketing costs, including advertising, are expeneeincurred. The majority of advertising expesgeaid to internet search engine
service providers and internet commerce faciligtéor fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Compecggnized advertising costs of $21.1
million, $28.5 million and $19.1 million, respeatly. Marketing costs also include depreciation amrtization expense and share-based
compensation expense.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense consists priiynafradministrative payroll and related expensasrchant processing fees, legal and
professional fees and other administrative costsie@al and administrative expense also includesedigtion and amortization expense and
share-based compensation expense.

Fulfillment Expense

Fulfillment expense consists primarily of payratidarelated costs associated with warehouse emp@methe Company’s purchasing
group, facilities rent, building maintenance, degaBon and other costs associated with inventoapagement and wholesale operations.
Fulfillment expense also includes share-based cosgi®n expense.

Technology Expense

Technology expense consists primarily of payrot eglated expenses of our information technologgganel, the cost of hosting the
Company’s servers, communications expenses anchétteonnectivity costs, computer support and smféwdevelopment amortization
expense. Technology expense also includes shaeetbasmpensation expense.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensatamtordance with ASC 7X8ompensation — Stock Compensa(fxSC 718").
All stock options issued to employees are recoghimshare-based compensation expense in theiihatatements based on their respective
grant date fair values, and are recognized withénstatement of comprehensive income or loss akatirag, general and administrative,
fulfillment or technology expense, based on emptogepartmental classifications. Under this standhedfair value of each share-based
payment award is estimated on the date of grangusi option pricing model that meets certain negments. The Company currently uses the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimateftievalue of share-based payment
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awards, with the exception of options granted dairig market conditions (none in fiscal year 202@11 and 2010), for which the Company
estimates the fair value using a Monte Carlo motle¢ determination of the fair value of share-bgs@gment awards utilizing the Black-
Scholes and Monte Carlo model is affected by thengany’s stock price and a number of assumptiofjding expected volatility, expected
life, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend

Prior to January 1, 2012, the Company estimatealtiitf using the historical volatilities of similgublic entities. Due to the limited
period of time the Company’equity shares had been publicly traded, the Cagngal not have sufficient historical market pritzta to provid
a reasonable basis upon which to estimate volatiis of January 1, 2012, the Company has incotpdriis own historical volatility into the
grant-date fair value calculations. The Companyssahical volatility was not materially differerhdn the estimates applied to past award fair
value calculations. The expected term of an awalthsed on combining historical exercise data aiftected weighted time outstanding.
Expected weighted time outstanding is calculateddsuming the settlement of outstanding awardstiseamidpoint between the remaining
weighted average vesting date and the expiratitm @aior to January 1, 2012, the expected lifaroAward was estimated using the
“simplified” method as provided in ASC 718. Undbkistmethod, the expected life equals the arithnaaterage of the vesting term and the
original contractual term of the award. The Compasgd the simplified method as it did not haveisigfiit historical exercise data to provid
reasonable basis upon which to estimate an expeated The risk-free interest rate assumption seHaon observed interest rates appropriate
for the expected life of awards. The dividend yiadsumption is based on the Company’s expectatipaying no dividends. Forfeitures are
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if asagy, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitsignificantly differ from those estimates. The
Company considers many factors when estimatingaggddorfeitures, including employee class, ecomogmvironment, and historical
experience.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issn@schange for the receipt of services from nompleyee directors in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718. The Company accsdiot equity instruments issued in exchange foréoeipt of goods or services from ot
than employees in accordance with ASC 50%&6Qity-Based Payments to Non-Employ&assts are measured at the estimated fair market
value of the consideration received or the estithfa@ value of the equity instruments issued, Wbicer is more reliably measurable. The v
of equity instruments issued for consideration othan employee services is determined on theegarlia performance commitment or
completion of performance by the provider of goodservices. Equity instruments awarded to non-eygas are periodically re-measured as
the underlying awards vest unless the instrumetéully vested, immediately exercisable and norfieiitable on the date of grant.

Other Income, net

Other income, net consists of miscellaneous inconexpense such as gains/losses from dispositiass#ts, and interest income
comprised primarily of interest income on investisen

Interest Expense

Interest expense consists primarily of interesieasg on our outstanding loan balance, deferredding cost amortization, and capital
lease interest.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740Income Taxe§'ASC 740"). Under ASC 740, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future taxsequences attributable to temporary differeneésden the financial statement carrying
amount of existing assets and liabilities and thespective tax bases. Deferred tax assets arilitiésbare measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearshith those temporary differences are expectdxbtecovered or settled. When appropri
a valuation allowance is established to reducerdsfdax assets, which include tax credits and dassy forwards, to the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized. In making such d®sieation, the Company considers all available fpgsiand negative evidence, including
future reversals of existing taxable temporaryet#hces, future taxable income exclusive of remgre@mporary differences and carryforwa
taxable income in prior carryback years, tax plagrstrategies and recent financial operations.

The Company utilizes a two-step approach to readggiand measuring uncertain tax positions. Tha §itep is to evaluate the tax
position for recognition by determining if the whtgf available evidence indicates it is more fkdan not that the position will be sustained
on audit, including resolution of related appeail$itmation processes. The second step is to nreabe tax benefit as the largest amount w
is more than 50% likely of being realized uponrbte settlement. The Company considers many faatoes evaluating and estimating our
tax positions and tax benefits, which may requégqalic adjustments and which may not accuratalgdast actual outcomes. As of
December 29, 2012, the Company had no materiatagrézed tax benefits, interest or penalties rdl&degfederal and state income tax matt
The Company’s policy is to record interest and [f@sas income tax expense.
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Leases

The Company analyzes lease agreements for opexagisgs capital lease treatment in accordanceABifi 840Leases Rent expense
for leases designated as operating lease is exgphensa straight-line basis over the term of thedea

Foreign Currency Translation

For each of the Comparg/foreign subsidiaries, the functional currencigsdocal currency. Assets and liabilities of fapeioperations ai
translated into U.S. dollars using the current exgfe rates, and revenues and expenses are trdnstate).S. dollars using average exchange
rates. The effects of the foreign currency traimtaadjustments are included as a component ofnagladed other comprehensive income or
loss in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive income or loasdnrdance with ASC 220omprehensive Incomeé\ccumulated other
comprehensive income or loss, included in the Catyigaconsolidated balance sheets, includes foreigrency translation adjustments relatec
to the Company'’s foreign operations, and unrealtr@lding gains and losses from available-$ate marketable securities and investments.
Company presents the components of net incomeserdnd other comprehensive income or loss, iroitsaidated statements of
comprehensive income or loss.

Segment Data

The Company operates in a single reportable segamehteporting revenues by product line or geodcalpleation is impracticable.
Certain long-lived assets are held in the Philippifrefer to “Note 4 — Property and Equipment, Ndthe criteria the Company used to ider
its reporting segment are primarily the naturehef products the Company sells and the consolidgiethting results that are regularly
reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decisi@ker to assess performance and make operatingjateiWe identified two reporting
units, Base USAP, which is the core auto partsnassi, and AutoMD, an online automotive repair seurcaccordance with ASC 280
Segment Reporting. However, AutoMD is consideredmaterial by the Company and did not meet the tiadine thresholds for a reportable
segment, thus no segment reporting disclosures presented.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsf@dqa-FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (&ABNo. 2011-04,
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureaneinDisclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IF(*ASU 2011-04"), an update
to ASC 820Fair Value MeasuremerftASC 820"). The amendments in ASU 2011-04 arertfwilt of joint efforts by the FASB and
International Accounting Standards Board to develgingle, converged fair value framework and pgtexdonverged guidance on how to
measure fair value and on what disclosures to geoabout fair value measurements. While ASU 204 1s largely consistent with existing f
value measurement principles in U.S. GAAP, it exjsaASC 820’s existing disclosure requirements &arvyalue measurements and makes
other amendments. Many of these amendments were toadiminate unnecessary wording differences betwJ.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). Howevemsocould change how the fair value measurementaguoalin ASC 820 is applied. The
Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2011-04 owdey 1, 2012. The adoption did not have a matarmiphct on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2@Elwhich amended the guidance for the presentaficomprehensive income, an updat
ASC 220Comprehensive Incomé&he amended guidance requires an entity to presemponents of net income and other comprehensive
income in one continuous statement, referred thastatement of comprehensive income, or in tyausde, but consecutive statements. The
current option to report other comprehensive incame its components in the statement of stockhsla@guity has been eliminated. Although
the new guidance changes the presentation of cérapsé/e income, there are no changes to the comimtigt are recognized in net income
or other comprehensive income under existing guidamhe ASU was adopted by the Company on Jany&@12 and changed our financial
statement presentation of comprehensive operatiormse continuous statement, but did not impazGbmpany’s net loss, financial position,
or cash flows. In February 2013, the FASB issuetl 2813-02 to improve the reporting reclassificasiaut of accumulated other
comprehensive income of various components. Theaggie requires presentation of significant amorettassified from each component of
accumulated other comprehensive income and theniectatement line items affected by the reclasdifio either parenthetically on the face
of the financial statements or in the notes. Thislgnce is effective for fiscal years, and inteperiods within those years, beginning after
December 31, 2012. The Company believes that tbptiah of the amendments will not have a matengdact on the Comparg/’consolidate:
financial statements.
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In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011BRlance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about QffgpAssets and Liabilities
The amendments in this ASU require an entity teldge information about offsetting and related mgements to enable users of its financial
statements to understand the effect of those agraagts on its financial position. The objectiveto$ disclosure is to facilitate comparison
between those entities that prepare their finarste&kements on the basis of U.S. GAAP and thostesrthat prepare their financial statements
on the basis of IFRS. An entity is required to gghke amendments for annual reporting periods Iméginon or after January 1, 2013, and
interim periods within those annual periods. Antgrghould provide the disclosures required by ghasiendments retrospectively for all
comparative periods presented. The Company beltatshe adoption of the amendments will not hawveaterial impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Note 2 — Investments
As of December 29, 2012, the Company held thevigilg securities and investments, recorded at fainer (in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losse: Fair Value
Mutual funds® $ 11C $— $ — $ 1iacC

As of December 31, 2011, the Company held thevieilg securities and investments, recorded at faines (in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losse! Fair Value
Mutual funds® $ 1,011 $114 $ — $ 1,12t
Auction rate preferred securities in municipal atate agencie® 2,12¢ — (21) 2,104
Total $ 3,13¢ $114 $(21) $ 3,22¢

@ Mutual funds are classified as short-term investsianailable-for-sale and recorded at fair marladtie, based on quoted prices of

identical assets that are trading in active maréstsf the end of the period for which the valuesdeterminec

Auction rate preferred securities in municipal atate agencies with maturities of 15 to 30 yearewkassified as investments available-
for-sale and recorded at fair value. During theosdoquarter of 2012, the remaining securities liadaat December 31, 2011 was fully
redeemed. As of December 31, 2011, these secusiges held in two tax-exempt municipal bonds madagaler closed-end funds and
were classified as long-term investments. Refediditional information in Note 3 under the captidfinancial Assets Valued on a
Recurring Basi" .

@

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale stearare disclosed separately in the accompanyingatidated statements of cash flow.
For fiscal year 2012, the Company recognized asgrealized loss of $4,000. For fiscal year 2014 ,Gompany recognized a gross realized
of $3,000. For fiscal year 2010, the Company rezzeghgross realized gains and losses of $27,006&200, respectively.

Note 3 — Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as an exit price represerttiegamount that would be received to sell an assgaid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participantssiédch, fair value is a market-based measuremenslitioald be determined based on
assumptions that market participants would useiging an asset or liability.

Provisions of ASC 820 establish a three-tier failue hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs usednieasuring fair value. These tiers
include:

Level 1—- Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actadets;
Level 2— Inputs other than quoted prices in active marttetsare either directly or indirectly observalaap
Level 3— Unobservable inputs in which little or no marllata exists, therefore, requiring an entity to dgvés own assumptions.
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We measure our financial assets and liabilitifaiatvalue on a recurring basis using the followirgguation techniques:
(a) Market Approach — uses prices and other relemformation generated by market transactions lwiag identical or comparable assets or
liabilities.

(b) Income Approach — uses valuation techniquestwert future estimated cash flows to a singlesgméamount based on current market
expectations about those future amounts, usingpteslue techniques.

Financial Assets Valued on a Recurring Basis

As of December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011Ctimepany held certain assets that are required togasured at fair value on a
recurring basis. These included the Company’s firiinstruments, including cash and cash equitaland investments. The following table
represents our fair value hierarchy and the vaduatchniques used for financial assets measurfail &Blue on a recurring basis (in
thousands):

As of December 29, 201

Valuation
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level & Techniques
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel® $1,03( $1,03( $— $— €))
Investment— mutual funds@ 11C 11C — — (@)
$1,14( $1,14( $— $—
As of December 31, 201
Valuation
Total Level 1 Level z Level 3 Techniques
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel® $10,33¢ $10,33¢ $— $ — €))
Investment— mutual funds®@ 1,12t 1,12¢ — (@)
Investment— ARPS®) 2,10¢ — 2,10¢ (b)

@
7)1 1
#
N
=
o
N

$13,56¢ $11,46(

@ Cash equivalents consist primarily of money mafigatls and short-term investments with original migtudates of three months or less

at the date of purchase, for which the Companyroetes fair value through quoted market pric

Investments consist of mutual funds, classifiedragt-term investments available-for-sale and medmat fair market value, based on
guoted prices of identical assets that are trautirggtive markets as of the end of the period foich the values are determin

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had investé&RiPS, which were classified as long-term avaddbl-sale securities and
reflected at $2.1 million (fair value), which inded an unrealized loss of $21,000. The Companynichgled its investments related to
ARPS in the Level 3 category. During the secondtguaf 2012, the remaining ARPS balance at Dece®be2011 was fully redeemed
at par.

@

®

Before utilizing Level 3 inputs in the fair valuesasurement of our ARPS, the Company consideredfisint Level 2 observable inputs
of similar assets in active and inactive marketgese investments consisted solely of collateralgadut obligations supported by municipal anc
state agencies; did not include mortgage-backeurisies or student loans; had redemption featurasdalled for redemption at 100% of par
value; and had a credit rating of A or AAA. The Quany fully redeemed its investment at par valuenduthe second quarter of 2012. As of
December 31, 2011, we classified our ARPS as leng-tue to the historical uncertainties at thaetiffhe fact that there was not an active
market to liquidate these investments was a deteéngnifactor in classifying them as Level 3. Dudhe uncertainty with regard to the short-
term liquidity of these securities, the Companyed®ined that it could not rely on par value to essant fair value. Therefore, the Company
estimated the fair values of these securitieszinij a discounted cash flow valuation model. Omartgrly basis we evaluated the
reasonableness of the significant unobservablegsnsed in our ARPS fair value measurements. Thatian model used for our ARPS
investments required an
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evaluation of the collateralization underlying sexurity investments, the creditworthiness of thanterparty, the timing of expected future
cash flows, and the expectation the security velldha successful auction or market liquidity. Thesgurities were also compared, when
possible, to other observable market data withlamsharacteristics to the securities held by tbenfany. Based on these factors, we assesse
the risk of realizing expected cash flows and waliad an estimated term and observable discouatthat reflected this risk. As a result of the
temporary declines in fair value for the CompamyRPS, the Company recorded an unrealized holdisg &b $21,000 to accumulated other
comprehensive income as of December 31, 2011el€tbmpany had determined that any decrease irathe of the instruments was other-
than-temporary, it would have recorded a chargmataings as appropriate.

During fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, there wer&ransfers into or out of level 1 and level 2e¢ssThe following tables present the
Companys ARPS activity measured at fair value on a rengrhasis using significant unobservable inputs €L&y during fiscal year 2012 a
2011 (in thousands):

Level 3
Investments
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 2,10/
Redemption at par valt (2,125
Realized gain 21
Balance as of December 29, 2( $ —
Level 3
Investments
Balance as of January 1, 2011 $ 4,141
Redemption at par valt (2,100
Unrealized gains included in other comprehensicenme 63
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 2,104

Non-Financial Assets Valued on a Non-Recurring Basis

The Company’s long-lived and indefinite-lived assate measured at fair value on a mecurring basis. These assets are measured
but are written-down to fair value, if necessasyaaesult of impairment.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company tifed adverse events related to the Company’sallvBnancial performance,
including the continued downward trend in the Comypsrevenues and negative cash flows from operatiand a sustained decline in the
Company’s share price, that would more likely thahreduce the fair value of the Company’s longdiand indefinite-lived assets below its
carrying amount. The Company performed its impairmesting of goodwill and indefinite-lived intatdg assets in accordance with ASC 35C
Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, and long-livedets, including intangible assets subject to amatitn, in accordance with ASC 360
Property, Plant and Equipment.

We measure our non-financial assets at fair vafua non-recurring basis using the following valoatiechniques:

(a) Market Approach — provides an estimation of falue based on market prices in actual transastmd on asking prices for assets.
Considerations such as time and condition of sadeterms of agreements are analyzed for compaaaisiets and are adjusted to arrive at an
estimation of the fair value.

(b) Income Approach — uses valuation techniquestwert future estimated cash flows to a singls@meéamount based on current market
expectations about those future amounts, usingpteslue techniques.

(c) Cost Approach — uses the concept of replacepesitas an indicator of fair value. The premisthefcosts approach is that, if it were
possible to replace the asset, a market participantd pay no more for an asset than the amounwfach the asset could be replaced.
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The following table represents the fair value measients for assets measured on a non-recurring assif the Company’s impairment
testing date, October 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Impairment Fair Value
Fair Valuation
Value Charge Technigue: Hierarchy
Assets:
Goodwill $ — $ 18,85¢ (b) Level ¢
Land and building 9,50( 1,00¢ (@ Level &
Computer software (purchased and developed) and
equipmen 15,81 96( (c) Level &
Property and equipment 1,96(
Websites — 69t (b) Level &
Customer relationshir — 911 (b) Level &
Assembled workforc — 13¢ (b) Level @
Trade name 1,19¢ 3,86¢ (b) Level &
Intangible assets 5,618
Total impairment loss $ 26,42

As of October 31, 2012, total impairment loss w26.8 million. The Company recorded impairment lssse goodwill, property and
equipment and intangible assets of $18.9 millidn9$nillion and $5.6 million, respectively. Therfaalue measurements are categorized as
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, as the Compdeayeloped its own assumptions and analysis tamete if such assets were impaired. R
to “ Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polieied Nature of Operations™ Note 4 — Property and Equipment, Net'id “Note 6 —
Goodwill and Intangible Assetd$br additional details.

Note 4 — Property and Equipment, Net

The Company'’s fixed assets consisted of buildiegyputer software (purchased and internally develppaachinery and equipment,
furniture and fixtures, and vehicles, and are statecost less accumulated depreciation and aratidiz Depreciation and amortization expe
are provided for in amounts sufficient to relate tost of depreciable and amortizable assets tatipes over their estimated service lives.
Depreciation and amortization expense for fiscalryz912, 2011 and 2010 was $15.2 million, $12.Tioniland $9.5 million, respectively. The
cost and related accumulated depreciation of asstiftsd or otherwise disposed of are removed filmgnaccounts and the resultant gain or los:
is reflected in earnings.

The Company accounts for the impairment of propany equipment in accordance with ASC 36Quring the fourth quarter of 2012, t
Company identified adverse events related to thagamy’s overall financial performance, including ticcelerating downward trend in the
Company’s revenues and negative cash flows fromatipas, which indicate that the carrying amount@ftain property and equipment may
not be recoverable. Based on its analysis, the @agnpecognized an impairment loss on building anernally developed website and
software development cost of $1.0 million and $@iBion, respectively, for the fourth quarter of 20 Any future decline in the fair value of
an asset group result in future impairments. They@ny did not recognize any impairment loss on @riypand equipment for fiscal year 2C
and 2010. Refer ttNote 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policeesl Nature of Operationsdnd “Note 3 — Fair Value Measurements”
for additional details.

Property and equipment consisted of the followinBacember 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 (in druls:

December 2¢ December 31

2012 2011
Land $ 63C $ 63C
Building 10,68( 10,68(
Machinery and equipme 13,24¢ 13,42¢
Computer software (purchased and developed) arigregqut 46,88 37,88(
Vehicles 261 221
Leasehold improvemen 2,36¢ 2,12z
Furniture and fixture 1,131 1,244
Construction in proces 3,04: 2,461
78,24: 68,67
Less accumulated depreciation, amortization andiment (49,689 (34,046
Property and equipment, r $ 28,55¢ $ 34,62
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Construction in process primarily relates to thenPany'’s internally developed software (refer totwap” Website and Software
Development Cos” in “ Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polieied Nature of Operations). Certain of the Company’s net
property and equipment were located in the Phitippias of December 29, 2012 and December 31, BOttfie amount of $1.0 million and $:
million, respectively.

Depreciation of property and equipment is providsihg the straight-line method for financial rejpugtpurposes, at rates based on the
following estimated useful lives:

<
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Building

Machinery and equipme

Computer software (purchased and develo
Computer equipmet

Vehicles

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixture

* The estimated useful life is the lesser -5 years or the lease ter

Note 5 — Business Combination

In August 2010, the Company completed the purcftageAcquisition”) of all of the issued and outsthng shares of Automotive
Specialty Accessories and Parts, Inc. and its whmlined subsidiary Whitney Automotive Group, Ineférred to herein as “WAG”"), at the
time, a leader in the automobile aftermarket pentorce parts and accessories market. Assets acduiiade intangible assets consisting of
customer relationships, technology, and trade napreperty and equipment such as furniture andifes, machinery and equipment, and a
350,000 square foot distribution center in LaSallmois with a headquarter office located in Clgm, Illinois (the office sublease related to
WAG's former headquarters was terminated in thetfoquarter of fiscal 2011) . The final purchaseg@of WAG was $26.7 million in cash,
including certain adjustments as set forth in teatain Stock Purchase Agreement executed Aug2§i1) (the “Purchase Agreemendiinong
Go Fido, Inc., WAG, 2000 Riverside Capital Appréicia Fund, L.P. and the other stockholders of WAGe Acquisition provided the
Company with product line expansion into all temraehicles, recreational vehicles and motorcya@ssyell as deep product knowledge into
niche segments like Jeep, Volkswagen and truckusiahts. This expansion in the Company'’s produet fias increased its customer reach in
the do-it-yourself automobile and off-road acceesomarket. In addition, WAG's facility located litinois, which was custom built for
business-to-consumer distribution of auto parteyald the Company to complete its three-distributtenter network. These expected
synergies from the Acquisition contributed to tlomdwill associated with the Acquisition of $9.1 lwih. See the purchase price allocation
table below for further details.

The Acquisition has been accounted for under thiehlase method of accounting in accordance with 88& Business Combinations
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of WAG hdezn recorded as of the acquisition date at thepective fair values, and combined with
the Company’s assets and liabilities. The resdltperations of WAG and the estimated fair marladtigs of the acquired assets and liabilities
have been included in the consolidated financakstents from the date of the Acquisition.

The following table summarizes our allocation af fiurchase price for the Acquisition to the esteddtir values of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the date of the Acgoisi(in thousands):

Assets:
Accounts receivabl® $ 1,132
Inventory 12,36¢
Deferred income taxe 12C
Property and equipme® 16,43(
Intangible assetl 17,37¢
Other asset 2,281

Total asset $49,71:¢
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Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $(23,54)
Accrued expense (4,539
Deferred income taxe (2,739
Other liabilities (1,279
Total liabilities $(32,087)
Goodwill @) $ 9,08:
Final purchase price $ 26,718

@ Accounts receivable decreased by $1.5 million f&2r6 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2011elto the Company’s correction of an

immaterial balance sheet reclassificati
@) During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company rded an impairment charge of $1.0 million on builgliRefer to ‘Note 4 — Property
and Equipment, N¢’ for additional details
The goodwill resulting from the Acquisition was ndaductible for tax purposes. Goodwill increasedibys million from $7.6 million in
the third quarter of fiscal 2011 due to the Compsgrrection of an immaterial balance sheet reifi@ation. During the fourth quarter
of 2012, the Company recorded an impairment losgomawill of $9.1 million related to WAG (total inmrment charge of $18.9 million
on a consolidated basis). Refel* Note 6- Goodwill and Intangible Asse” for additional details

@)

Of the total purchase price, approximately $8.2iamilwas allocated to trade name assets with agfimite life and $9.2 million was
allocated to amortizable intangible assets acquirbd amortizable intangible assets are being areorbn a straight line basis over their
respective useful lives, except for internet platfantellectual property which is amortized on acelerated basis over 10 months, based o
Company’s estimated usage of the asset as follombdusands):

Gross
Weighted-Average Carrying
Useful Life Amount
Intangible assets subject to amortizati
Internet platform intellectual proper 10 month $ 4,30(
Product design intellectual prope 9 year. 2,75(
Customer relationshir 4 year 2,05(
Favorable lease 2.5 year 78
9,17¢
Intangible assets not subject to amortizat
Trade name indefinite life 8,20(
Total $17,37¢

For fiscal year 2012 and 2011, the Company recoatieichpairment loss of $2.8 million and $5.1 miflicelated to certain trade name
intangible assets associated with the WAG acqaisitin addition, the Company recorded an impairniesg of $0.9 million on customer
relationships in fiscal year 2012. The impairmasslwas primarily the result of the deterioratiothie economic environment and lower sales
and profitability which generated losses from WAR&fer to “Note 6 — Goodwill and Intangible Assétor additional details.

WAG'’s financial results have been included in comsolidated statements of comprehensive operagiocs the acquisition date of
August 12, 2010. The following pro forma finandiaflormation presents the results as if the WAG #&ition had occurred at the beginning of
fiscal year 2010 (in thousands, except per shariarts):

Fifty -Two
Weeks Ended
January 1, 201:

Net sales $ 338,88
Net loss (29,807)
Basic net loss per sha (0.9¢)
Diluted net loss per sha (0.9§¢
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Fifty -Two
Weeks Ended

January 1, 201!
Weighted average shares used in computing baslosgeper common

share 30,26¢
Weighted average shares used in computing diluéétbas per common
share 30,26¢

During fiscal 2010, the net sales of $39.1 millard the net loss of $6.0 million of WAG were inadaldin our consolidated statement of
operations since the acquisition date of Augus2020.

Related to the Acquisition, the Company incurregiésition and integration related costs of $7.4liomland $3.1 million for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2011 and January 1, &&hkctively, which have been recorded in genechlaaministrative expenses. Thi
costs included one-time contract cancellation cok$l.5 million that the Company recorded in Seyder 2011, pursuant to ASC 4EQit or
Disposal Cost Obligation(*ASC 420"), for terminating WAG's sublease agreement relatetstiormer corporate offices located in Chicago,
lllinois. No acquisition and integration relatedst®were incurred subsequent to December 31, 2011.

Note 6 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment oraanual basis or more frequently if events or ¢irstances occur that would
indicate a reduction in fair value. We identifieebtreporting units, Base USAP, which is the cor® guarts business, and AutoMD, an online
automotive repair source, (refer t&&gment Dataabove in “Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policied Nature of Operations
") in accordance with ASC 28Begment ReportingWWe identified AutoMD as a reporting unit for poges of the goodwill impairment testing
and no impairment charge was recorded relatedgadporting unit. The results of the impairmemstiteg discussed below refer solely to Base
USAP.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company tided adverse events related to the Company’salvBnancial performance,
including the continued downward trend in the Comypsrevenues and negative cash flows from operatiand a sustained decline in the
Company’s share price, that would more likely thabreduce the fair value of our reporting unitdveits carrying amount. As of October 31,
2012, the Company performed its annual impairmesttand the excess of carrying value estimatesfaireralue for our reporting unit was
approximately $21.8 million. Therefore, the Compaeyformed the second step of the goodwill impairhtest to measure the amount of
impairment loss. The second step compares theadhfdir value of goodwill with the carrying amowdtgoodwill. The implied fair value of
goodwill is determined in the same manner as theuanof goodwill recognized in a business comboratiThe excess of the fair value of a
reporting unit over the amounts assigned to itetasnd liabilities is the implied fair value ofagtwill. Based on its analysis, the Company
recognized an impairment loss on goodwill of $18iBion during the fourth quarter of 2012. Refer‘iote 1 — Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and Nature of Operati” and “Note 3 — Fair Value Measurementigr additional details.

The following table summarizes the changes in @adgyill (in thousands):

Accum.
Impairment
Gross Net

Amount Losses Amount
Balance at January 1, 2011 $23,07" $ (4,430 $ 18,641
Adjustment to goodwil 207 — 207
Balance at December 31, 20 $23,28:- $ (4,430 $ 18,85¢
Impairment loss on goodwi — (18,859 (18,859

Balance at December 29, 20 $23,28:¢ $ (23,289 $ —
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Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, consistetheffollowing at December 29, and December 31 13@1thousands):

December 29, 201, December 31, 201
Accum. Net Accum. Net
Gross Amort. and Carrying Gross Amort. and Carrying
Carrying Carrying
Useful Life Amount Impairment Amount Amount Impairment Amount
Intangible assets subject to amortizati

Websites S5year $ 2,03 $ (2,03) $ — $ 203 $ (1,00) $1,03¢

Internet platform intellectual proper 10 month 4,30( (4,300 — 4,30( (4,300 —
Product design intellectual prope® 2 year 2,75( (722) 2,02¢ 2,75(C (41€) 2,33¢
Customer relationshir 4 year 2,05( (2,050 — 2,05( (712) 1,33¢
Assembled workforc 7 year 51z (512) — 481 (275) 20€
Favorable leas 2.5 year 78 (78) — 78 (56) 22
Domain and trade nam® 10 year 5,067 (3,86¢) 1,19¢ 5,05( — 5,05(
Total $16,79: $(13,56Y) $3,227 $16,74«+ $ (6,76() $9,98¢

@ During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company deieed an estimated useful life of 2 years. Priothis, estimated useful life was 9

years.
Prior to fiscal year 2012, domain and trade nanagkam indefinite useful life. During the fourth qieat of 2012, after the impairment
charges were recognized (see discussion belowf;ahgpany determined an estimated useful life ojddrs.

@

As of December 31, 2011, the Company recorded aainment charge of $5.1 million related to certaade name intangible assets
associated with the WAG acquisition. During thertbhiuquarter of 2012, we recognized additional impeint losses on certain trade names for
$3.9 million. The impairment charges were primatiilg result of the deterioration in the economigiemment and lower sales and
profitability. Given the indicators of impairmeniye Company utilized the Royalty Savings methodatermining fair value of the trade name
intangible assets. The decrease in future castsftesulted in these indefinite-lived assets baimggiired, as the carrying value of the trade
names exceeded the fair value. No impairment l@sracognized for indefinite-lived intangible assiring fiscal year 2010. For intangibles
subject to amortization, we recorded an impairniesg to websites, customer relationships and adsemorkforce of $0.7 million,
$0.9 million and $0.1 million, respectively, in tfaurth quarter of 2012. The Company did not redogimpairment loss on intangible assets
subject to amortization for fiscal year 2011 and@Refer td'Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policéesl Nature of Operations”
and “Note 3 — Fair Value Measurementgr additional details.

Intangibles subject to amortization are expensed simaight-line basis, except for the internetfptan intellectual property which was
amortized on an accelerated basis. Amortizatiorese relating to intangibles totaled $1.2 milli$8,7 million and $2.8 million for fiscal year
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The following table summarizes the future estimatedual amortization expense for these assetsti@arext five years (in thousands):

2013 $1,13¢
2014 1,13¢
2015 12C
2016 12C
2017 12C
Thereaftel 59¢
Total $3,22

Note 7 — Borrowings

On April 26, 2012, the Company, certain of its wirawned domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan ChaséBN.A., as sole lender and
administrative agent entered into a Credit Agredr(the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreemenbyides for a revolving commitment in
an aggregate principal amount of up to $40,000(€89“Credit Facility”), which is subject to a bowing base derived from certain
receivables, inventory and property and equipmEme. Credit Facility matures on April 26, 2017. TBempany used the proceeds of the loan:
borrowed on the closing date to repay in full iteyious credit facility with Silicon Valley Banknlconnection with the payoff of our previous
credit facility, the Company recorded a loss ont@etinguishment of $360,000 which was comprised pfepayment fee in the amount of
$166,000, accelerated deferred financing costsaratmount of $185,000 and other direct expensateteto the previous debt. At
December 29, 2012, our outstanding revolving loalafce was $16.2 million. The customary eventsefdult under the Credit Facility
(discussed below) include certain subjective acatte clauses, which management has determindikéidnood of such acceleration is more
than remote, considering the recurring losses @pezd by the Company, therefore a current clasdifin of our revolving loan payable was
required.
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Loans drawn under the Credit Facility bear interasthe Company’s option, at a per annum rateleéquether (a) LIBOR plus an
applicable margin of 1.50%, or (b) an “alternateéeate” minus an applicable margin of 0.50%. Esgmblicable margin as set forth in the prior
sentence is subject to increase or decrease b%Q25 annum based upon the Company’s fixed chargerage ratio. At December 29, 2012,
the Company’s LIBOR based interest rate was 1.7@%$(5.0 million principal) and the Company'’s pritvesed rate was 2.75% (on $1.2
million principal). A commitment fee, based upordteawvn availability under the Credit Facility beayimterest at a rate of 0.20% per annur
payable monthly. Under the terms of the Credit &grent, cash receipts are deposited into a lockubich are at the Company’s discretion
unless the “cash dominion period” is in effect,idgrwhich cash receipts will be used to reduce art®wawing under the Credit Agreement.
The cash dominion period is triggered in an evémiedault or if excess availability is less than®®,000 at any time, as defined, and will
continue until, during the preceding 60 consecutiags, no event of default existed and excessahiliiy has been greater than $7,000,000 at
all times. The Company’s excess availability wa8.8Imillion at December 29, 2012 or $4.8 millioattivas available above the cash
dominion trigger of $6 million. On March 12, 2018e entered into a first amendment to the previoaslgred credit agreement in April 2012
(“Amended Credit Agreement”). The Amendment Crédjteement includes an amendment to the definitfarogenant testing trigger period
to commence on any day that excess availabilitgss than $4 million solely during the period Mafct2013 through and including April 15,
2013 and continuing until excess availability hasrbgreater than or equal to $4 million solely migithe period of March 1, 2013 through and
including April 15, 2013 at all times for 45 conatige calendar days. As of the date hereof, thla dasninion period has not been in effect;
accordingly no principal payments are currently.due

Certain of the Company’s wholly-owned domestic sdibsies are co-borrowers (together with the Conypéime “Borrowers”) under the
Credit Agreement, and certain other wholly-ownethdstic subsidiaries are guarantors (the “Guarah&ms, together with the Borrowers, the
“Loan Parties”) under the Credit Agreement. TherBaers and the Guarantors are jointly and sevelialije for the Borrowers’ obligations
under the Credit Agreement. The Loan Parties’ albiaons under the Credit Agreement are securedesutyj customary permitted liens and
certain exclusions, by a perfected security intdre&) all tangible and intangible assets anda(bdf the capital stock owned by the Loan
Parties (limited, in the case of foreign subsidigrito 65% of the capital stock of such foreignssdibries). The Borrowers may voluntarily
prepay the loans at any time without payment afesnium. The Borrowers are required to make mangaimpayments of the loans (without
payment of a premium) with net cash proceeds redeiypon the occurrence of certain “prepayment eyemwhich include certain sales or ot
dispositions of collateral, certain casualty ora@®mnation events, certain equity issuance or dagotaributions, and the incurrence of certain
debt. Upon the satisfaction of certain conditicdhs, borrowers have the right to increase the rénglzommitments up to and above
$60,000,000. Borrowers may make a maximum of thued requests in a minimum amount of $5,000,000.ddgon approval of such an
increase, the aggregate revolving commitment amwilhbe revised and the Credit Agreement amendedppropriate. The Company, to date
has not requested such increases.

The Credit Agreement contains customary representaaind warranties and customary affirmative agghtive covenants applicable to
the Company and its subsidiaries, including, anuhgr things, restrictions on indebtedness, likmgjamental changes, investments,
dispositions, prepayment of other indebtednessgensy and dividends and other distributions. UriderCredit Agreement, the Company is
required to maintain a minimum fixed charge coveregio, unless excess availability is less tha@®B000, as defined, whereby a ratio of
to 1.0 will be required. Events of default undex @redit Agreement include: failure to timely madeyments due under the Credit Agreement
material misrepresentations or misstatements uheeCredit Agreement and other related agreemtailisre to comply with covenants under
the Credit Agreement and other related agreemeetiin defaults in respect of other material inddhess; insolvency or other related events
certain defaulted judgments; certain ERISA-relaeents; certain security interests or liens undeddan documents cease to be, or are
challenged by the Company or any of its subsidsagie not being, in full force and effect; any la@Tument or any material provision of the
same ceases to be in full force and effect; anicecriminal indictments or convictions of any lroBarty. As of December 29, 2012, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants utiderCredit Agreement.

In August 2010, the Company executed a Loan andriBg@greement (the “Prior Credit Agreemen#iid other definitive documentati
for a $35 million secured credit facility (the “BriCredit Facility”). Silicon Valley Bank was therider under the Prior Credit Facility. The
Prior Credit Facility was comprised of a term laanhe original principal amount of $25 million aadevolving line of credit with availability
up to $10 million. The Prior Credit Facility hadimal maturity date of June 30, 2014, and borrowingder the Prior Credit Facility were
interest bearing, at the election of the CompahiJBOR (with a floor of 1.25%) plus a margin frotn00% to 3.00% per annum, or at the V
Street Journal Prime Rate plus a margin from 1.69%00% per annum, based upon the Company’s mawifonded debt ratio. An unused
revolving line fee of 0.375% per annum was payall¢he undrawn committed amount of the revolving lbf credit. Interest on outstanding
borrowings under the term loan and the revolving bbf credit was payable no less than quarterlytaeautstanding principal of the term loan
was amortized over four
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years and payable quarterly, with any outstandingumt under the Prior Credit Facility to be paiduth on the final maturity date. Borrowing
under the Prior Credit Facility were secured bysiever all assets of the Company, including shaffetock in each of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Prior Credit Agreement requited@ompany to comply with a number of restrictiegenants, including financial covenants
related to maximum funded debt to consolidatedirgsnbefore interest, taxes, depreciation and aradiin (“EBITDA”), as defined,

liquidity, and consolidated fixed charge coveraag#os; negative pledge requirements; requirementdeliver quarterly and annual consolidz
financial statements; requirements to maintain adeginsurances; prohibitions on changes in thabss and disposition of the Company’s
assets; and other customary covenants. The Congmahgilicon Valley Bank entered into four amendredatthe Prior Credit Agreement
through March 2012. The Prior Credit Facility’s stainding balance of $17.9 million was repaid it ifulApril 2012 through the proceeds of
the loan borrowed from JP Morgan Chase Bank.

As of December 29, 2012, the Company had capialele payable of $140,000.

Note 8 — Stockholders’ Equity and Share-Based Compsation
Common Stock

The Company has 100,000,000 shares of common atahkrized. We have never paid cash dividends oc@uamon stock. The
following issuances of common stock were made dyiistal year 2012:

* The Company issued 489,105 shares of common stogkdption exercises under its various share-basetbensation plans, as
discussed belov

» 13,174 shares of common stock were awarded anddgswne non-employee member of the Board of Biredor service fees
earned in the aggregate amount of $53,125. Sucimoonstock was awarded from the 2007 Omnibus Ineeiftlan, discussed
below.

Share-Based Compensation Plan Information

The Company adopted the 2007 Omnibus Incentive @h&n'2007 Omnibus Plan”) in January 2007, whielsdme effective on
February 8, 2007, the effective date of the regiigin statement filed in connection with the Compsaimnitial public offering. Under the 2007
Omnibus Plan, the Company was previously authotiaéslsue 2.4 million shares of common stock, unvdeious instruments to eligible
employees and non-employees of the Company, plasi@matic annual increase on the first day of eédiche Company’s fiscal years
beginning on January 1, 2008 and ending on Jariyé§17 equal to (i) the lesser of (A) 1,500,008rek of common stock or (B) five percent
(5%) of the number of shares of common stock ontstey on the last day of the immediately precediscpl year or (i) such lesser number of
shares of common stock as determined by the Comp®&wnard of Directors. Options granted under the7Z20fhnibus Plan generally expire
later than ten years from the date of grant aneigdly vest over a period of four years. The exargrice of all option grants must be equal to
100% of the fair market value on the date of gréihe 2007 Omnibus Plan also provides for autongaiat of options to purchase common
stock and common stock awards to non-employeetdi®As of December 29, 2012, 1,946,127 sharee @xailable for future grants under
the 2007 Omnibus Plan.

The Company adopted the 2007 New Employee InceRtize (the “2007 New Employee Plan”) in October 200nder the 2007 New
Employee Plan, the Company is authorized to isswdlidbn shares of common stock under various unsints solely to new employees.
Options granted under the 2007 New Employee Plarrgdly expire no later than ten years from the dditgrant and generally vest over a
period of four years. The exercise price of ali@pigrants must not be less than 100% of the fairket value on the date of grant. As of
December 29, 2012, 706,667 shares were availabfatfore grants under the 2007 New Employee Plan.

The Company adopted the U.S. Auto Parts Netwoik,2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan"March 2006. All stock options
to purchase common stock granted to employeesdf @@re granted under the 2006 Plan and had eggrdises equal to the fair value of the
underlying stock, as determined by the Company’arBof Directors on the applicable option granedatfter fiscal year 2008, no shares have
been available for future grants under the 2006.Pla
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The following table summarizes the Company’s stoption activity for the fifty-two weeks ended Dedeen 29, 2012, and details
regarding the options outstanding and exercisatileeaember 29, 2012:

Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic Value
__Shares _ Exercise Price _Term (in years) @
Options outstanding, December 31, 2011 7,454,711 $ 5.0 6.0¢
Grantec 897,50( $ 4.0z
Exercisec (489,109 $ 1.3C
Expired (228,20¢) $ 5.7¢
Forfeited (206,66 $ 4.9t
Options outstanding, December 29, 2 7,428,241 $ 5.1z 6.2% $ 273,45(
Vested and expected to vest at December -
2012 7,048,52! $ 5.1€ 6.0¢ $ 273,44
Options exercisable, December 29, 2 5,827,18! $ 5.12 5.5 $ 266,99(

@ These amounts represent the difference betweesxtreise price and the closing price of U.S. Auta$Network, Inc. stock on

December 29, 2012 as reported on the NASDAQ Nattidiaaket, for all options outstanding that haveexercise price currently below
the closing price

The weighted-average fair value of options gramheding fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $2.828and $3.75, respectively. The
intrinsic value of stock options at the date of éxercise is the difference between the fair value stock at the date of exercise and the
exercise price. During fiscal year 2012, 2011 adti(? the total intrinsic value of the exercisedam was $1.2 million, $0.5 million and $1.4
million, respectively. The Company had $2.0 millimihunrecognized share-based compensation expelased to stock options outstanding as
of December 29, 2012, which expense is expectbé tecognized over a weighted-average period oj&aés.

Warrants

On May 5, 2009, the Company issued warrants tohase up to 30,000 shares of common stock at acisaqrice of $2.14 per share,
which warrants terminate seven years after thaintglate. The warrants were issued in connectitimté financial advisory services provic
by a consultant to the Company. The warrants vastddrty-six equal monthly increments of 833 gtmeach on the last calendar day of each
calendar month commencing May 5, 2009. The graie f@é value of these warrants issued on May B920as $1.09 per share. Accordingly,
these non-employee equity instruments were re-medss they vested over the requisite service gefibese warrants became fully vested
during the second quarter of 2012, in which thalfre-measured fair value was $3.14 per share.

On April 27, 2010, the Company issued additionairawts to purchase up to 20,000 shares of comnoak st an exercise price of $8.32
per share, to the same consultant in connectidmtivé financial advisory services provided to tlwmpany. The warrants terminate seven
years after their grant date. The warrants vestédénty-four equal monthly increments of 833 shares eaxcthe last calendar day of each
calendar month commencing April 27, 2010. The gdaté fair value of the additional warrants issaedipril 27, 2010 was $2.12 per share.
Accordingly, these non-employee equity instrumevese re-measured as they vested over the rege&itice period. These warrants became
fully vested during the quarter ended March 31,201 which the final re-measured fair value wast®lper share.

The Company determined the fair value of the wdsranhthe date of grant, and upon the re-measurethaées, using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model based on the fair value oftineerlying common stock, the exercise price, remgicontractual term, risk-free rate and
expected volatility. No warrants were exercisedriyfiscal year 2012. As of December 29, 2012, aats to purchase 50,000 shares of
common stock were outstanding and exercisable aggesgate intrinsic value of outstanding and esatile warrants was $0 as of
December 29, 2012, which was calculated as therdifice between the exercise price of underlying@svand the closing price of the
Company’s common stock for warrants that were axtioney. Total warrants share-based compensatmensg recognized during the fiscal
year 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $16,000, $65,000 &h@@0, respectively. The Company had no unrecegrshar-based compensation
expense related to warrants outstanding as of Deeef®, 2012.
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Performance Stock Options

In fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, the CompanyarB of Directors approved 125,000 shares, 1258@60es and 200,000 shares,
respectively, of performance options that genenadist over a four-year period based on the achiemewnf operational goals. The performance
option grants were valued using the Black-Schof#®o pricing model in the same manner as othexksbption grants, as discussed below.
We record share-based compensation expense wisquratbable that the performance criteria will betm

Share-Based Compensation Expense

The fair value of each option grant was estimatethe date of grant using the Black-Scholes optidcing model with the following
assumptions for each of the periods ended:

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 29 December 31
2012 2011 January 1, 2011
Expected life 5.73years 6-6.25year 6-6.25year
Risk-free interest rat 1% 1% - 3% 2% — 3%
Expected volatility 71%—-74% 50%- 52% 51%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%

Share-based compensation from options, warrantstacké awards, is included in our consolidatedestaints of comprehensive
operations, as follows (in thousands):

Fifty -Two Weeks Ended

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,

2012 2011 2011
Marketing expense $ 50¢ $ 41z $ 321
General and administrative expel 1,11¢ 1,58( 1,86¢
Fulfillment expens® (38) 37C 37¢€
Technology expens 87 244 17€
Total shar-based compensation expel $ 1,67 $ 2,601 $ 2,742

@ For the fifty-two weeks ended December 29, 2012 nibgative balance was due to an adjustment of, 2@ 9elated to performance

stock options because the performance goal wamebor it is not probable that the performance gakilbe met at the end of the
requisite service perio

The share-based compensation expense is net ofnésmapitalized to internallgeveloped software of $252,000, $219,000 and $08
during the fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, resglgt No tax benefit was recognized for fiscal y2a12, 2011 and 2010 due to the valuatior
allowance position.

Under ASC 718, forfeitures are estimated at the tifhgrant and revised, if necessary, in subsequenidds if actual forfeitures
significantly differ from those estimates. The Canyp's estimated forfeiture rates are calculate@tbas actual historical forfeitures
experienced under our equity plans. In the firgrtgr of fiscal 2012, the Company performed a pliciceview of the estimated forfeiture rates
and determined an increase to the existing forfeitates was necessary. This increase was prinatilputed to higher terminations in the
non-executive employee group than was previougheeted. Accordingly, the Company updated the farfeirates from 10%-18%, to 16%-
34% and has applied such revised rates duringfthieo weeks ended December 29, 2012.

Note 9 — Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share has been computed in accordatitASC 260Earnings per Sharelhe following table sets forth the computation of
basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousana®pt per share data):

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31
January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Net loss per share
Numerator:
Net loss $ (35,97)) $(15,13) $ (13,92
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Denominator

Weightec-average common shares outstanding (bi 30,81¢ 30,54¢ 30,26¢
Common equivalent shares from common stock opamaswarrant: — — —

Weightec-average common shares outstanding (dilu 30,81¢ 30,54¢ 30,26¢
Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (1.19) $ (0.50) $ (0.4¢)

The weighted-average anti-dilutive securities, Whace excluded from the calculation of diluted @aga per share due to the Company’s
net loss position for the periods then ended (itiolg securities that would otherwise be excludedifthe calculation of diluted earnings per
share due the Company’s stock price), are as fali@gwthousands):

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,

2012 2011 2011
Common stock warrants 50 5C 50
Options to purchase common st¢ 7,642 7,20¢ 6,69:
Total 7,69z 7,25¢ 6,74:

Note 10 — Income Taxes

As discussed itNote 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Pokicéand Nature of Operations’the Company applies the current U.S.
GAAP on accounting for uncertain tax positions, ethprescribe a recognition threshold and a measneaitribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax positions takerxpected to be taken in a tax return. For thesefits to be recognized, a tax position
must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained up@meénation by taxing authorities. The amount reéoggh is measured as the largest amount
of benefit that has greater than 50 percent likelthof being realized upon ultimate settlement.ddtesider many factors when evaluating and
estimating our tax positions and tax benefits, Whitay require periodic adjustments and which mayanourately forecast actual outcomes.
As of December 29, 2012, the Company had no materiacognized tax benefits, interest or penatidsted to federal and state income tax
matters. The Company'’s policy is to record intesgst penalties as income tax expense.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tawell as income tax of foreign and state tax gicsons. The tax years 2008-2011
remain open to examination by the major taxingspligtions to which the Company is subject, exceptihternal Revenue Service for which
the tax years 2009-2011 remain open. The Compaey dot anticipate a significant change to the amofianrecognized tax benefits within
the next twelve months.

The components of loss before income tax provismmsist of the following (in thousands):

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,

2012 2011 2011
Domestic operations $ (37,469 $ (16,97¢ $ (2,540
Foreign operation 554 327 832
Total loss before income tax $ (36,919 $ (16,649 $ (1,709

Income tax (benefit) provision for fiscal year 202P11 and 2010 consists of the following (in themds):

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Current:
Federal tay $ — $ — $ (439
State ta» 14 23 8
Foreign tax (76) 4 73
Total current taxe (62 27 (359

F-26



Table of Contents

Fifty -Two Weeks Endec

December 2¢ December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Deferred:
Federal tay (12,617 (5,516 61
State tay (2,619 (1,72%) 13
Foreign tax 275 — —
Total deferred taxe (14,959 (7,249 74
Valuation allowanct 14,08( 5,70¢ 12,49¢
Income tax (benefit) provisic $ (939 $ (1,519 $12,21¢
Income tax (benefit) provision differs from the amothat would result from applying the federalstary rate as follows (in thousands):
December 2¢ December 31 January 1,
2012 2011 2011
Income tax at U.S. federal statutory rate $ (12,55) $ (5,66 $ (58))
Shar+based compensatic 38 21 (93
State income tax, net of federal tax ef (2,52¢) (1,629 (759)
Tax exempt interes — ©)] (8)
Foreign tax (27) (10¢) (210
Non deductible acquisition cos — — 25¢
Other 51 14C 1
Change in valuation allowan 14,08( 5,72¢ 13,61(
Effective tax (benefit) provisio $ (937 $ (1,519 $12,21¢

For fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, the effedterate for the Company was 2.5%, 9.1% and (7%.8spectively. The Company’s
effective tax rate for fiscal year 2012 differsrfrahe U.S. federal statutory rate primarily assuleof the recording of a $14.1 million valuat
allowance against the Company'’s deferred tax adse®912, the effective income tax benefit stemimarily from the reversal of the net
deferred income tax liability resulting from theiterdown of goodwill and other intangible assets] the impact of the Philippine tax holiday,
partially offset by the accrual of withholding taxeslated to potential repatriation of earningthm Philippines. The Company’s effective tax
rate for fiscal year 2011 differs from the U.S.deal statutory rate primarily as a result of theording of a $5.7 million valuation allowance
against the Company’s deferred tax assets. Addiliprthe Company’s fiscal 2011 tax benefit wasstabtially the result of a $5.1 million
impairment loss on intangibles resulting in theuet@n of long term deferred tax liabilities. Ther@pany’s effective tax rate for fiscal year
2010 differs from the U.S. federal statutory ratenarily as a result of the recording of a $14.1lion valuation allowance against the
Company'’s deferred tax assets.

The Company'’s effective tax rate was impacted lognme taxes incurred in foreign jurisdictions. Wigispect to the income of its foreign
subsidiaries, prior to 2012, the Company treatediegs of the foreign subsidiaries as permanenthgsted in that jurisdiction. As a result, no
additional income tax withholding was provided be possible future repatriation of these earninghé parent company in prior years.
During 2012, based on current year operating anddwcash flow needs the Company decided thauidomo longer represent that these funds
would be indefinitely reinvested in the foreignigdictions, but that such funds may be neededdaetnl corporate purposes. As a result the
Company has recorded future withholding taxes whiohld be due if the funds are required to be migted. The Company intends to
continue to pursue all reasonable means to inciiesasevestment in the foreign jurisdictions astdied by future growth in general business
activities or as allowed by the foreign jurisdictsoto avoid incurring the income tax withholdingperse. The favorable impact of foreign taxe
is due in large part to a tax holiday in the Plpifes, which was effective through September 20h2. Company is in the process of applying
for a one year extension. Although management égplee extension to be approved based on its dismusiith the foreign taxing authority,
the Philippines tax liability has been computediasag no tax holiday on the post expiration earginghe impact of this tax holiday decrea
foreign taxes by $72,000, $144,000 and $182,00€igcal year 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Béreefit of the tax holiday on net loss
share was immaterial for the related years.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiessisted of the following (in thousands):

December 2¢ December 31
2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Inventory and inventory related rese $ 1,02¢ $ 1,597
Shar+-based compensatic 4,37¢ 4,017
Amortization 15,66¢ 9,41¢
Sales and bad debt allowan: 773 79k
Vacation accrue 34E 29C
Other comprehensive incor — 9
Net operating loss and AMT credit ce-forwards 17,65¢ 13,25(
Other 401 65
Total deferred tax asse 40,25( 29,43¢
Valuation Allowance (36,896 (22,81)
Net deferred tax asse 3,35¢ 6,61¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Tax over book depreciatic 3,20¢ 5,27(
Tax over book amortizatic 13C 2,22¢
Prepaid catalog expens 293 272
Total deferred tax liabilitie 3,62¢ 7,76¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (275) $ (1,150

At December 29, 2012, federal and state net opegrédiss (“NOL”) carryforwards were $39.2 millioncd$53.9 million respectively.
Federal NOL carryforwards of $2.7 million were airgd in the acquisition of WAG which are subjectiternal Revenue Code section 382
and limited to an annual usage limitation of $188,0Additionally, the tax benefit of $0.7 milliorf the federal and state NOL carryforwards
which was created by the exercise of stock optwitide credited to additional paid-in-capital onezognized. Federal NOL carryforwards
begin to expire in 2029, while state NOL carryfordsbegin to expire in 2016. The state NOL carmyBmds expire in the respective tax years
as follows (in thousands):

2016- 2022 $38,85:¢
2023- 2032 15,08
$53,93¢

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsroel during fiscal year 2012 and 2011 is basea wore likely than not threshold. 1
ability to realize deferred tax assets depend$erability to generate sufficient taxable incoméhn the carryback or carryforward periods
provided for in the tax law for each applicable jiasisdiction. We considered the following possibtaurces of taxable income when assessing
the realization of deferred tax assets:

» Future reversals of existing taxable temporaryedifices

» Future taxable income exclusive of reversing terapodifferences and carryforwarc
e Taxable income in prior carryback years; i

* Tax-planning strategie:

Under the provisions of ASC 740, “Income Taxes”,nidgement is required to evaluate whether a valuatiowance should be
established against its deferred tax assets bastte@onsideration of all available evidence usirighore likely than not” standard.
Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent tgp@ble income in prior carryback years, estisiatduture taxable income, tax planning
strategies, and reversal of existing taxable teanyatdifferences. ASC 740 provides that forming adtosion that a valuation allowance is not

needed is difficult when there is negative evidesweh as cumulative losses in recent years ordasgeected in early future years. Based on
this evaluation, as of December 31, 2012, a valnallowance of $36.9 million has been recordedrsgaur deferred tax assets.

If, in the future, we generate taxable income sustained basis in jurisdictions where we haverdarbfull valuation allowances, our
conclusion regarding the need for full valuatiolowhnces in these tax jurisdictions could changsulting in the reversal of some or all of the
valuation allowances. If our operations generatatie income prior to reaching
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profitability on a sustained basis, we would reeaagortion of the valuation allowance relatechdorresponding realized tax benefit for that
period, without changing our conclusions on thedfee a full valuation allowance against the renramet deferred tax assets.

Included in accrued expenses are income taxes [gagh$25,000, $93,000 and $95,000 for the fisearn2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, consisting primarily of foreign taxes

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies
Facilities Leases

The Company'’s corporate headquarters and wareliacitides are located in Carson, California. AsD#cember 29, 2012, we
maintained multiple separate leases for the CarSalifornia facilities. The Company’s corporate tigaarters has an initial lease term of five
years through October 2016, and optional renevatsigh January 2020. The Company also leases waselspace in Chesapeake, Virgi
under an agreement scheduled to expire in June IJBEGCompany also leases office and warehouse spacdependence, Ohio on a month-
to-month basis since the agreement expired in Jara@d 3. The Company’s Philippines subsidiary leasffice space under a sixty-three
month agreement through May 2015, renewable fadatitional sixty months through April 2020. As betdate hereof, the Company has not
committed to any facilities lease renewals.

Facility rent expense for fiscal year ended 2018,12and 2010 was $2.4 million, $2.6 million and4$aiillion, respectively. The
Company’s facility rent expense was inclusive obamts charged from a related party during the figear ended 2012, 2011 and 2010 of
$374,000, $374,000 and $389,000, respectively.

On September 22, 2011, the Company entered intblaase agreement (the “Sublease”) with Timec Comac. (“Timec”) for the
leasing of approximately 25,000 square feet of ceneial office space located at 16941 Keegan Ave@aeson, California 90746. The
Sublease enabled the Company to consolidate itocate office space from three buildings into ared allowed the Company to consolidate
its California fulfilment operations into one waise, which reduced its monthly rent expense.Stiildease has an initial term of 60 months
(“Initial Term”), and commenced on November 1, 20R0irsuant to the terms of the Sublease, effetiiwe2rd month of the Initial Term, we
have the ability to terminate the Sublease in emghdor the payment of a termination fee. Additibnave have the option to renew the
Sublease at the end of the Initial Term for an talal 12 month period, as well as the option twere the Sublease for an additional period
thereafter through January 2020. Pursuant to tinestef the Sublease, the rent, including additiseat, shall be approximately $26,300 per
month for the first year, $27,600 per month for $keond year, $29,100 per month for the third y&20,600 per month for the fourth year, anc
$32,300 per month for the fifth year. Rent for ampsequent term, after the expiration of the Ihfterm, will be negotiated in good faith
between the parties. Under the terms of the Subleas are required to maintain certain levels sfirance and are required to indemnify Ti
for losses incurred that are related to our usgcoupancy of the property.

In January 2010, the Company’s Philippines subsidéatered into a new lease agreement that accome®the Company’s Philippines
workforce into one office building from its previswffices in Pasig and Makati; the leases for th&id?and Makati facilities were terminatec
July and October 2010, respectively. Under the sesfrthe lease agreement, the Company added apmatety 39,665 square feet of space for
a period of 63 months, effective March 1, 2010. idnrental fee of approximately $25,000 is subjecb% annual escalation beginning on
the 3rd year of the lease term and renewable $ixty (60)-month term upon mutual agreement of hgattties.

In December 2008, the Company entered into a feex-pperating lease for warehouse space in Chdsgpéieginia, which commenced
in January 2009 and was initially scheduled to exjysi December 2013. Under the terms of the |leaseCompany added approximately
72,500 square feet of space for initial monthlyt irapproximately $15,000 with annual rent esdatet Additionally, the Company had the
option to extend the terms for an additional fieass on or before June 30, 2013. In July 2011,igreed a five-year extension to June 30,
2016, which also added approximately 87,000 sqfggateof space. The monthly base rent commitment$88s700 as of December 29, 2012.

Upon our acquisition of WAG, we assumed a leassedlto their office and warehouse space (60,84arsdeet) in Independence, Ohio
which was originally executed on January 1, 2008 a@amnended on October 3, 2003 and February 1, Z0@8lease expired on January 31,
2013 and we are currently on a month-to-month lease

Also, upon our acquisition of WAG, we assumed deage related to their corporate headquarter offi2ze323 square feet) in Chicago,
lllinois which was originally executed on DecemBdeR007. The term of the lease commenced on Magd@8 and would have expired on
January 13, 2017. The annual base rent for thialitese term through January 31, 2009
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was $0.3 million with an annual escalation of $@illion commencing from February 1, 2009 through temaining lease term. In October
2011, the Company, WAG, and Discovery Communicatidth C (“Discovery”) entered into a Buyout Agreenméor the purpose of providing
Discovery with an incentive to enter into a dirksetse agreement with 111 East Wacker LLC (“Eastk&dy for WAG’s former corporate
headquarters located in Chicago, lllinois. In catio® with the Buyout Agreement, the total obligatiof $1.5 million that was recorded in
September 2011 was paid by the Company to Discaleting the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. AlsoGeatober 2011, the Company, WAG,
East Wacker and Marketing Werks, Inc. (“Marketin@\R5") entered into a Lease, Sublease, and LicEesuination and Surrender
Agreement (the “Termination Agreement”) for the pose of terminating WAG's sublease agreement wistikdting Werks, dated
December 4, 2007, related to WAG's former corpohetedquarters in Chicago, lllinois.

Minimum lease commitments under non-cancelableaijpey leases as of December 29, 2012 are as foliovisousands):

2013 $1,39¢
2014 1,13(C
2015 1,12
2016 69C
2017 —

Thereaftel —

Total minimum lease commitmer $4,34¢

Capital lease commitments as of December 29, 2@t2 as follows (in thousands):

Capital L
apital Lease Less:

Interest Principal

Commitments Payments Obligations
2013 $ 74 $ 5 $ 69
2014 23 2 21
2015 23 1 22
2016 23 1 22
2017 6 — 6
Total $ 14¢ $ 9 $ 14C

Legal Matters

Parts Geek Litigationln June 2009, the Company filed suit in the Uni&ates District Court for the Central District cdil€ornia agains
Parts Geek LLC (“Parts Geek™), certain of its memstand employees for misappropriation of tradeetecbreach of contract and unfair
competition and requesting monetary damages andadtiye relief, and Parts Geek filed an answer uigést 2009. In January 2010, the
complaint was amended to include claims for coptrigfringement and to add Lucas Thomason, a forenguloyee, as an additional party.
Parts Geek filed an answer and counterclaims tattended complaint in February 2010. Each pard # motion for summary judgment
requesting that the Court rule on all claims madihis matter without sending the matter to a jimyJune 2010, the Court ruled on all claim
the matter, denying the Company’s claims againgsRaeek and Lucas Thomason and denying Parts &elelims against the Company. The
judge additionally denied Parts G’s counterclaims against the Company. Parts Gedk_anas Thomason petitioned the Court to order the
Company to pay their legal fees and costs, the tGwdered the Company to do so and in August 201#adies stipulated that approximately
$1.1 million of legal fees and costs would be owe&arts Geek and Lucas Thomason should the Conps@éyts appeal or win its appeal and
lose in trial. A bond was posted to guarantee payroe$1.1 million plus interest, at a cost of appmately $0.02 million to the Company. T
Company filed an appeal and filed its initial brogf January 21, 2011. The reply brief was filed élia21, 2011. The appeal was fully briefed
by all parties and oral argument before the Ninitici@ Court of Appeals occurred on March 6, 2002. August 31, 2012, the Ninth Circuit
Court of Appeals reversed the District Court’s giragn of summary judgment in favor of Parts Geek hndas Thomason; vacated the District
Court’s entry of legal fees and costs to Parts GerkLucas Thomason; and remanded the case b#uk Ristrict Court for trial. Also, the
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals upheld the Distri@bur’s granting of summary judgment in favor of Partse® dismissing a portion of the
Company’s misappropriation of trade secrets claich dismissing the Company’s breach of contrachclas to only one of Parts Geek’s
employees. Also, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeagheld the District Court’s granting of summarggment in favor of the Company
dismissing Parts Geek’s counterclaims against tragany. On December 14, 2012, the Company and Ba#k, certain of its members and
employees, and Lucas Thomason entered into arsetiteagreement resolving all of the parties’ claagainst each other in this matter. On
December 18, 2012, all claims of each of the paittiehis matter were dismissed with prejudice settlement amount was not material.
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Asbestos A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Autometi8pecialty Accessories and Parts, Inc. and itdlyvloevned subsidiar
WAG, are named defendants in several lawsuits iwglclaims for damages caused by installationrakbes during the late 1960’s and early
1970’s that contained asbestos. WAG marketed oebtaikes, but did not manufacture any brakes. WAsBhtains liability insurance coverage
to protect its and the Company’s assets from loggsig from the litigation and coverage is pr@ddn an occurrence rather than a claims
made basis, and the Company is not expected to siguificant out-of-pocket costs in connectiontwiihis matter that would be material to its
consolidated financial statements.

The Company is subject to legal proceedings arithslavhich arise in the ordinary course of its basm As of the date hereof, the
Company believes that the final disposition of saetters will not have a material adverse effecthenfinancial position, results of operations
or cash flow of the Company. The Company mainthafslity insurance coverage to protect the Compsuagsets from losses arising out of or
involving activities associated with ongoing andmal business operations.

Note 12 — Employee Retirement Plan and Deferred Cgmensation Plan

Effective February 17, 2006, the Company adopté@igk) defined contribution retirement plan covgrail full time employees who
have completed one month of service. The Compary atats sole discretion, match fifty cents pellaloup to 6% of each participating
employee’s salary. The Compasycontributions vest in annual installments oveeéhyears. Discretionary contributions made byGhepany
totaled $324,000, $300,000 and $213,000 for figeal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In January 2010, the Company adopted the U.S. Ratts Network, Inc. Management Deferred Compensé#tian (the “Deferred
Compensation Plan”), for the purpose of providifghly compensated employees a program to meetfihaincial planning needs. The
Deferred Compensation Plan provides participantis thie opportunity to defer up to 90% of their baakary and up to 100% of their annual
earned bonus, all of which, together with the aisged investment returns, are 100% vested fronothset. The Deferred Compensation Plan,
which is designed to be exempt from most provisioithe Employee Retirement Security Act of 1984nformally funded by the Company
through the purchase of Compaoymed life insurance policies with the Company (kper) as the owner and beneficiary, in order sprve
the tax-deferred savings advantages of a non-igdhfilan. The plan assets are the cash surrentler @athe Company-owned life insurance
policies and not associated with the deferred carsgigon liability. The deferred compensation lialas (consisting of employer contributions,
employee deferrals and associated earnings anesloae general unsecured obligations of the Compaabilities under the Deferred
Compensation Plan are recorded at amounts duetioipants, based on the fair value of participasédected investments. The Company may
at its discretion contribute certain amounts tgible employee accounts. In January 2010, the Cognpagan to contribute 50% of the first .
of participants’ eligible contributions into thédeferred Compensation Plan accounts. In Septentli€), 2he Company established and
transferred its ownership to a rabbi trust to htbkel Company-owned life insurance policies. As of®uaber 29, 2012, the assets and associat
liabilities of the Deferred Compensation Plan w&de7 million and $0.7 million, respectively, an@ @ncluded in other non-current assets and
other non-current liabilities in our consolidatealdnce sheets. As of December 31, 2011, the ams@tassociated liabilities of the Deferred
Compensation Plan were $0.5 million $0.4 milliom ame included in other non-current assets and othe-current liabilities, respectively, in
our consolidated balance sheets. For fiscal yeb2,20e associated liabilities mainly include tihepéoyee contributions of $0.5 million and t
Company contributions of $109,000. For fiscal 2ah#&, associated liabilities mainly include the eoygle contributions of $0.4 million and the
Company contributions of $74,000. For fiscal ye@t2, included in other income, the Company recoaladt gain of $34,300 for the change
in the cash surrender value of the Compawyed life insurance policies. For fiscal year 20htluded in other income, the Company recol
a net loss of $34,000 for the change in the casglesder value of the Company-owned life insurameies.

Note 13 — Restructuring Costs

In August 2012, we executed key initiatives to @@labor costs and improve operating efficienaieesponse to the challenges in the
marketplace and general market conditions. We dlose call center in La Salle, Illinois and reduaaot workforce by 71 people resulting in
severance charges of approximately $640,000 redondmarketing expense, fulfillment expense antinetogy expense of $396,000,
$228,000 and $16,000, respectively. In relatiothi® closure, we did not incur additional chargalssequent to the third quarter of 2012. As o
December 29, 2012, severance payable was $22F00(@scal year 2011, related to our WAG acquisitithe Company incurred acquisition
and integration related costs of $7.4 million, vihweere recorded in general and administrative espeirefer to Note 5 — Business
Combination” for additional details).
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Note 14 — Related-Party Transactions

Beginning in November 2003, the Company leasedoitporate headquarters and primary warehouse frianCNloe, LLC (“Nia Chloe},
a member of which, Sol Khazani, is one of our bazrdirectors. Lease payments and expenses assbevith this related party arrangement
totaled $374,000, $374,000 and $389,000 for figeat 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Compasyevaluated its relationship with
Nia Chloe with regard to ASC 8:Consolidation(*ASC 810"). The Company has determined that Ni¢o€lloes not meet the criteria for
consolidation under ASC 810 and therefore thistgrginot consolidated in the Company’s financtatements.

The Company has entered into indemnification ageseswith the Compang’directors and executive officers. These agreesmenire
the Company to indemnify these individuals to thkkeft extent permitted under law against lialgBtihat may arise by reason of their service
to the Company, and to advance expenses incurredessilt of any proceeding against them as totwthiey could be indemnified. The
Company also intends to enter into indemnificatgneements with the Company’s future directorsex@tutive officers.

Note 15 — Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following quarterly information (in thousand@scept per share data) includes all adjustmentshwiianagement considers necessar
for a fair presentation of such information. Faenim quarterly financial statements, the provisionincome taxes is estimated using the best
available information for projected results for #gire year.

Thirteen Weeks Ended Thirteen Weeks Ended
March 31, Dec 31,
June 30, Sep. 29 Dec. 29, April 2, July 2, Oct. 1, 2011
2012 2012 2012(1) 201202 20110 20110 20110 B @
Consolidated Statement of Income Datg
Net sales $87,43¢  $80,71¢ $73,01: $62,84¢ $86,97¢ $84,26¢ $78,59: $77,23!
Gross profit 26,62¢ 24,34: 22,89: 17,77¢ 30,41¢ 28,41« 24,34¢ 23,82¢
(Loss) income from operatiol (48€) (1,037 (2,549  (31,72YH 23 (2,237 (5,216 (8,577
Loss before income tax (664) (1,56%¢) (2,670 (32,019 (227) (2,369) (5,30€) (8,747)
Net loss $ (788 $(1,69¢) $(2,71) $(30,78) $ (245 $(2,569H $(5,30¢ $(7,020)
Basic and diluted net loss per share as repol
and adjuste: $ (009 $ (0.06) $ (009 $ (099 % (0.0)) $ (0.0 $ (0.1279) $ (0.29
Shares used in computation of basic and diluted
net loss per share as reported and adjt 30,63¢ 30,65 30,85« 31,12¢ 30,45( 30,54 30,57: 30,61¢

@) Included restructuring costs of $0.6 million rethte severance charges incurred due to reductiamikforce from the closure of our ¢

center in La Salle, lllinois

Included impairment loss on goodwill, property atgiipment and intangible assets of $18.9 millidn9$nillion and $5.6 million,
respectively

Included acquisition and integration costs of $hiltion, $1.5 million, $3.8 million and $0.8 milliofor the thirteen weeks ended April 2,
2011, July 2, 2011, October 1, 2011 and Decembe2@1, respectively, related to our WAG acquisit

Included a $5.1 million impairment loss on intargibssets

@)
®)

4)

Note 16 — Subsequent Events

As part of the Company’s initiatives to reduce labasts and improve operating efficiencies in resgato the challenges in the
marketplace and general market conditions, we iglocr workforce in January 2013. We laid off 13tyees in the United States and 163
employees in the Philippines reducing our workfdrca total of 1,194 employees. The severance elBarfjapproximately $493,000 was
recorded in marketing expense, general and admatiist expense, fulfillment expense and technolkexpyense for $250,000, $94,000, $42,00(
and $107,000, respectively, in January 2013. Weade@xpect to incur material additional chargesssgbent to January 2013.
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Exhibit 10.78
FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “* Amendment), dated as of March 8, 2013, is entered into g a
among U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC., a Delawarepmation (“ Company), PARTSBIN, INC., a Delaware corporation (* P&is
"), LOCAL BODY SHOPS, INC., a Delaware corporati¢rLocal Body Shops$), PRIVATE LABEL PARTS, INC., a Delaware corporai (“
Private Label Part§, WHITNEY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC., a Delaware coopation (“ Whitney Autd’, and together with the Company,
PartsBin, Local Body Shops and Private Label Paditectively, “ Borrowers and each individually a “ Borrowe), the other Loan Parties
party hereto, the Lenders (as defined below) gaeteto, and JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as admirgtitre agent for the Lenders (in
such capacity, “ Administrative Agetijt

RECITALS

A. Borrowers, the other parties signatory theret6lanan Parties” (each individually, a * Loan Pattgnd collectively, the * Loan Partié},
Administrative Agent, and the financial institut®party thereto as lenders (each individually Lefider” and collectively, the “ Lenders
") have previously entered into that certain Credite®gnent, dated as of April 26, 2012 (as amendsthtesl, supplemented or otherw
modified from time to time, the ** Credit Agreeméhtpursuant to which the Lenders have made cettagins and financial
accommodations available to Borrowers. Terms useeit without definition shall have the meaningsrii®d to them in the Credit
Agreement

B. Borrowers and the other Loan Parties have ragdebat Administrative Agent and the Lenders antéedCredit Agreement, and
Administrative Agent and the Lenders are willingatnend the Credit Agreement pursuant to the temmdscanditions set forth herei

C. Each Borrower and each other Loan Party is ixgénto this Amendment with the understanding agteement that, except as

specifically provided herein, none of Administra&igent’s or any Lender’s rights or remedies adas¢h in the Credit Agreement and
the other Loan Documents are being waived or medlifiy the terms of this Amendme

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl he mutual covenants herein contained, andtf@r@ood and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agréalows:

1. Amendments to Credit Agreeme.

a. The definition of “Covenant Testing Trigger Pelfiin Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is lngramended and restated
to read in its entirety as follow

“* Covenant Testing Trigger Perioaneans the period (a) commencing on any day thaee&s Availability is less than
$6,000,000 (or $4,000,000 solely during the peabMarch 1, 2013, through and including April 1913), and

(b) continuing until Excess Availability has beareater than or equal to $6,000,000 (or $4,000,008ysduring the period
of March 1, 2013, through and including April 1®13) at all times for 45 consecutive calendar ¢’




b. Section 5.01(m) of the Credit Agreement is herebeaded and restated to read in its entirety asvist!

“(m) unless otherwise agreed to by AdministrativgeAt, by no later than Wednesday of each weekdoh &veek ending on
or prior to April 15, 2013, a projected 13 weektclew report for the immediately following 13 weekriod, and a cash
flow report for the week most recently ended togethith a comparison to the previously deliveregtéast, in each case, in
form reasonably satisfactory to Administrative Agén

C. Sections 6.01(q) through 6.01(r) of the Credit Agment are hereby amended as follo
i. the word“anc” at the end of Section 6.01(q) is hereby dele
i. replacement of th*(r)” at the beginning of Section 6.01(r) w*(s)’; and
iii. insertion of a new Section 6.01(r) between Sedi®i(q) and Section 6.01(s) as folloy

“(r) the capitalized amount of the remaining leassimilar payments under the relevant lease agradpplicable
agreement or instrument that would appear on anbalaheet of such Person as of such date in acoxmdath GAAP
arising from the any sale and leaseback transattiairis permitted by Section 6.06 so long as tHeistrative Ager
receives a Collateral Access Agreement with resjoettte property that is the subject of such satklaaseback
transaction within 60 days after the consummatiosuch transaction (unless waived by the AdminiistesAgent in its
sole discretion); and”

d. Section 6.06 of the Credit Agreement is hereby atadrand restated to read in its entirety as follc

“ Sale and Leaseback Transactioto Loan Party will, nor will it permit any Subsadly to, enter into any arrangement,
directly or indirectly, whereby it shall sell oatrsfer any property, real or personal, used omulgefts business, whether
now owned or hereafter acquired, and thereaftdraelease such property or other property thaténds to use for
substantially the same purpose or purposes agtipenpy sold or transferred (such a transactidsake and leaseback”),
except for (a) any such sale and leaseback ofizeg br capital assets by any Borrower or any Sliési that is made for
cash consideration in an amount not less tharnaihedlue of such fixed or capital asset and isscommated within 90 days
after such Borrower or any Subsidiary acquiresoongletes the construction of such fixed or cagitset, and (b) such other
sale and leasebacks as are consummated on terrosradiions satisfactory to the Administrative Agand the Lenders in
their Permitted Discretion so long as no Event efddlt has occurred and is continuing at the tifn@oasummation of such
sale and leaseback or would result thereform.”

2. Conditions Precedent to Effectiveness of this Anmeewdt. The following shall have occurred before this Amment is effective

a. Amendment Administrative Agent shall have received this Ardment fully executed in a sufficient number of otarparts
for distribution to all parties



5.

b. Representations and Warranti@$he representations and warranties set forthimeaad in the Credit Agreement (other than
any such representations or warranties that, by térens, are specifically made as of a date atiien the date hereof), must
be true and correct in all material respects witttuplication of any materiality qualifier contashéherein,

Representations and Warrant. Each Borrower and each other Loan Party represemd warrants as follow

a. Authority. Each Borrower and each other Loan Party hasetinaisite corporate power and authority to execntedeliver
this Amendment, and to perform its obligations heder and under the Loan Documents (as amendeddified hereby) t
which it is a party. The execution, delivery, arfprmance by each Borrower and each other Loaty Bathis Amendmer
have been duly approved by all necessary corpardien, have received all necessary governmengabapl, if any, and do
not contravene any law or any contractual restmchinding on such Borrower or such Loan Pz

b. Enforceability. This Amendment has been duly executed and deliviey each Borrower and each other Loan Party. This
Amendment and each other Loan Document (as amenduddified hereby) is the legal, valid, and birglwbligation of
each Borrower and each other Loan Party in acceslaiith its terms, and is in full force and effe

C. Representations and Warranti@$he representations and warranties containdukeilCredit Agreement (other than any such
representations or warranties that, by their teams specifically made as of a date other tham#te hereof) are correct on
and as of the date hereof in all material respeittoout duplication of any materiality qualifier emined therein as though
made on and as of the date her

d. No Default. No event has occurred and is continuing thattitotess a Default or Event of Defau

Choice of Law The validity of this Amendment, its constructiagmierpretation and enforcement, the rights ofpthdies hereunder,
shall be determined under, governed by, and cogdtruaccordance with the laws of the State of Newk, but without giving
effect to any federal laws applicable to natioreatks.

Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in any numbeoohterparts and by different parties and separxataterparts,

each of which when so executed and delivered, bkalleemed an original, and all of which, when taiogiether, shall constitute
one and the same instrument. Delivery of an exeotenterpart of a signature page of this Amendrhgrelefacsimile shall be

effective as delivery of a manually executed cop@g of the Amendmen

Reference to and Effect on the Loan Docume

a. Upon and after the effectiveness of this Amendeach reference in the Credit Agreement to “Agseement”,
“hereunder”, “hereof” or words of like import referg to the Credit Agreement, and each referendkérother Loan
Documents to “the Credit Agreement”, “thereof’words of like import referring to the Credit Agment, shall mean and
a reference to the Credit Agreement as modifiedeanended hereb

3



10.

11.

b. Except as specifically set forth in this Amenan¢he Credit Agreement and all other Loan Docutseare and shall
continue to be in full force and effect and arechgrin all respects ratified, and confirmed andlgtamstitute the legal, vali
binding, and enforceable obligations of each Boeoand the other Loan Parties to Administrative #gand the Lenders
without defense, offset, claim, or contributit

C. The execution, delivery and effectiveness of fhiinendment shall not, except as expressly provigedin, operate as a
waiver of any right, power, or remedy of Adminisiva Agent or any Lender under any of the Loan Doeants, nor
constitute a waiver of any provision of any of ttean Documents

Ratification. Each Borrower and each other Loan Party heredtates, ratifies and reaffirms each and every tarthcondition set
forth in the Credit Agreement, as amended herety the Loan Documents effective as of the datedfie

Estoppel To induce Administrative Agent and Lenders tceeimto this Amendment and to induce Administrathgent and the
Lenders to continue to make advances to Borrowademthe Credit Agreement, each Borrower and ettedr doan Party hereby
acknowledges and agrees that, after giving eftetiiis Amendment, as of the date hereof, therdsris Default or Event of
Default and no right of offset, defense, counténcjar objection in favor of any Borrower or anyet Loan Party as against
Administrative Agent or any Lender with respectte Obligations

Integration This Amendment, together with the other Loan Doents, incorporates all negotiations of the patim®to with
respect to the subject matter hereof and is tfa &érpression and agreement of the parties herighaespect to the subject matter
hereof.

Severability In case any provision in this Amendment shalinwalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such provisgiall be severable
from the remainder of this Amendment and the vBlidegality, and enforceability of the remainingpisions shall not in any way
be affected or impaired theret

Submission of AmendmenThe submission of this Amendment to the partietheir agents or attorneys for review or signature
does not constitute a commitment by Administrathgent or any Lender to waive any of their respectights and remedies under
the Loan Documents, and this Amendment shall havieimding force or effect until all of the conditi® to the effectiveness of this
Amendment have been satisfied as set forth he

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAmendment to be duly executed and deliverethby duly authorized
officers as of the day and year first above written

BORROWERS:

U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ Shane Evangelist

Name: Shane Evangel
Title: CEO

PARTSBIN, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ Shane Evangelist

Name: Shane Evangel
Title: Presiden

LOCAL BODY SHOPS, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ David Hernandez

Name: David Hernande
Title: Presiden

PRIVATE LABEL PARTS, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ Arthur Simitian

Name: Arthur Simitiar
Title: Presiden

WHITNEY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ Mary Jo Truijillo

Name: Mary Jo Trujillc
Title: Secretan



OTHER LOAN PARTIES:

LOBO MARKETING, INC.,
a Texas corporatio

By /s/ Brian Hafer

Name: Brian Hafe
Title: Presiden

AUTOMD, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ Anton Reut

Name: Anton ReL
Title: Presiden

PACIFIC 3PL, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ Rick Ellis

Name: Rick Ellis
Title: Presiden

GO FIDO, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ Michael Buca

Name: Michael Buc:
Title: Presiden

AUTOMOTIVE SPECIALTY ACCESSORIES AND

PARTS, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By /s/ David Sprangler

Name: David Sprangle
Title: Presiden



SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name

PartsBin, Inc

Power Host, Inc. (1

U.S. Auto Parts Network (Philippines) Corporat
Lobo Marketing, Inc

Go Fido, Inc.

Private Label Parts, In

Pacific 3PL, Inc

AutoMD, Inc.

Local Body Shops, Inc

Automotive Specialty Accessories and Parts, Inc
Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. (:

(1) Subsidiary of PartsBin, In
(2) Subsidiary of Go Fido, Inc

(3) Subsidiary of Automotive Specialty Accessories Riadts, Inc

Jurisdiction DBA

Delaware

Ontario, Canad

Philippines

Texas

Delaware

Delaware Kool-Vue
Delaware

Delaware

Delaware Perfect Fil
Delaware

Delaware

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement Nos. 333-143179, 333-149973;1%8224, 333-165493 and 333-
173851 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement BB%.163811 and 333-173856 on Form3/8-of our reports dated March 25, 2013, rela
to the consolidated financial statements of U.SoMRarts Network, Inc. and subsidiaries, and tfect@feness of U.S. Auto Parts Network, |

and subsidiaries internal control over financigla®ing, appearing in this Annual Report on FormKL6f U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and
subsidiaries for the period ended December 29,.2012

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, CA
March 25, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Shane Evangelist, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision to provide reasonable assurangediyy the reliability of financial reporting anlgket preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadfepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s mos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal twhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s Board of Directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2013

/sl SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangeli:

Chief Executive Office
(principal executive officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David Robson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision to provide reasonable assurangediyy the reliability of financial reporting anlgket preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadfepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s mos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal twhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s Board of Directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2013

/s/ DAVID ROBSON
David Robsor

Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer’




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autar®8 Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tae fiscal year ended December 29,
2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Shemangelist, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81380adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@xkes- Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 25, 2013

/sl SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangelit
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autar®8 Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tae fiscal year ended December 29,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, DaRidbson, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350,dmpted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@ydeof 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 25, 2013

/s/ DAVID ROBSON
David Robsor
Chief Financial Office




